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DOrganization/Agency Name:
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3)Mailing Address: City/State/Zip

521 Trade Center Street Montgomery, AL 36108
4)CEQ or Director: Title:

Richard A. Deem CEO

5)Phone: 6)Fax: NEmail:
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8)Contact Person: Title:
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12)Web Site Address: 13)Tax ID:
www.montgomeryareafoodbank.orp 63-0931846
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MATB Food Program Expansion
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$3,435,328.43 100): 98.38 Column A x 100): .58

20)Purpase of Grant Request (one sentence):

The purpose of the grant request is to increase food distribution by expanding the following food programs: Senior
Supplement, School Pantry, Mokile Pantry, Commodity Supplemental Food, and Exercise, Nutrition and Diet,

21)Program Start Date (Month and Year):

September 2020

22)Program End Date (Month and Year):
August 2021
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2020 S.L. Gimbel Foundation Fund APPLICATION
Narrative

Please provide the following information by answering ALL questions (I to IV), 12 Font, One
Inch Margins. Use the format below (I to IV). Type the question. Type your complete answers
to the question directly below the question. Please be thorough, clear, specific, and concise.

I. Organization Background
A) What are the history, mission and/or purpose of your organization?

The Montgomery Area Food Bank (MAFB) was established in 1986 through the efforts of the
local United Way Community Council and under the umbrella of the American Red Cross. The
organization became a certified affiliate of Feeding America (previously known as America’s
Second Harvest) in 1989. For 34 years, our mission has been to nourish the hungry, educate and
mobilize the community, engage in partnerships that advance self-sufficiency, and gather and
distribute food to those in need.

We are Alabama’s largest Feeding America Food Bank and are strategically addressing the
challenge of food insecurity. We have two main strategies for providing food. First, we provide
food for our direct service area of 12 counties by working with over 300 partner agencies that
serve hungry people through a variety of programs. Second, we provide food for our remaining
23 counties through our four Partner Distribution Organizations (PDQs) headquartered in
Auburn, Dothan, Selma, & Tuscaloosa. The PDOs enable us to provide balanced service to a
service area of over 25,000 square miles. In all we have over 800 agencies working together to
get food to those who desperately need it.

We have programs that are directly being administered by us to our direct service area of 12
counties. In fact, our programs consisted of 98.3% of our expenses last year. Our Mobile Pantry
(MP) program delivers daily between 11,000-15,000 pounds of food to between 120-150
households, at one place and time. Our Senior Supplement Program (SSP) provides nearly 800
low-income seniors with a monthly box filled with food, ensuring that they don't have to choose
between food and other necessities. Our School Pantry Program (SPP) works with local schools
to provide food to roughly 627 hungry children and their families each month. Qur Commodity
Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) works to improve the health of currently 1,965 low-income
seniors at [east 60 years of age by supplementing their diets with nutritious USDA Foods. In
addition, we have a role in disaster relief.

Our efforts are orchestrated by a staff of 34 and a daily average of 10-15 volunteers. Through the
combined efforts of our Montgomery Distribution Center & our four PDOs, we distributed 27
million pounds of food last year.

B) How long has the organization been providing programs and services to the community?
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Since 1986, the Montgomery Area Food Bank has been nourishing the hungry by educating and
mobilizing the community, engaging in partnerships that advance self-sufficiency, and gathering
then distributing grocery products across 35 Alabama counties.

C) What are some of your past organizational accomplishments (last three years)?

The last three years have brought extreme success to the food bank. In FY 17 (July 2016-June
2017) we introduced our School Pantry Program (SPP). This program establishes food pantries at
local public schools to provide chronically hungry children and their families with accessible,
ongoing relief. In its first year, our program provided 180,591 pounds of food through weekly
distributions to 368 food-insecure children and their families. In FY-17, we distributed a record
breaking 25.8 pounds of food throughout our network. This increase in our overall distribution
was made possible in part by setting yet another record in our MP/END Program distributions in
FY-17, which distributed 4.5 million pounds of food (a 45 percent increase from 3.1 million
pounds in FY-16) to 63,601 low-income families (an 80 percent increase from 35,405 families in
FY-16). In FY-19 (June 2018-July 2019) we hit another record. We distributed 27 million
pounds of food throughout our network. In 2019, we added the Commodity Supplemental Food
Program (CSFP) to our food programs. CSFP works to improve the health of currently 1,965
low-income seniors at least 60 years of age by supplementing their diets with nutritious USDA
foods. In addition, we began renovations of a 21,000 sq. fi. warehouse that is only 15 feet from
our current property. We were able to purchase this building outright. We finished renovating
this space in February 2020. In addition, a 22,000 sq. ft. warehouse located in Selma (in the
heart of the poverty-stricken Black Belt) was gifted to us. The goal with this expansion was to
enable critical programmatic and distributive increases that will ultimately allow us to provide
more food to more families in need,

I, Project Information:
A) Statement of Need
Specify the community need(s) you want to address and are seeking funds for.
Include demographics, geographic characteristics of the area or community to be served,
community conditions and income level. Include relevant statistics.

Poverty is a complex issue in the state of Alabama; one that is rooted in history and
deeply entrenched in the communities we serve. Before the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Montgomery Area Food Bank (MAFB) was already addressing a dire situation of food
insecurity in 35 of Alabama’s 67 counties. Of the 35 counties we serve, 25 counties are
considered highly rural and 7 counties are considered moderately rural (Alabama Rural
Health Association, 2018). Our rural communities are covered with food deserts, which
limits the access of adequate, alfordable, and healthy food.

Of the 35 counties served by the MAFB, 16 are a part of the Black Belt region. The
region is a stretch of fertile lands across the southern haif of the state and served one of
the most brutal parts of the country during the slavery era. Now the counties are
historically considered among the poorest in the state and the nation. The majority of the
population are people of color. According to Racial Disparities Dashboard, the poverty
rate among people of color in the 16 counties are as follows: Barbour (43%), Bullock
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(39%), Butler (35%), Crenshaw (23%), Dallas (38%), Greene (43%), Hale (34%),
Lowndes (35%), Macon (28%), Marengo (29%), Montgomery (28%), Perry (49%),
Pickens (39%), Pike (37%), Sumter (37%), and Wilcox (40%). The region is burdened
with an environment that results in a wide range of social, economic, cultural, health,
political and physical ills. It is historically known for having a high rate of chronic
illness, such as diabetes and heart disease, high rate of HIV/AIDS, and a lack of access to
medical facilities and public transportation.

All these factors have aided in Alabama having one of the highest rates (by population)
of COVID-19 cases in the nation. As of today, the Black Belt counties have eight of the
nine worst infection rates in Alabama, where nearly 40,000 have tested positive for the
virus and more than 1,000 have died. The area also took the hardest hit from
unemployment during the economic shutdown, with eight Black Belt counties having
Jobless rates near or above 20%. Alabama is still setting records for the highest COVID-
19 cases in a day and there appears to be no end in sight.

Currently within our service area, we have 300,000 individuals who are food insecure,
but we are only reaching 150,000. Last year, we distributed 27 million pounds of food,
and will surpass that number this year. According to Feeding America, in the worst case-
scenario, Alabama’s food insecurity rate could jump from 17% to 22%. This increases
the number of Alabamians that are food insecure from 829,240 to 1,073,000, which
means a 30% increase. That could potentially mean that the number of food insecure in
our service area could increase between 99,000-120,000.

The funding request will enable us to meet this need by expanding our food programs, so
that we can increase the food distribution within our service area.

B) Project Description MONDAY
Describe your food distribution program.
1. What are the specific activities of the food program?

We are strategically addressing the challenge of food insecurity. Last year, we were able to
distribute 27 million pounds of food to 35 of Alabama’s 67 counties. We have two main
strategies for providing food. First, we provide food for 23 counties through our four Partner
Distribution Organizations (PDOs) headquartered in Auburn, Dothan, Selma, & Tuscaloosa. The
PDOs, along with 500 partner agencies, enable us to provide balanced service to a service area of
over 25,000 square miles.

Second, we provide food for our direct service area of 12 counties by working with over 300
partner agencies that serve hungry people through the following programs: Senior Supplement,
School Pantry, Mobile Pantry, Commodity Supplement Food, and Exercise, Nutrition and Diet.

The Senior Supplement Program (SSP) provides supplemental nutritious food to senior citizens.
Seniors living on a fixed income are often forced to choose between buying the food they need to
stay healthy and paying for other necessities such as medicine, utilities, and shelter. Qur SSP
steps in to take these concerns off the table by delivering a monthly box filled with 25 to 35
pounds of food to each of our sponsored senior citizens. Each box contains nutrients typically




lacking in the diet of older adults, with a focus on providing nutrient-rich, fresh produce and
foods high in protein and fiber.

To prevent or alleviate food insecurity for the students within our direct service area, the
Montgomery Area Food Bank (MAFB) created a School Pantry Program (SPP). MAFB's SPP is
designed to provide food assistance for our most severely food-insecure and chronically hungry
children and their families. School pantries are located on the grounds of the school to offer a
more readily accessible source of food assistance. Sites are consistently in the same location on
the school's campus, have set distribution schedules, and offer ongoing food assistance services.
Because the primary focus is to feed the children, most items are shelf stable, nutritious, and easy
to prepare so that children can take care of themselves when the parents are unable. In addition,
the school pantry has been expanded to include fruits, vegetables, dairy, grain, and frozen meat,
MAFB's SPP is designed to be run as a cooperative concerted team effort, between the MAFB, a
MAFB approved partner agency (nonprofit or religious organization), and a local public school
preferably in the same neighborhood as the adoptive partner agency. The partner agency is
tasked with administering the school pantry program at their adoptive school. While MAFB,
provides guidance, oversight, as well as food to the partner agency and school. Each entity has
its own specific responsibilities which come together on the final focus of their mission -- the
food insecure student and family.

The Mobile Pantry (MP) Program serves as a primary means of providing food to historically
underserved areas, especially distant impoverished, rural locations. The goal of the MP Program
is to reach the hungry in communities, even when infrastructure, like a pantry or community
kitchen, is lacking. Our organization loads a tractor-trailer with food and delivers it to a location
in the desired area that can accommodate distribution, such as a nonprofit or a church.
Volunteers from local or sponsoring organizations unload the trailer and then distribute the food
directly to those in need. The MP Program delivers between 10,000-15,000 pounds of food to
between 120-150 households, at one place and time.

Our Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) was established to improve the health of
low-income elderly persons at least 60 years of age in Montgomery by supplementing their diets
with nutritious USDA Foods. The goal is to provide CSFP food packages, which are specifically
designed to supplement sources of nutrients typically lacking in seniors’ diets, to ensure that their
specialized dietary needs are being met. CSFP food packages can play an important role in
combating the health consequences of senior hunger and can ultimately help seniors avoid costly
hospitalizations and nursing home placements.

The Exercise, Nutrition and Diet (END) Program offers nutrition education based on
fundamentals established by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) to those receiving
assistance through our programs. We provide educational materials in addition to providing food
to those who are in need. This is especially important since our service area disproportionately
suffers from high chronic illness, such as heart disease, obesity, and diabetes.

2. How do you identify/qualify those in need?




We currently have 300,000 individuals living in poverty across our 35-county service area.
These individuals are deemed food insecure, meaning that they do not have access to adequate
food. Those we serve include children (40%), seniors (20%), and others (40%) including the
unemployed, low-pay working families, the homeless, victims of domestic violence and disaster
survivors, among others. To qualify for our assistance, individuals and families must either be
enrolled in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) or another government
assistance program or be living within 130% of the federal poverty line. We do not discriminate
against recipients based on identity (race, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion,
disability, veteran, or immigration status).

2. How often is the food distribution offered (before COVID and now)?

We distribute food every day, Monday through Friday. We conduct a Mobile Pantry delivery
every day. We distribute Senior Supplement boxes once per month. During the school year, on a
weekly basis, we distribute food through the School Pantry Program. Every two weeks we
distribute food through the Commodity Supplemental Food Progran.

4. How many people will be served by the food distribution program (children, youth,
adults, seniors) that is being considered for the Gimbel Foundation request and the
total program?

Our current food programs distribute food to 150,000 individuals in our service area. The

Montgomery Area Food Bank anticipates being able to extend our reach to an additional
50,000

individuals with the Gimbel Foundation funding.

5. Please explain how you keep track of number of people served.

The Montgomery Area Food Bank (MAFB) evaluates all programs by having partner
agencies record the following metrics: number of households served, number of individuals
assisted, age of each recipient, and poundage of food distributed. By recording this
information, MAFB is able to determine how much assistance they were able to provide on
average. The information collected is then utilized to determine if the program met its goals
and objectives, as well as determine areas the program can be more effective.

C) Project Goal, Objectives, Activities and Expected Qutcomes MONDAY
1. Note: Objective, Qutcomes and Evaluation must all be based on the SAME
QUANTIFIABLE CRITERIA (for example, “number served, or acres
improved”). This quantifiable criteria should refer to the grant amount you are
requesting from the Gimbel Foundation only and not the total program.

State ONE GOAL, ONE OBJECTIVE, ONE OUTCOME. USE NUMBERS AND

DO NOT USE PERCENTAGES.

2. State ONE project goal. The Goal should be an aspirational statement, a broad
statement of purpose for the project.




GOAL: Eliminate hunger within our 35-county service area located in Alabama.

3. State One Objective. The Objective should be specific, measurable, verifiable,
action-oriented, realistic, and time-specific statement intended to guide your
organization’s activities toward achieving the goal.

OBJECTIVE: Increase the annual food distribution by 5 to 6 million pounds of
food.

4. Specify the activities you will undertake to meet the objective and number of
participants for each activity.

ACTIVITILES

1. Increase distribution of food by 5 to 6 million pounds through our food programs and our
PDOs.

2. Evaluate data quarterly to ensure that we are on track to meet our established outcome.

5. State One Outcome are the individual, organizational or community-level changes
that can reasonably occur during the grant period as a result of the proposed activities
or services. What are the key anticipated outcomes of the project and impact on
participants? State in quantifiable and verifiable terms.

OUTCOME: We expect to distribute between 35 to 6 million pounds of food to
approximately 50,000 food insecure individuals within a year.

6. Evaluation: How will progress towards the objective (per above) be tracked and
outcome measured? State the number of people that will be evaluated per the
objective. Provide specific information on how you will collect relevant data and
statistics that meet your objective and validate your expected outcome, in a
quantifiable manner, as you describe your evaluation process.

EVALUATION: Through the Gimbel Foundation funding, we will distribute 5 to 6 million
pounds of food and reach an estimated 50,000 food insecure individuals. The Montgomery
Area Food Bank (MAFB) evaluates all programs by having partner agencies record the
following metrics: number of households served, number of individuals assisted, age of each
recipient, and poundage of food distributed. By recording this information, MAFB is able to
determine how much assistance they were able to provide on average. The information
collected is then utilized to determine if the program met its goals and objectives, as well as
determine areas the program can be more effective.

D) Timeline
Provide a timeline for implementing the project. State the start date and ending date of
the project, include timeframes for specific activities, as appropriate. The start date and
end date should be the same dates on the cover page.

Our food distribution program follows our fiscal year. We will begin implementing this
project July 2020 (or as soon as we receive the grant award) and end June 2021. We will




evaluate and implement measures to enable us to increase our food distribution within the
first two months of receiving the grant award. Next, we will begin increasing the amount
of food being distributed throughout our various programs. We will assess our progress
quarterly to ensure that we are meeting our goal and objective. Finally, we will analyze
all of the data collected and report to the Gimbel Foundation of our success in increasing
food distribution throughout our 35-county service area.

E) Target Population
1. Who will this grant serve?

We currently have 300,000 individuals living in poverty across our 35-county service area.
These individuals are deemed food insecure, meaning that they do not have access to adequate
food. Those we serve include children (40%), seniors (20%), and others (40%) including the
unemployed, low-pay working families, the homeless, victims of domestic violence and disaster
survivors, among others. To qualify for our assistance, individuals and families must either be
enrolled in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) or another government
assistance program or be living within 130% of the federal poverty line. We do not discriminate
against recipients based on identity (race, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion,
disability, veteran, or immigration status).

2. How many people will be impacted? Provide a breakdown: Number of Children,
Youth, Adults, Seniors, Animals.

Our current food programs distribute food to 150,000 individuals in our service area. The

Montgomery Area Food Bank anticipates being able to extend our reach to an additional
50,000

individuals with the Gimbel Foundation funding.

Adults: 20,000
Children: 20,000
Seniors: 10,0000

F) Community Partners
1. How does this program relate to other existing projects in the community?

We work with other nonprofits, including churches, to help through on-site feeding,
emergency food, Child Hunger Backpack, Meals-on-Wheels and many other programs.
Our MP Program augments these programs by allowing us to target efficient food
distribution to communities who might not otherwise be able to obtain the assistance they
need.

We monitor the impact of our operation by utilizing a "Service Area Gap Analysis,"
which compares the amount of assistance delivered to the number of families living in
poverty. This system is utilized by Feeding America to assess food distribution




throughout the nation and we use the data to determine which communities are most in
need of assistance. Our success in providing food to the hungry is among the very highest
in the nation, and the MP Program's ability to deliver substantial amounts of food to one
place, at one time, plays an integral role in ensuring this success.

3. Who are your key community partners? Provide a brief description of each key partner and
their role(s) in this program.

Without our key community partners, we would not be able to effectively and efficiently
distribute over 30 million pounds of food throughout our 35-county service area last year. The
community partners consist of four Partner Distribution Organizations (PDOs): West Alabama
Food Bank, East Alabama Food Bank, Selma Area Food Bank, and the Wiregrass Area Food
Bank. The PDOs play an integral part in our food distribution as they assist in us being able to
reach all 35 counties and we provide support to them to be able to distribute food within their
areas. Other community partners are what we refer to as pariner agencies. Partner agencies are
nonprofits, including churches, that includes food insecurity as a part of their mission. They
assist us in executing our programs by helping us identify areas that have a need and distributing
the food to those who are in need.

4. How are you utilizing volunteers?

Last calendar year, we utilized 1,521 volunteers. Volunteers assist in general office tasks, such
as shredding documents and stuffing envelopes. Also, they assist us in sorting and repacking
dry, produce and/or frozen product. In addition, volunteers assist us in special events, such as
the National Association of Letter Carriers (NALC) food drive and two major community fund
and food drives annually.

G) Use of Grant Funds
How will you use the grant funds? This answer should align with the specific activities
previously outlined in C) Project Goal, Objectives. Activities and Expected Quicomes

The grant funds will be utilized to increase food distribution by 5 to 6 million pounds of food
throughout our 35 county-service area by purchasing more food and enhancing our coordination
efforts.

III. Project Future
A) Sustainability
Explain how you will support this project after the grant performance period. Include
plans for fundraising or increasing financial support designated for the project.

The staff, the board of directors, as well as several donors and local organizations are
dedicated to making sure that our programs continue. MAFB regularly diverts funds from
the operating budget when funding is low to ensure that our programs continue.
However, to continue growing the organization and our programs, as well as continue to




meet the needs of the over 300,000 people living in poverty within the service area,
funding will continuously be pursued for this program through securing individual
contributions, grants, planned giving, and sponsored events.

IV. Governance, Executive Leadership and Key Personnel/Staff Qualifications
A) Governance
L. Describe your board of directors and the role it plays in the organization.

The Montgomery Area Food Bank’s Board of Directors are made up of 28 professionals and
community leaders who are dedicated to eliminating hunger within our service area. They are
active in strategic planning and decision making. They ensure that we follow the law, supervise
the executive director, and they make sure that we remain financially solvent by evaluating
financial policies, approving budgets and reviewing financial reports.

2. What committees exist within your board of directors?
Our Board of Directors consist of the following committees: Executive, Personnel, F inance,
Development, Nominating, By Laws, Agency Outreach, Food Procurement and Distribution
Committee, and Warehouse & Equipment Committee.

3. How does the board of directors make decisions?

Our Board of Directors works closely with our CEO to make decisions that will ensure that our
organization is within the law and is financially solvent, as directed in our Bylaws. The CEOQ
provides the pertinent data to the Board of Directors, so that they are making informed decisions.
The issues are voted on by the Board of Directors following Robert Rules of Order, which
requires both a majority vote and the majority to be present.

B) Management
Describe the qualifications of key personnel/staff responsible for the project.

Below is a list of the key personnel/staff responsible for the project, as well as their
qualifications.

Chief Executive Officer—Richard Deem: The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is directly
responsible for the daily operations of MAFB and the Partner Distribution Organizations
(PDOs). We require our CEO to have experience with working with a food bank and managing
a staff. The CEO must have a master’s degree in community organizations and/or public or
business administration.

Chief Operations Officer—David Fata: The Chief Operations Officer (COQ) is the person in
charge of fulfilling the MAFB’s operational strategies. We require that our COO has a
Bachelor’s degree and has significant experience in direct operational management in the food
distribution field.

Director of Partner Agencies—Cheri O’Dell: The Director of Partner Agencies is responsible
for all human resource duties, programs and agency relations management, and ensuring growth
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of our programs and providing outreach through a growing network of partner agencies. We
require a Bachelor’s degree in human resources or nonprofit management. The Director of
Partner Agencies must have five years of experience in food banking and experience in
supervision and management.

Warehouse Manager—Carey Welch: The Warehouse Manager is responsible for the
maintenance and up-keep and cleanliness of the entire warehouse facility and for the distribution
operation which includes warehouse customer service, special programs support, salvage sorting
and quality assurance, freezer and cooler operations and Market Spot operations. Additional
responsibilities include preparation of Mobile Pantry loads and Senior Supplement boxes, facility
maintenance, building security, routine inspection/logs, and working closely with the Volunteer
Coordinator to develop and promote a program for utilizing volunteers. We require a high school
diploma with previous warehouse and supervisory experience.

Assistant Warehouse Manager—John Foster: The Assistant Warehouse Manager is responsible
for the management of incoming product and all outgoing product to our PDO’s, including the
storage and recording of this product. Specific responsibilities include coordinating pick-up for
local donations, communicating with PDO personnel, and managing the pick-up schedule of
product going to our PDOs. He is also responsible for ensuring transportation, loading and
unloading of trucks, proper location and storage of product and initiating the special inventory
requirements. We require that the Assistant Warehouse Manager has a high school diploma,
must have a good working knowledge of the principles and practices required in the safe
handling of merchandise, and must have a working knowledge of principles and practices
necessary in the safe care and use of warehouse handling equipment and of occupational safety
and hazards.
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2020 S.L. Gimbel Foundation APPLICATION

V. Project Budget and Narrative (Do not delete these instructions on your completed form).

Please provide a detailed line-item budget for your project by completing the budget form below.

The maximum requested amount is $1,000,000 ox 25% of vour operatine budget,

whichever is less, Delineate your line items requests per example below:

» 90% of total request for the purchase of food items only. (Ex. Total request of $1,000,000;
90% is $900,000 for food)

» 10% of total request for transportation OR for coordination (Ex. Total request of
$1,000,000; 10% is $100,000 for transportation

» Canned tuna will not be funded.

Food items must be delineated (i.e. canned vegetables, soup, pasta, dried beans, rice, etc.).

IFor each food item, indicate the cost per unit {(pound, carton, case, ete.) and the

quantity., See attached example.

Line Item Line Item Support | Support | Requested Line Item
Request Explanation From From Amount Total of
Your Other From Project
Agency | Funders Gimbel
Coordination 10% of $1,000,000 $100,000 $100,000
total request
Quick Grits 12/2 b box, $76,250.00
$15.25/case, 5,000
cases
Yellow Rice 12/10 oz case, $56,752.50
$11.75/case, 4830
cases
Long grain 24/1 1b case, $80,300.00
white rice $18.25/case, 4,400
cases
Elbow §70,150.00
macaroni 20/16 oz case,
$11.50/case 6,100
cases
Spaghetti 20/16 oz case, $70,000.00
Noodles $12.50/case 5,600
cases
Macaroni n 24/7.25 box, $84,000.00
Cheese $12.00/case, 7,000
cases
Macaroni n 12/2.05 oz case, $66,000.00
Cheese Cups $11.00/case, 6,000
cases
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$26.88/case, 2,500
cases,

Self-rising 12/2 1b case, $63,750.00
yellow $12.75/case 5,000
cornmeal cases
Sweet peas 24/15 oz cans, $57,609.00
$16.65/case 3,460
cases
Pasta Salad 12/6.5 oz box $60,000.00
cases, $12.00 case,
5,000 cases
Whole Kernel 24/150z cans, $76,000.00
Corn $19.00/case 4,000
cases
Blackeyed peas | 24/1 Ib case, $72,000.00
$28.80/case, 2,500
cases
Pinto Beans 24/1 1b case, $67,200.00

TOTALS:

$900,011.50

Provide a narrative for the line item Transportation OR Coordination.

Coordination: The funds will be utilized to offset additional transportation
expenses and hire additional warehouse staff to assist in the distribution of product.
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2020 S.L. Gimbel Foundation APPLICATION

V1. Sources of Funding: Please list your current sources of funding and amounts.

Secured/Awarded

Name of Funder: Foundation, Corporation, Government

Amount

Alabama Food Bank Association

$172,576.14

Alabama Power Foundation $16,000.00
Alexis Baird and Andres Paez Charitable Fund $1,000.00
Alfa Foundation $7.500.00
Armstrong $500.00
Arthur M. Brinton Foundation $3.600.00
Baptist Foundation of Alabama $1,184.83
BBVA Communications Community Giving Program $5,000.00
Big Lots Foundation $20,000.00
CACA Jones Family Foundation $20,000.00
Caring Foundation $10,000.00
Cates $25.00
Central Alabama Community Foundation $5,000.00
Charitable Foundation $2,500.00
City of Montgomery $1,000.00
Community Foundation of Greater Huntsville $1,000.00
Crenshaw County Commission $2,500.00
Crum Family Charitable Foundation $250.00
CSX Foundation, Inc $50.00
Curtis & Edith Munson Foundation $2,500.00
Daniel Foundation of Alabama $25,000.00
Darden Foundation $11,000.00
David and Donna Smith Fund of Bank of America Charitable Gift Fund | $250.00
DHR Automation Team $40.00
Enterprise Holdings $10,587.50
Fidelty Charity $300.00
Bancorp South $1,000.00
Gannet Foundation $50.00
Gordy-Mead-Britton Foundation $1,000.00
Hobbs Foundation $2,000.000
International Paper Foundation $2,500.00
DENSO North American Foundation $10,000.00
James M. Arnold Charitable Foundation $1,500.00
Jay L. Smith Family Foundation $15,000.00
Loeb Family Foundation $10,000.00
Macon County Commission $1,200.00
Mightycause Charitable Foundation $245.76
Montgomery County Commission $4,500.00
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Morgan Stanley Foundation

$1,500.00

Nick and Terry Saban Helping Children $5,000.00
Norfolk Southern Foundation $10,000.00
Office of the Mayor of Montgomery $1,000.00
PCI Gaming Authority $25,000.00
PCWL Charitable Trust $70.00
Pike County Commission $2,500.00
PNC Foundation $15,000.00
Publix Supermarket Charities $40,000.00
Raymond James Charitable Endowment Fund $500.00
Red Pants Alliance $220.00
Rothschild Charitable Trust $50,000.00
Ruth Lee Charitable Trust $11,033.00
Samuel L. Schloss Family Foundation $1,150.00
Slaughter $200.00
State of Alabama Department of Finance $1,511,678.23
Supreme Court of Alabama $105.00
Tallapoosa County Commission $2,500.00
The Benevity Community Impact Fund $1,406.31
The Community Foundation $15,000.00
The Gayle J. Trahan Living Trust $484,293.30
The John and Joyce Caddell Foundation $20,000.00
The Thompson Foundation $10,000.00
Till Family Charitable Fund $1,000.00
Turner Foundation $500.00
Valley National Bank $7.500.00
Wells Fargo Foundation $10,000.00
Woodforest Charitable Foundation $14,960.00
Working Woman’s Home Association $15,000.00

Diversity of Funding Sources: A financially healthy organization should have a diverse mix of
funding sources. Complete those categories that apply to your organization using figures from

your most recent fiscal year.

Funding Source Amount % of Total
Revenue
Contributions 1,134,573.00 50
Fundraising/Special Events | 233,196.00 10
Corp/Foundation Grants 24,888.00 2
Government Grants 846,283.00 38

Notes:




S.L. Gimbel Foundation APPLICATION

VII. Financial Analysis

Agency Name: Montgomery Area Food Bank
Most Current Fiscal Year (Dates): From_July 1, 2020 To:__Tune 30. 2021

This section presents an overview of an applicant organization’s financial health and will be
reviewed along with the grant proposal. Provide all the information requested on your entire
organization. Include any notes that may explain any extraordinary circumstances. Information
should be taken from your most recent 990 and audit. Double check your figures!

Form 990, Part IX: Statement of Functional Expenses
(This should be vour recently filed Form 990 and should not be more than 2 vears old)

1) Transfer the totals for each of the columns, Line 25- Total functional expenses (page 10)

(A) (B) © (D)
Total Expenses Program service Management & Fundraising expenses
expenses general expenses
35,950,316 35,367,245 209,293 373,778

2) Calculate the percentages of Columns B, C, and D, over A (per totals above)
» Program services (B) — A general rule is that at least 75% of total expenses should be
used to support programs
e Management & general administration (C) — A general rule is that no more than 15% of
total expenses should be used for management & general expenses
e Fundraising (D) — A general rule is that no more than 10% of total expenses should be
used for fundraising

A) (B) © (D)
Total Expenses Program service Management & Fundraising expenses
expenses general expenses
Columns B/A x 100 | Columms C/A x 100 | Columns D/ A x 100
Must equal 100% 98.38% 58% 1.04%

3) Calculate the difference between your CURRENT year budget for management &
general expenses and your previous management & general expenses per your 990
(Column C)

Percentage of Organization’s Column C, Management & general | Differential
Current Total Budget used for expenses per 990 above 0
Administration

209,293

5%

[f the differential is above (+) or below (-) 10%, provide an explanation:

16




S.L. Gimbel Foundation APPLICATION

Quick Ratio: Measures the level of liquidity and measures only current assets that can be
quickly turned to cash. A generally standard Quick Ratio equals I or more,

Cash

+ Accounts Receivables

[Current Liabilities

= Quick Ratio

2,978,132

42,418

1,011,513

2.94

Excess or Deficit for the Year;

Excess or (Deficit)
Most recent fiscal year end

Excess: 1,845,615.40

Excess or (Deficit)
Prior fiscal year end

Deficit: (773,422.86)

Notes:

VIIL. EMAIL the Following to Gimbel@iegives.org

recent final report.

X | Completed Grant Application Form X | A copy of your current 501(c)(3) letter
(cover sheet, narrative), budget page and from the IRS
budget narrative (see sample) and sources
of funding, financial analysis page

X | Your current operating budget and the X | A copy of your most recent year-end
previous year’s actual expenses (see financial statements (audited if available;
sample Budget Comparison) double-sided)

X | Part IX only of the 990 form, Statement of | X | A copy of your most recent 990 ( double-
Functional Expenses (one page). Please sided) Please make sure that the Form
make sure that the Form 990 you submit 990 you submit is no more than two (2)
is no more than two (2) years old. years old.

X | For past grantees, a copy of your most X | A list of your Board members and their

affiliations




Income

individual Contributions
Corporate Contributions
Foundations Grants
Government Contributions
Other Earned Income
Other Unearned Income
Interest & Dividend Income
Total Income

Expenditures

Personnel

Salary CEO - NON Optional
Staff Salary

Payroll Taxes

Insurance - Workers Comp
Insurance - Health

Payroll Services
Retirement

Total Personnel

General Program/Adminstrative
Bank/Investment Feas
Publications

Conference & Meetings

Mileage

Audit & Accounting

Program Consultants

Insurance Expense

Telephone Expense

DSL & Internet

Website

Office Supplies

Postage & Delivery

Printing & Copying
Miscellaneous

Total General Program/Adminstrative
Total Expenditures

Budget Comparison

Actuals Most Recently Budget Projections

Completed Year Current Year Variance
2019 - 2020 2019 -2020

1,903,526.70 975,000.00 195.23%
517,018.80 - 0
1,223,607.80 824,998.00 148.32%
1,622,458.02 917,997.96 176.74%
6,000.00 6,000.00 100.00%
- - 0
2,473.59 2,395.98 103.07%
5,275,084.91 2,726,395.94 193.48%
95,550.00 - 0
1,377,402.68 2,122,499.96 69.40%
108,050.71 157,500.00 68.60%
14,610.31 25,500.02 57.30%
201,798.22 291,000.02 69.35%
5,400.00 5,400.00 100.00%
63,709.49 97,499.96 65.34%
1,866,521.41 2,699,399.96 69.15%
7,355.64 6,300.00 116.82%
184,747.61 239,000.00 77.30%
11,373.53 31,799.98 35.77%
1,384.58 3,750.02 36.92%
- - 0.00%
226,423.80 509,699.96 44.42%
67,531.00 85,994.10 78.53%
17,402.15 19,800.00 87.89%
17,402.15 19,800.00 87.89%
70,227.80 54,000.00 130.05%
27,228.39 36,000.00 75.63%
17,055.44 29,999.96 56.85%
19,096.55 45,000.00 42.44%
32,251.26 9,000.00 358.35%
699,483.90 1,090,144.02 64.16%
2,566,005.31 3,789,543.98 67.71%




Revenue Less Expense 2,709,079.60 {(1,063,148.04)
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE . DEPARTHMENT OF THE TREASURY
DISTRICT RIRECTOR

C - 1130

ATLANTA: 84 30301

Date: FER 13 1907 Employer Identification Number:
468-0931344
Contact Persons
ERIC C. HYLTON
MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BAMK IND Contact Telephone MNumbers
561 TRADE CENTER STREET (404) 331-01%3
HONTGDHERYs AL 34102
Our Letter Dated:
August By 1997
Addendum Applies:
Mo

~.tear fpplicaniks

This modifies cur letter of the above date in shich we stated that you
would be treated as an organization that is not & private foundation until the
expiration of your advance ruiing period.

Your enempt staius under secticon 501{a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organizaticn described in section S0L{e) (3) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitteds we have determined that you are not a private
foundation within the meaning of section §09(a) of the Code because yeu are an
ergantzation of the type described in section 509(a) (1) and 170(b} (1) (&) (vi).

Grantors and contribubore may rely on this determination unfess the
Iaternal Ravenus Service publishes notice to the comSrary. Howevers if YU
lose your secthion B09(a) (1) statusy a grantor or conbributor may not rely on
this detarmination if he or she was in part responsible for: or was aware ofy
the act or failure to actr or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that reswlted in your loss of such statusy or if he or she
acquired knosledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that Yol
would ne longer be classified as & sectien 509(2) (1) wrganization.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letier that an addendun
appliess the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation statusy please keep it in your permanent records.

1f you have any questionss please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown above.

Sincerely yours:

Paul Hitliams
District Director



Montgomery Area Food Bank

Board of Directors

2020
DIRECTOR HOME WORIK FAX TERM

BOD President
Bobby Brown, President 3%: 22)0 4 12731721
Max Hughes Trucking
131 Farmer Street (work)
Troy, AL 36079
E-mail: bbrown@troycable.net
Vice-President
Ponnie Mims, CPA, MBA 42(;:_(;% 4 12/31/21
426 Seminole Street
Montgomery, AL 36117
E-mail: DonaldMimsCPA@gmail.com
Treasurer
Steven M. Barranco, CPA 5 4{;{;1_1!)01 260-2357 274-1500 12/31/21
Warren Averett, LLC.
3815 Interstate Court
Montgomery, AL 36109
E-mail: Steve Barranco@warrenaverett.com
Secrefary (Cell 1) 242-7393 12/31/20
Olivia W. Martin, Division Chief 834-4272
Attorney General, State of Alabama
646 Cloverdale Rd. (Cell 2)
Montgomery, AL 36106 225-4410
E-mail: Owmgroup@email.com
E-mail: omartin@ago.state.al.us
Jerusha Adams, Community Leader
1919 Talbot Terrace 20(10-?3216 1231721
Montgomery, AL 36106
E-mail: jruadams@hotmail.com
E-maik: Jerusha Adams@almd.uscourts.gov
Richard Allen, General Counsel 242-0426 12/31/20
Alabama Department of Commerce
Center for Commerce, Suite 749 (Cell)
401 Adams Avenue 717-3606
Montgomery, AL 36104
Email: Richard.Allen@commerce.alabama.gov
E-mail: richardhalien1969@gmail.com
Mark Bunting

i (Cell) 12/31/22
VP & General Manager, WSFA 12 News 251-377-8064 613-8258

12 E. Delano Ave.
Montgomery, AL 36105
E-mail: mbuntingi@wsfa.com




Montgomery Area Food Bank

Board of Directors

Montgomery, AL 36106
E-mail: LDM1939@CHARTER.NET

2020

DIRECTOR HOME WORK FAX TERM
Gariesa Galbreath, Community Leader
3850 Beardsley Dr. 318-0475 12/31/21
Montgomery, AL 36109
E-mail: reesa2025@gmail.com
Grace M. (Gracie) Hanchrow
Associate Broker, Beringer Realty S49-7105 12631721
831% Wynlakes Blvd. (Cell)
Montgomery, AL 36117 260-5170
E-mail: ghanchrow@gmail.com
Earl Heath, Alabama Director, SCORE 288-0662 12/31/19
Association
6622 Berrydale Dr.
Montgomery, AL 36116
E-mail: Earl2002(@att.net
Wayne Hilgers, Community Leader <
3901 Lone Star La. 358-7120 12/31/19
Prattville, AL 36067 (Cell)
E-mail: waneowll@bellsouth.net 467-1890
Anthony Hines, Regional Director of Distribution
for Big Lots!, Inc, (Cell) 286-7060 12/31/21
2855 Selma Hwy. 614-563-2960
Montgomery, AL 36108
E-mail: AHines@biglots.com
Bill Kelley, Director of Benefits-Employees RSA
2153 Vaughn Ln. 32(2(;3;]2]?59 517-7181 12/31/20
Montgomery, AL 36106
E-mail: Bill.kelley@rsa-al.gov
John H. Lucas Jr. 703-864-1956 12/31721
6006 Balmoral Road
Montgomery, AL 36117
Email: Lucasjohn777@gmail.com
Katrina Spooney-Martin, Supervisor )
Life Policy Owner Services--ALFA 23(3(332()]7 613-4430 12/31/20
8161 Mossy Oak Drive
Montgomery, AL 36117
E-mail: kmartin@alfains.com
L. Daniel Morris Jr., Community Leader (Cell) 12/31/21
2321 Rosemont Cir. 850-6039




Montgomery Area Food Bank

DIRECTOR

Dr. Charles J. Nath, ITI, Community Leader
200 Wiltshire Dr.
Monigomery, AL 36117

E-mail: chucknathiii@knology.net

Board of Directors

2020
HOME
215-2217

(Cell)
531-0564

WORK

FAX

TERM

12/31/21

William S. Nehilla
912 Legends Drive
Montgomery, AL 36116

Email: bnehilla@gmail.com

850-291-4996

12/31/21

Lawrence Oakley, Senior Vice President
Wealth Management, Morgan Stanley
7515 Halcyon Summit Dr., Ste 300
Montgomery, AL 36117

E-mail: Lawrence.oakley@ms.com

613-1988

(Cell)
303-2000

270-2620

12/31/20

Tricia Osuch, Attorney

8012 Lakeridge Drive
Montgomery, Alabama 36117
E-mail: trisha.romano@gmail.com

(334)318-3503

12-31-22

Charles J Reynolds, V.P.

Principal Business Relationship Manager,
Wells Fargo

8130 Glynnwood Drive

Monigomery, AL 36117
reynolds.charlesj@gmail.com

334-419-4681

12/31/22

Yvette Gilkey-Shuford,

Director of Administration

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing of Alabama
700 Hyundai Blvd,

Montgomery, AL 36105

Email: yvettegilkey@hmmausa.com

296-5065

12/31/21

George Thompson, Owner
Thompson Insurance

P.O. Box 11408

Montgomery, AL 36111

E-mail: g.thompson@thomins.com

264-6164

(Cell)
324-1200

277-8970

12/31/21




Montgomery Area Food Bank
Board of Directors

2020
DIRECTOR HOME WORK FAX TERM
Helen Crump Wells, Shareholder 206-3219 481-0829 12/31/21
Rushton, Stakely, Johnston & Garreit, P.A. {Cell)
184 Commerce St.
Montgomery, AL 36104
E-mail: hew@rushtonstakely.com
Bryan Wilson, Community Leader 290-1203 12/31/20
117 Highland Cove (Cell)
Millbrook, AL 36054 657-3707
E-mail: gznedg@aol.com
EXOFFICIO MEMBERS

NAME HOME WORK FAX TERM
Past President (Celly 12/31/20
Sarah H. Moore, Executive 315-5062
124 Evergreen Drive
Deatsville, AL 36022
E-maii: Sarah.Moore@911consult.com
Past President 277-1911 538-8776 12/31/21
Tony Baggiano, Community Leader
7174 Od Southwick PL.
Montgomery, AL 36117
E-mail: thagsiano@aol.com
Past President {Cell) 277-8820 277-8823 | 12/31/20
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S. L. Gimbel Foundation Fund Holiday Food Grant Final Report

Name of your organization: Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Grant #: 20170914

Grant Period: December 12, 2017 to June 12, 2018

Location of your organization {City and State}: Montgomery, AL

Name and Title of person completing evaluation: Rich Deem, Chief Executive Officer
Phone Number: {334) 263-3784

Email address: richdeem@montgomeryareafoodbank.org

Total number of clients served through this grant funding: 8,001

Approximate volume of food purchased with grant funds? (i.e 10 lbs of fresh produce; 1000 boxes; 10
cases, efc}

-512 cases containing 24 one-pound bags of Long Grain Rice (12,288 bags totaling 12,288 pounds)
-354 cases containing 24 one-pound bags of Whole, Dried Pinto Beans (8,496 bags totaling 8,496
pounds)

-Grand Total: 20,784 pounds of bagged, dried food items

Describe the project's key outcomes and results based on your goals and objectives:

As promised in our proposal, food items purchased with the S. L. Gimbel Faoundation Fund Holiday Food
grant funds were placed on our Mobile Pantry (MP)/Exercise, Nutrition, and Diet (END} Project
distributions. Our MP/END Project performs at least one distribution daily, delivering nutrition
education materials and 10,000-15,000 pounds of primarily nutritious food items per distribution to
120-150 low-income families living throughout our service area.

As stated in our proposal, we planned to provide nutritious food staples through this grant award on 20
separate MP deliveries, which would distribute 200,000-300,000 pounds of food to 2,400-3,000 low-
income families. The actual results of this project meet what was estimated in our proposal.

Overall, the food items purchased through this grant award were distributed through 21 separate
MP/END Project deliveries, distributing nutrition education materials and 259,415 pounds of food
{including the 20,784 pounds of food provided through this grant) to 3,207 food insecure households
living in eleven counties in Alabama. These households consisted of 8,001 people living in poverty, 2,753
of which were children.

Please describe any challenges/obstacles the organization encountered (if any) in attaining stated
goals & Objectives,

N/A

How did you overcome and/or address the challenges and obstacles?



N/A
Describe any unintended positive outcomes as a result of the efforts supported by this grant.

As always, our MP/END Project provided for the emergency food needs of our neighbors in need
throughout our service area in addition to providing both the nutrition information and healthy food
items these low-income families need to five healthy, productive lives. However, we were not informed
of any unexpected positive outcomes resulting from our grant partnership.

Briefly describe the impact this grant has had on your organization.

Our local community continues to show tremendous support for our mission by donating millions of
pounds of food every year to support our operation. However, we still must often purchase food from
vendors to ensure that we can meet the demand for assistance in each county we serve,

in FY-18, we budgeted $420,000 for food purchases. While we are still currently working on our
organizational budget for FY-19 {July 1, 2018-June 20, 2019), we expect food purchase costs to increase
with the closure of some major food distributors in our area that provide us with a large amount of
donated food.

The funds awarded through the S. L. Gimbel Foundation Fund significantly helped to deter this cost,
ensuring that we had the food we needed to carry out our mission of feeding those in need throughout
our service area,

In addition, each of the 3,207 families receiving assistance through the S. L. Gimbel Foundation’s
sponsored MP/END Project deliveries received shelf-stable, nutritious food items that are rarely
donated and vital to ensuring that our neighbors in need have what they need to provide for their
families.

Please provide a brief narrative on how the funds were used to fulfill grant objectives. Support
documents (receipts or expense reports) can be emailed to klampert@thecommunityfoundation.net
or faxed to 951-684-1911,

We used the S. L. Gimbel Foundation’s $10,000 grant award to cover part of the cost of two separate
food purchases totaling $10,095.75. These grant funds covered 99 percent of the cost of these
shipments. In turn, 99 percent of these food items (866 of 873 cases} were distributed on MP/END
Project deliveries as stated in our grant proposal. The remaining seven cases not covered by grant funds
were distributed through our Agency Service Center where the local community agencies (churches and
nonprofits} come to procure food for their programs.

Both invoices and their accompanying proof of payments will be emailed as requested to
klampert@thecommunityfoundation.net. If any further information is needed, please do not hesitate to
contact our Chief Executive Officer, Rich Deem, at richdeem@montgomervareafoodbank.org.

Please relate a success story,



One of our many ‘Success Stories’ centers around the service MAFB provides to our Hispanic or Latino
communities. In the past few years we began experiencing an increase in the number of Hispanics
needing food assistance across our Alabama service area. The percentage of Hispanic or Latino people
living in poverty in Alabama is 32.6%. As the Latino population continues to grow in our service area the
need to reach these households facing hunger becomes more urgent by the day.
http://alabamapossible.org/programs/povertydatasheet/

Alabama has the fourth highest rate of child poverty in the country, and more than 300,000 Alabama
children live in poverty. Latino children are three times more likely to live in poverty.

Most parents see their primary job as providing for their children. One parent at this MP said she
actually went without food - many times - to be sure her kids could eat. She said, “l want my kids to just
be able to be kids and not have to worry about food. They need food to have the energy to play.”

The Hispanic/Latino culture portrays an intrinsically strong work ethic. Feeding America identifies that
81% of Latino households with children who use the Feeding America network of food banks have at
least one family member working. But hard work isn’t always enough for these families. Even though
the Latino population is working hard to get ahead, daily challenges still exist. From one Latino client:
"For Hispanics, it's not always easy for someone to get work that is economically practical... so when we
go to the food bank, it’s because, we really need food in our homes."

Latinos are less likely to receive help from federal nutrition programs like SNAP. When a Latino family
needs help, the local food bank often does not have the staples the family needs because their diet is
different from the typical American diet. The types of food that are most desired are not always found
at the local food bank or pantry. For example, food banks typically do not have rice and dried beans in
large quantities. Montgomery Area Food Bank with the support of S. L Gimbel Fund and The Community
Foundation is helping to solve this problem for the Latino families we serve.

Over all, through your generosity, we were able to purchase 12,288 pounds of rice and 8,496 pounds of
dry beans. This was distributed across our service area to more than 3200 families consisting of over
8000 people in poverty. This works out to 1.5 pounds of rice and over 1 pound of beans for every
person served!

A highlight of our service through our MP/END Project is the distribution conducted by Montgomery
Hispanic Seventh Day Adventist Church. Ministering to a predominately Hispanic congregation and
community, one distribution from this church provided for 729 people! Seeing the client’s faces ‘light
up” when they received the familiar ‘rice & beans’ is an amazing feeling - nothing can reward like that.

Latinos are at great risk of developing diet-related illnesses — making healthy food options even more
important. Beans and rice have a symbiotic relationship in which the amino acids of each complement
one another to form a complete protein, which is the foundation for the growth and development in
humans. When beans are combined with grains like rice, a complete protein is born. Rice is rich in
starch, an excellent source of energy and has iron and some protein. Rice is one of the few foods in the
world which is entirely non-allergenic and gluten-free. Beans contain a good amount of iron and a



greater amount of protein than rice. Together they make up a complete protein, which provides each of
the amino acids the body cannot make for itself. Beans are super healthy, super versatile and super
affordable. They are high in antioxidants, fiber, protein, B vitamins, iron, magnesium, potassium, copper
and zinc. Eating beans regularly may even decrease the risk of diabetes, heart disease, colorectal cancer,
and help with weight management.

We strive to create awareness about food insecurity in the Hispanic community and to give people the
help they need on the road out of poverty. But food banks can’t end hunger alone. That is why we are
so grateful for partners like S. L. Gimbel Fund and The Community Foundation who come onboard in
adventurous ways to help in the effort. After all, no one should be forced to compromise their family's
nutrition or to limit their choices. Our team is committed to sourcing as much protein as we can for
those we serve. It inspires us when grantors understand the need for protein and find a way to provide
help for what is so valuable.

The following are optional questions and relate to demographic information on clients served. This
helps us provide a broader picture of your organization and populations being served:

Which Category best describes your organization (choose one):

Animal Services

Arts & Arts Support
Basic Needs Support
Cultural
College/University
Educational Institution
Senior Citizen Support
Shelter

Service Organization
Women & Children
Youth Development
Education Support
Environmental

Faith Based Organization
Humanitarian
Medical/Health/Public Agency
Residential/Recovery

What is your organizations primary Program Area of Interest?

Arts & culture
Animal Welfare
Children & Families
Civic & Public Benefit
Education



Approximate percentage of clients served in Economic Group.

At/Below Poverty Level:
Homeless/Indigent:
Migrant Worker:
Working Poor:

Other:

Approximate percentage of clients served from grant funds in each population category.

Single Adults:

Families:

Single Parent Families:
Disabled:

Ethnic Minority:

LGBTG:

Abused Women/Children:
Homeless/Indigent:
Immigrants:

Military:

Parolees:

Students:

Elderly:

Children/Youth {those notincluded in Family):
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o1 699 (2018) MONTGCMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc.
mtatement of Funclional Expenses

eation SO1/EN3) and SOTEMI] organizyions RSt COMpiRte it CONMNG. Al 0her OrIRniztions must completa colurn KA},
Chetl i Sehedule O contains a responsa o note to any ling in this Part X

]

D0 DOt DCKR IMAMIIE reporied oR Bries 6O,

7io, 88, 8, and 10D of Part .

A8
Total expenses

[
Program senvice
Sxpares

Fundraising

1 Geants and esher assistance to domestic organiztions

and dernestiz governments., See Part IV, Tne 21
2 Grants and oner assistance 1o domastic

inkhviduals. Ses Part I, line 22

3 Grants and otrer assistance o foraign
Crganizations, foreign govammenis, and forsign
individuals. Ses Part IV, fnes 15 and 18

4  Benefils paid 1o of for memoas
£ Compensation of cuzen: ofsoers, d
trustess, and key employzas

& Cospenzation not Mmeluded abave, to dispunied

parsons |35 defned wndar see

fice 46585 1)1 and

persons described in section 49581643)(BY

7 Other salaries and wages

ExXpses

32,495,547,

32,439,947,

171,220,

36,8586,

86,207,

1,127,027,

450,382,

55,356,

111.283.

& Pension plan accruals and ceatribuSons [meleds
secton 401(k) and 233(b) employes contributions)

g Otheremployezbensfits || .

10 Payrell taxes

238,120,

1%3.922.

11,642,

32,556,

11 Feas for Sevices nonampcyess):

a Management

b Legal

@ Lobbying

e Professicnal fundreising serdiees. Sze Pat 1Y, line 17

f Invesamen: management fees

g Cther. {If Ene 11g amount exseeds 14% of fine 25,
cofumn {4} amount, list ine 11g 2xpences an Sch 0}

12 Ackertising and promction

12 Office eMpenses || e,

14 informaion technology |
15 HAoyates
18 Ocoupancy |
7 Tava

16 Payments of ravel of entenainment expenses
or any fedaral, state, or Jooal public oficials |

Confarences, ConvEntions,
Intarast

ahd mestings

105,187,

20.000.

178.

15,002,

231,387,

65,664,

23,306.

135,387,

54,123,

47,230,

6.5635.

176,573,

162,318,

13,755,

111,076,

33,368,

11,1013.

13,304,

3,313,

3,391,

7,020.

7.020,

nswance

FEpRya

Cepreciaton, depistion, and amkeaization | |

238,424,

214,582,

23.842.

38,411,

miscellaneous expenses in e 242, if fne
24e amount exceeds 10% of Bne 23, column (4}

amount, list line 24¢ penses
USDA HANDLING

euses-,ue’meﬁ. not covered
shore. (05 i xpens

o Scheduls 0.}
TET

35,103.

3,308.

410,570.

410.570.

Q.

D,

FOOD PURCHASES

171,135,

171.115.

Q.

D,

EQUIPMENT REPATRE

111.627.

106,046,

5,581,

G.

POSTAGE AND SHIPPING

90,560,

81,567,

8.353.

0.

LUB L e R o g ]

All other sapanses

154,543.

134,082,

27,147,

13,320.

25  FotalfuncEonal expenses. Add fnes 1 theaugh 242

35,950, 316.

35,367,245,

202,233,

373,778,

28 Joint costs. Comglets this line only if the organization
reported in ealumn (B) joint costs from a eombined
educational campaign and fundraising sokcitation.
Checkbeze - || ot tokoonng 300 58-2 1450 5587201

3001 12-11-38

i
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Form ggu

Departmant of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(¢), 527, or 4947(a){1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
P~ Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

P~ Go to www.irs.gov/Form880 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public

‘Inspection

A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2018 andending JUN 30, 2019
B Chack if C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
thanse. |_MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc.
Shange Doing business as 63-0931846
ot Nurmber and street {or P.0. bux if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
oy 521 TRADE CENTER STREET (334)263-3784
B City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Grossrecaipts $ 35,693,139,
el MONTGOMERY, AL 36108 H{a} Is this a group return
D?gﬁlif:a' F Name and address of principal officers Richard A. Deem for subordinates? [ Ives No
Prdng | same as C above H{b) Ao all subordinates ncluded? |__]Yes || No

|_Tax-exempt status: 501(e)3)_ ] 501(c)(

) (insertno) [ ] 4947iay(1)or [_| 507

J Wehsite: p» Wwww . montgomeryareafoodbank. org

If "No," attach a list.
Hlc) Group exemption number P

{see instructions)

K_Form of erganization; Corporation [ | Trust [ ] Association [ | Other b

| L. Year of formation: 1S 87| m State of legal domicile: AL

[Parti| Summary

o| 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: THE FOOD BANK OPERATES AS A
e CLEARING HOUSE FOR THE COLLECTION, SORTING, STORING AND DISTRIBUTION
E 2 Check this box P» |:| if the organization discontinued its operations er disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
%’ 3 Number of voting members of the goveming body Part i, lineda) ... ... o 3 30
g 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b) 4 30
@ § Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 {Part V, line 2a) 5 38
1*; 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If NeCSSaNY) 6 100
%| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIll, column (o T = S 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, IN@ 38 ... ...t 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
ol 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl ine th) 33,976,207, 34,672,655,
E| @ Program service revenue {Part VIll, ne2gy 1,148,895, 1,012,720.
% 10 Investment income (Part VIil, column (A}, ines 3,4, and 7d} ... 1,536. 2,161,
1 41 Other revenue (Part VIll, column {8), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10¢, and 116) 19,588. 5.603.
12 Total revenus - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column {4), line 12) 35,146,226, 35,693,139,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part kX, column (&), lines 1-3) 32,051,846, 32,499,947,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, celumn (A), line 4) 0. 0.
p| 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 510) ... 1,573,831. 1,641,554,
@| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (&), line 11e) .. .. (. 0.
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), ine 25) P 373,778, : E
W 47  Other expenses (Part X, column (&), lines 11a-11d, 11f-2dey 1,807,387, 1,808,815,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part [X, column (A), line25) 35,433,164, 35,950,316.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from ine 12 il -286,938. -257 177,
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
%§‘ 20 Total assets (Part X, e 18) 7,101,050, 6,848,343,
<4 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) L 51,606, 56,076,
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from ne 20 ... 7,049,444, 6,792,267,

[Part Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, 1 declare that | have examined this return, including accompasying schedules and statements, and #o the bast of my knowledge and beliet, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here Richard A. Deem, CEQ
Type or print name and title
Prin¥/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date .‘;h"‘d‘ (]} PTN
Paid Julia L. Stevenson Julia L. Stevenson stengod [PO0361616
Preparer [Firm'sname p PARKER, GILL, EISEN & STEVENSON, P.C. Firm'sEINm 63-1003744
Use Only |Firm'saddress. 4228 Lomac Street
Montgomery, AL 36106 Phonzno.334-270-8061
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (S0 INSIUCH NS L et s s srisssess Yes [:] No

832001 12-31-16

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Form 990 (2018)

See Schedule 0 for Organization Mission Statement Continuation



Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY ARFEA FOOD BANK, Inc. ) 63-09831846 page2
Part il | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part il L.
1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:

THE FOOD BANK OPERATES AS A CLEARING HOUSE FOR THE COLLECTING,
SORTING, STORING AND DISTRIBUTING OF EDIBLE FOOD TO QUALIFIED
AGENCIES; WHO IN TURN PASS THE FOOD ALONG TO ALABAMA'S "FOOD INSECURE"
CITIZENS.

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior FOrm 990 0T 990EZ7 oo eeee oo [ves [XIno
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3  Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? DYes No

1§ "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service ascornplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses,
Section 501(c)(3) and 501{c}(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code‘ )(Expensess 35,197,835- including grants of § 32,499,947- ) (Ravenuns 846,364. }
THE STRUCTURE OF QUR ORGANIZATION PROVIDES INCREASED OPPORTUNITY FOR
SUCCESS TO THE LOCAL COMMUNITY AGENCIES WE SUPPORT BY COLLECTING,
SORTING, (BOTH DRY/STAPLE AND COLD/FROZEN) AND DISTRIBUTING FOOD. ALONG
WITH FOUR OTHER SMALLER PARTNER DISTRIBUTION ORGANIZATIONS (PDO'S)UNDER
QUR_SUPERVISION, WE HAVE A SERVICE AREA REACHING TO 35 OF ALABAMA'S 67
COUNTIES (WITH A POPULATION OF APPROXIMATELY 330,000) AND MORE THAN 800
COMMUNITY AGENCIES. QUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE FOOD TQ THE CHILDREN,
ELDERLY, NEWLY UNEMPLOYED, WORKING POOR, HOMELESS, MENTALLY CHALLENGED,
AND VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND DISASTERS. DURING QUR LAST FISCAL
YEAR, WE DISTRIBUTED MORE THAN 23 MILLION POUNDS OF VITAL NUTRITION TO
THOSE IN NEED.

4b  (Code: ) (Expensos 3 103 ' 360. including grants of § ) {Rovenue 111 ' 399, )
WITHIN OUR SERVICE AREA, 21% OF THE POPULATION ARE FOOD INSECURE. OF
THAT TOTAL, 24% OF ADULTS AND 35% OF CHILDREN ARE LIVING IN POVERTY.
ONE CF OUR MOST EFFECTIVE STRATEGIES IN COMBATING THIS PERVASIVE
PROBLEM IS OUR MOBILE PANTRY PROGRAM. THIS PROGRAM IS DESIGNED TO GO
TO WHERE THE NEEDIEST ARE, AND DISTRIBUTE FOQD DIRECTLY THROUGH OUR
PARTNER AGENCTIES. THIS PROGRAM ALLOWS US TO TARGET REMOTE COMMUNITIES
IN ALABAMA'S "BLACK BELT" AREA (CHRONICALLY AMONG THE MOST
POVERTY-STRICKEN REGIONS IN THE NATION) AS WELL AS METROPOLITAN AREAS.
IN FY15 WE DISTRIBUTED 5,476,761 POUNDS OF FOOD.

dc (Codﬂ: } {Exponsess 6 6 ? 0 5 0 . including grants of $ } (Ravenues 6 2 7 7 2 1 * )
APPROXIMATELY 23% OF SENIORS (60 YEARS & OLDER) IN OUR SERVICE AREA ARE
LIVING IN POVERTY. IN OUR MOST IMPOVERISHED COUNTY, THAT PERCENTAGE
JUMPS TO OVER 36%. IN ORDER TQO HELP QOFFSET THE NEEDS OF OUR SENIORS,
WE ESTABLISEHD A SENIOR SUPPLEMENT PROGRAM THAT, IN FY1l5, PROVIDED
BETWEEN 25-35 POUNDS OF NUTRITIOUS FOQOD ON A MONTHLY BASIS TO 457
SENIORS. WE ALSO PROVIDE TWO EXTRA BOXES IN NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER
SPECIFICALLY TARGETING THE PREPARATION OF HOLIDAY MEALS.

Our Feeding Our Remarkable Kids (FORK) School Pantry Programs works
with local public gchools to create onsite food panties where
chronically hungry children and their families can receive ongoing
gsupport. In FY-17, this program provided 180,591 1lbs of food through
4d  Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
{Expenses § including grants of $ ) {Rovenuss )
4e _Total program service expenses b 35,367,245,

Form 990 (2018)
832002 12-31-18 See Schedule O for Continuation(sg)
2
16461108 752665 0145.00 2018.05000 MONTGOMERY AREA FQOD BANK 0149.001



Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 Page3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501{c){3) or 4947{a){1) {other than a private foundation)?
I "YE5," COMPIEE SCABUIE A ........coeevvooeeveee oo ene s sss s e 41 ee e ees e seeeeresereeesssseneesrserene e 11 X
2 Isthe organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule 0f CONEBUIONST ..o 2 | &
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
Public OffiGe? If "Yes," COMPIEte SCREGUIR §, PAE | _.....coooo oo eesveves s eer s st eteee e e eeesee et e eee et eeeeesseeesestsesseseeasenen 3 X
4 Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h} election in effect
during the tax year? if "Yes,” complete SCHETUIE C, PAIEH _.......ccooeeeoeeeeeeoeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee oo, 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c){4), 501(c)(5}, or 501(c)(E) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounits as defined in Revenue Procedure 98197 Jf “Yas, " complete Schadtile C, Part il ......oooovoeoeeeeeeeeeeooeeeeoo, 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? jr *ves," complete Schedule D, Part | 2] X
7  Did the organization recelve or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? Jf “Yes, " complete Schedle D, Part Il ... 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? £ *yeg, " complete
SCABAUIR D, PAIE Il .....oevvooesssosissososeeeee oo eeeee e oo oo oo e oo o1 e re s e es s s s er st 8 p:4
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
if "Yes," complete SCRedle D, Part IV .o it ettt et ea e eree s s e et e et eee et r et e ree et ar e e eeien 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? Jf 'Yes," complete SCABOUIE I, PAME V' .........cc.ccoveeeeeereereee e eee s eeever et eeeee s aeens 10 X
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VIL, VIII, 1X, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 ff "Yes," cornplete Schedule D,
PATEVE oottt b5 518884 eet e e et ee e ee s er et et eee e nas 11a| X
b Bid the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 f "Yes, " complete SCRBOUIE B, PRI VT ....o..ooooeeoe oo et ee e ee s ereeeees e eesens 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes," complete SChedle D, PArt VI ..o, 11c b4
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 187 I “Yes, " compleie Schedule D, Part IX ... e e ete ittt et et ettt et et e ea et e ate et eaeemn et eeeaar et esanaanrnnans 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 f7 "ves," complate Schedule B, Part X ... 11e | X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11§ X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial staternents for the tax year? Jf "Yes,” complete
SCHEAUIE D, PArES XIAND XH  1...vvvcoreoeveoo oo eeveeoe oo ee st oes oottt ettt 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes, " and if the organization answerad "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xil is optional —............... 112b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b){1HAIE? 1f "Yes, " complete Schedle E . oo 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . | 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of mere than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
Or MOre? [f "Yes," complete SCREtUIE F, PArS F GNG IV oo et eee e s s e sas s e e as e a e e e steser s ereres 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column {4), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? /f “Yes," complate Schedule F, Parts I ARG IV .o.oocoo.oeeeroeeeeeeesoteeeeeoeeeoeseeoeeeeeese oo 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (&), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? Jf "Yes, * complete Schedule F, Parts 1 and IV ..o e 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 1X,
column (A}, lines 6 and 1162 I "Yes," complete SThedule G, Pl ...t ees e ee e 17 | X
18 Did the organization repart more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIl lines
16 and 8a? If "Yes, " COMPIBtE SCNEOUIE G, PRI ... .ovvv.ctiosisieeeioeeeeee e e eeeeeerees s eereee s eees et ees s ee s es e eeeseeeseeeees s eee e 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIli, line 9a? jf "Yes,
compigte Schedule G, Part Il ... i ettt et et ettt et 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f “Yes," complete Schede H oo 20a X
b If "Yes" to dine 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum? .. ... 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government an Part [X, column (A), line 17 if "Yes " complete Schedule | Parts fang il ..., 21 X
832003 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018}
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Form §80 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0831846 page4
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (oniinueq)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part 1X, column (A), line 27 I "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts Fana il .....ooooovooeoeoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e es e e 22 | X

23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part V], Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE J ...ooeeeerioree e e 20522528 58 et e oo oo eee oot eereee 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 f "Yes, " answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. IF"ND, " GO IO HNE 288 ... .. .ottt ettt e s et st sttt 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24k
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time duting the year to defease

ANy tax-eXBMDEDONUST et ettt ettt ettt et ee ettt ee e s e 24c

24d

d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?
25a Section 501(c}{3), 501{c}(4}, and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? if "Yes," complete Scheaule L, PAT T . ..ooeovocveooveeereoeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeen: 25a X
b s the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 880-EZ? f "Yes," complete
SCREOUIE L, PAM I ..o oottt oot s et e e ee oo 25k X
26 Did the organization report any amount en Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? Jj *ves,"
complete Schedule L, Parf il ........c...coooovouvivveeeieeo e e e e et 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key emgployee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," compIete SCHEUUIE L, PAEIH . _...oooo.oocoooeeoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eeeee e e e 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A curmrent or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ff "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ..o eseeeeranns 28a| X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... | 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustes, or direct or indirect awner? if "Yes,” complete SCHEAUIE L, PAMEIV .o oo 28¢ X
29 Did the crganization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f “veg,* complete Schedule M ..o, 29 | X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of ar, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? if "Yas, " complete SCHEGUIE M ... oo e e IO 30 X
31 Did the organization [iquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations?
1F1YES," COMPISE SEROULIS I, PAREL ... oo e et et et s e et et e e e a2 em st et e e e s e e e 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes,” complete
SCHEUUIE N, PAR I oo et ettt 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the crganization under Regulations
sections 801.7701:2 and 301.7701-37 ff “Yes,* complete SCheaule B, PArt I ...___....cooooooeoooorecoveeeeseeeeeeoseeeeseoee oo 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? ff "Ves, * complete Schedule R, Part If, Iil, or IV, and
PAEV, I8 T oooooooooooeooe et ee oot e e e 34 X
35a Did the crganization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section S120)13) T e 35a X
b [f "Yes" to line 354, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? if "Yes," compiete Scheduie R, PArt V, i€ 2 .....coeeeeoveeeeeereeeee oo 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) crganizations, Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
17 "YeS," COMDIEE SCREOUIE R, PRIV, I8 B ....oo.ovveeseeeeoeeeees oot et ee oo 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? 7 "Yes, " compiete Schedule R, Part VI ..o 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule Q and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule G ..o i reiieitieieiiieiiieiiiieiiieiiii 38 | X

| Part V[ Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter-0- if not applicable 1a 10
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ib 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling} winnings 1o prize WINNGIS? ... i i ic | X
832004 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 {2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846  pageb
| Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance ontinueq)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements, ]
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn 2a 38 o
b [f at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employmenttaxretums? | sp | X
Note. if the sum of ines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file {see instructions) E '
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? i "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O ..o, | 3D
4a Atany time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? da X
b If “Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: P
See instructions for filing requirements for FInCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .. . S5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? ... ... 5b X
If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file FOrm BB8B- T 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b [f "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible® | et r et erer e e &b
7 Qrganizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170{c). ;
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a coniribution and partly for goods and services provided to tha pavot? | 7a X
b If “Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
O file FOIM BZB2T . i et et et e st ee e e et e e eee s+ h et enra ettt en et et emt e ettt em et et eeen e eeren 7c X
d lf "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . I 7d ]
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? Yij
g [f the organization received a coniribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as requnred" 74
h [f the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-G? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
spensoring arganization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsocring organizations maintaining doner advised funds,
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49687 T Sa
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donar, donor advisor, or refated person’-’ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, gb
10 Section 501{c){7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VI, linet2 . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 980, Part VIII, line 12, for publicuse of club facilities . [10b
11 Section 501{c}{12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) 11k
12a Section 4947(a){1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If “Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during theyear  ................. 12b
13  Section 501{c¢){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to Issue qualified health plans in more thanone state? . 13a
Note, See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves On hand | 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . .. . f4a X
b If "Yes," has it fited a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation in SCREAUIE O ........ooceevevverevereions 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during The YEar? | e e et e rens 15 X
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N,
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment ingome? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 980 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846  page6
Part Vi | Governance, Management, and Disclosure roreach "ves* response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule C. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains & response or Note 10 ANy Ne I this ParE Ml oo s et sees e
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 13 30
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar commitiee, explain in Schegule 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . ... ib 30
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, krustee, or key BIMPIOYERET || . oo e eee ettt s st 2 | X
3 Did the organization delegate contrel over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employess to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changss to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5§ Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members o Stockholders? [ X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing DGAYT | ... et et bbbt 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to {or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing DOGY? e e, 7b X
8  Did the organization contemperaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
A TDE GOVEIMING DOYT || et e e e s s er s ere s e et e bttt eee e ee e eeree oo 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body ? sb | X
8 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? jf "Yes " provide the names mﬁﬁ;jﬁw O 9 X
Section B. Policies x50 3 requ ; ‘ _ . nof reauired | +f Reveriue Coda.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? | 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990,
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? 1f “No," 9o to line 13 ..o oo oo ) q2a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees reguirad 1o disclose annually interests that could give rise to confliets? 126 | X
c Did the organization regularly and consistently manitor and enforce compliance with the policy? Jjf "Yes, " descripe
in Schedule QO ROW TS WES GONE ... ...ttt ettt ettt e e oot ea e e 12¢ | X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 | X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction poliCY? 14 { X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
parsons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ... ... 15a} X
by Other officers or key employess of the organization 15h | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O {see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity dUMING the YRAI? | e eeeee e ee e se e eeeee e s ee e s e e s s e e s e e s et e oo 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in jeint veniure arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? TP 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed B-AL

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available, Check all that apply.

Own website D Another's website Lipon request D Other fexplain in Schedule C)

19 Describe in Schedule O whether {and if so, how} the organization made its governing documents, confiict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year,

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records B
Richard A. Deem - 334-263-3784
521 TRADE CENTER STREET, MONTGOMERY, AL 36108

832008 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0831846
Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Page 7

Section A, _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

® List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D}, {E}, and {F) if no compensation was paid.

® | ist all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

# List the organization's five current highest compensated employees {other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
abte compensation (Box & of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $108,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

# List all of the organization’s former ofiicers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations,

© List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
rmore than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee,
(A (B} {C} ()] (E} {F)
Name and Title Average | o JLosition Reportakle Reportable Estimated
hours per | tox, usless persen is both an compensation compensaticn amount of
weelk officer and a diractor/lrustes) from from related other
{list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | & . B arganization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related § £ B (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| = g. gu and related
below |5 =2 i‘fi HIE organizations
line} ElEZ|5|&|88l
(1) SARAH MOORE 0.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(2) CARYN HUGHES 0.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
{3) BOBBY BROWN 0.00
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) BILL KELLEY 0.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
{5) JERUSHA ADAMS 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{6) RICHARD ALLEN 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(7) STEVEN BARRANCO 0.00
HMEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(8) MARK BUNTING 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{9) GRACE HANCHROW 0.00
MEMBER b:4 0. 0. 0.
(10} EARL HEALRTH .00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{11) WAYNE HILGERS 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(12) MELODIE JONES 0.00
KEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{13) JOHN H, LUCAS, JR, 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{14) KATRINA SPOONY-MARTIN 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(15} OLIVIA MARTIN 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{16) DONNIE MIMS 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{17) DANIEL MORRIS 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
B32607 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 {2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846  Page8

I Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees {continued)
{A) (B} {c) D) (E) (F)
Narne and title Average | = FoSHion o Reportable Reportable Estimated
hOurs per | pox, unless persan is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/rustas) from from related other
listany | = the organizations compensation
hoursfor | £ 5 organization (W-2/1099-MISC} from the
related | 2| ¥ B (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| 2 | £ g2 |g and related
betow |Z|S|,_|E %iﬁ. 5 arganizations
ine) |2|E|E|5|5E| 5
{18) CHARLES NAaTH 3.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{19) LAWRENCE OAKLEY 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{20) WILLIAM S, NEHILLA 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(21) YVETTE GILKEY-SHUFORD 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(22) BILL STEVENSON 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{23} HELEN CRUMP WELLS 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{24) GEORGE THOMPSON 0,00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
{25) BRYAN WILSON 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(26) TONY BAGGTANO 0.00
PAST PRESIDENT X 0. 0. 0.
1B SUBOLAl ..o 0. Q. 0.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A 171,220. 0. 0.
d_Total {add lines 1b and 1c) 171,220. 0. 9.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed abave) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization B 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employese on
line 1a? if "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ... R OO U S UOO PSPPSR 3 b4
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000% /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH INGIWIGUAL ........oooovovveeoeeeeeevee. 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? if "Vas * complete Schedule J for SUGH DEFSOM oo ettt e esncscins 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax vear.

(A} (B} (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
RKD ALPHA DOG Professional
8001 S 13TH STREET, LINCOLN, NE 68512 Fundraising 133,897,

2 Total number of independent contracters {including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization b 1
See Part VII, Section A Continuation sheets Form 990 (2018)
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MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc.

63-0931846

Form 880
| Part Vil l Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Emplovees (continysd)
{A) {8} € D) {E) {F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours {check all that apply} compensation compensation amount of
per from from related cther
week _ g the organizations compensation
{list any g = organization (W-2/1099-MISC} from the
hours for | = W g {W-2/1099-MISC) organization
related g g . g and related
organizations| £ | 3 2| E organizations
ling) ElIE|E1&|F|2
{27} CLYNT HART 0.00
PAST PRESIDENT X 0. 0. 0.
{28) WARREN MARSHAL 0.00
PAST PRESIDENT X 0. 0. 0.
{29) GARTESA GALBREATH 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(30) ANTHONY HINES 0.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(31) RICHARD DEEM 40.00
EXECUTOR DIRECTOR X 90,053. 0. 0.
{32) DAVID FATA 40,00
DEPUTY DIRECTOR X 81,167. 0. 0.
Total to Part VIl, Section A line 1 .o 171,220.
T
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Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 Page9
[ Part VIl | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note toany line inthis Part VIl ...
' - Cooe ' (A} (8) (G} D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue excluded
exempt function business froz?Btcag(oirjlgder
revenue revenue 519-514
43 1 a Federated campaigns ... ... 1a 9,673, o
& b Membership dues 1b
(3,. ¢ Fundraisingevents . . 1¢ 544,205,
% d Related organizations 1¢
@ e Government grants {contributions) 1e 7,084,264,
,E_ f Al other coniributions, gifts, grants, and
§ similar amounts net included above 1f 27,024 508,
= g Nancash contributions includod in linos 1a-1f $ 25,604,358,
3 h Total AddlinesTa-if .. ..o b 34,672,655,
Business Code
W 2 a Sharxed maintenance fees 624200 1,007,280, 1,007 280,
g b Delivery Fees 624200 5,440, 5 440,
& ¢
§ d
2 e
& f All other program service revenue
g Totat. Addlines@a2f ... ... B> 1,012,720,
3  Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) ..., [ 1,727, 1,727,
4 Incame from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds B
5  Rovaltles ..o B
(i} Reat i) Personal
6a Grossrents . ...
b Less: rental expenses
¢ Rental income or (loss) .
d Netrentalincome of l0S8) ... P
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i Securities {ii) Other
assets other than inventory 434,
b Less: cost ar other basis
and sales expenses 0.
¢ Gainor(oss) ... . 434.
d Netgain or(Joss) ... b 434 434,
o | 8a Grossincome from fundraising events (not
g including $ 544,209, of
% contributions reported on line 1¢). See
% Part IV, line 18 . ... ... a ¢
£ b Less: direct expenses b 0.
© ¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events |l 0.
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
PatlV,line 19 ., a
b Less: direct expenses | . e b
¢ Netincome or {loss) from gaming activities ... |
10 a Gross sales of inventoty, less retums
and allowances ... a
b Lessicostofgoodssold ...
¢ _Net income or {loss) from sales of inventory ... |
Miscellaneous Hevenue Business Code
41 a MISCELLANEOQUS INCOME 624200 4,188, 4,186,
p REJECTED FOOD 524200 1,417, 1,417.
c
d All other revenue
e 5,603,
12 35,693,138, 1,020,484, 0. 0.
832009 12.31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 page 10
| Part IX] Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c){3) and 501{c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must compiete column (A).
Check if Schedule O gontains a response or note(t}g:)g_rmi_iune in this Part IX[ } ............................... (C) ..................... cnmiiiazsy
Do not inelude amounts reported on lines 6b, 8 ; D)
75, 86, 9B, and 10 of Pert VI ot expenses | PN eee - | Gemed: somnans Fé*?;i}éﬁ?égg
1 Grants and other assistance to domastic organizations B v '
and domestic governments. See Part |V, ling 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, fine22 | 32,499,947.] 32,499,947,
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or formembers
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees ... 171,220. 96,896, 8,117. 66,207,
6  Compensatien not incirded above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)()) and
persons described in section 4958{c){3)(B)
7 Othersalariesandwages . ... 1,127,027, 560,382, 55,356, 111,2889.
8 Pensicen plan aecruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b} employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefits 238,120, 193,822, 11,642, 32,556,
10 Payrall taXeS ..o 145,187, 90,000, 178. 15,009,
11 Fees for services {non-employees):
a Management . ... . 231,387. 66,684, 29,306, 135,397,
bolegal e
€ Accounting | ..,
d Lobbying | ..
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, ling 17
f Investment managementfees ...
g Other. (If ling 119 amount exceads 10% of line 25,
cofumn (A} amount, list ling 11g expenses on Sch 0.)
2 Adveddising and promotion
13 Officeexpenses . . 54,199, 47,230. 6,969,
14 Information technolegy .
15 Royalties
16 OCCUPENCY .. ... \\oooooooeoreeeeeecorrr o 176,573, 162,818. 13,755.
17 TtaVEL e ————— 111,076, 99,968. 11,108,
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 13 v 304. 9,313. 3,991.
20 Imterest 7,020, 7,020,
21 Paymentstoaffiliates . .. ...
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 238,424, 214,582, 23,842,
23 Insurance 38,411. 35,103. 3,308.
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered ) o L :
above. (List miscelfaneous expenses in fine 24e. If line
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A) -
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule () -
a USDA HANDLING FEE 410,570. 410,570, 0. 0.
b FOOD PURCHASES 171,115. 171,115, 0. 0.
¢ EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 111,627. 106,046, 5,581. 0.
d POSTAGE AND SHIPPING 90,560. 81,567, 8,993. 0.
e All other expenses 154,549. 114,082, 27,147. 13,320.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1through24e | 35,950,316.[ 35,367,245, 209,293, 373,778.
26 Joint costs. Complets this line anly if the organization
raparied in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation,
Chack here > D if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
832010 12-31-18 Form 880 {2018)
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Form 990 {2018}

MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc,

63~0931846 page 1l

—

[ Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

832011 12-21-18

16461108 752665 0149.00
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{A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-nondinterestbearing ... 955,620.| 1 1,033,313,
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net . 9,833.] 3 9,833.
4 Accountsreceivable, net 57,240.] 4 98,834.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L | | ..o, 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons {as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described ir section 4958(cH3XB), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c){9) voluntary
2 employees’ beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part Il of Sehb. 3]
8 | 7 Notesand loans receivable, NBt . ____.._.......cc..romercrimsrersnsrrnrn 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or USe 2,081,022, s 1,777,890.
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . 32,044.] 9 0.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis, Complete Part Vl of Schedule D | 10a 6,814,523.
b less! accumulated depreciation .. . . 10b 2,886,050. 3,955,291, 10¢ 3,928,473,
11 Investments - publicly traded securities . . 11
12 Investments - other securities, See Part IV, line 11 12
13 [nvestments - program-related, See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets ..., 14
15 Otherassets, See Part IV, ine 11 15
16__Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 {mustecual line34) ... 7,101,050.] 16 6,848,343,
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 42,946.] 17 il,760.
18 Grants payable | | 18
19  Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
» | 22 Loans and other payablas to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
é key employees, highest compensated employees, and disgualified persons.
2 Complete Part Il of Schedule L . 22
|23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties .. 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Cther liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
E L 3L O 8,660.] 25 44,316,
26 Total liabilities. Add lines17throuah 25 .o 51,606.] 25 56,076,
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958}, check here b and
2 complete lines 27 through 29, and fines 33 and 34,
S |27 Unrestrictednetassets . 6,754,307.| 27 6,524,869,
2 | 28 Temporarily restricted netassets 295,137.1 28 267,398,
3 28 Permanently restricted net assets 29
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here B |:,
5 and complete lines 30 through 34,
g 30 Capital stock or trust principal, orcurrentfunds 30
¥ | 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund 31
% 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
Z | 33 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances . 7,049,444, 33 6,792,267,
34 _ Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 7,101,050.] 34 6,848,343,
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63~-0931846 page12
l Part XI ] Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response crnotetoany line inthis Part X1 i e i:]
1 Total revenue {must equal Part VI, column (4}, line 12) 1 35,683,139,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25} 2 35,850,316,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from bipet 3 ~257,177.
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (&) 4 7,045,444.
5 Netunrealized gains §osses) an INVESIMENtS et 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities 8
T INVESIMBALBXDBNSES || i ieis it be sttt et oot ee e eer e ereees 7
8 Priorperiod adiUSIMENTS | ettt ettt et 8
g Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule Q) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 {must equal Part X, line 33,
column (BY) e i s veenr st s 10 6,792,267,
| Part XlI| Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XU .. it @
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 980 I___| Cash Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountarnt? 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled ot reviewed on a
separate basis, consclidated basis, or both:
C] Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2| X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis m Conselidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

¢ If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2e | X

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O,
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Actand OMB Circular A1337 . e ettt ettt 3a| X
b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken tounderge such audits b X
Form 990 (2018)
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SCHEDULE A . . . OMB No, 1545-0047
Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or 990-EZ} . . . - .
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c){3) organization or a section
4947a}{1) nonexempt charitable trust. :
Department of the Treasury B> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenua Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form880 for instructions and the latest information, Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

| Part1 | Reason for Public Charity Status (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 [
2 []
s [
s [

L]

0 oo O

M

10

11
12

[0

o

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in  section 170{b)(1)}{A)(i).

A schoo! described in section 170{b){1){A)i). {(Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-£2).)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b}{1){A)(iii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{b){1}{A){iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170{b){1}{A}){iv}. (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170{b){1){A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b){THA)(vi). (Complete Part 1.}

A community trust described in section 170{b)(1)(A){vi). (Complete Part L)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170{b){1){A)}{ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture {see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and {2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 508{a){2}. (Complete Part Hl)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the funclions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations desctibed in section 509{a){1) or section 509{a){2). See section 509(a)(3}). Check the box in

lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

D Type L A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:] Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization{s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supporied
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ ] Type il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type lil non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement {see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e I:l Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type H, Type Ill

3 =k

Enter the number of supported organizations
Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

functionally integrated, or Type lIl non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

{i) Name of supported {ii) EIN (i) Type of erganization | m} Lf}‘“gv%’rgiar'l“zgégsﬂ:zma? {v} Amount of menetary {vi) Amount of other
. ! Yaur g 2

organization (described on lines 1-10 support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)

9 above (see instructions)) Yes No pRort { ) pport ¢ )

Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ. 832021 10-11-18  Schedule A (Form 980 or 980-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-£2) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pagep
[Partll|  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(1v) and 170(B){T)(A){vi)
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization faited to qualify under Part [l1. If the crganization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lll.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) b= {a) 2014 {b} 2015 {c) 2016 {dy 2017 {e} 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")
2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization withcut charge

4 Total, Add lines 1 through3

5 The portion of totat contributions
by each persen {other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shewn an line 11,
column (f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4.

Sectlon B. Total Support
Galendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) b~ {a) 2014 {b) 2015 {c} 2018 {d) 2017 (e} 2018 (f} Total
7 Amounts fromlined ...

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

9 Netincome from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10  Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VL) ...

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, elc. (see INStructoNS) 12 |

13 First five years. If the Form 920 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this boX and SE0P Mere i i et et ie e e
Section C. Eomputatlon of Public Support Percentage

14 Public suppeort percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column ) 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part 1, line 14 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2018, If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here, The organization gualifies as a publicly supported organization 1
b 33 1/3% support test - 2017, if the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here, The organization gualifies as a publicly supported organization » [:I

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018, If the organization did not check a box an line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here, Explain in Part Vi how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . p- D
b 10% ~facts-and-circumstances test - 2017, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, i6b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the crganization meets the "facts-and-circumstances® test, check this box and  stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... b I:l
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a bax on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions | D
Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A {Form 990 or 980-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 Pages
| Eart l!l ] Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509{a}{2)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.}
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) b {a) 2014 {b) 2015 {c) 2016 {d) 2017 {e} 2018 (f} Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. {Do not

include any "unusualgrants.’y  [30611916.B0677585.36541837.33991856.(34699245.1166522439

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the

organization's tax-exempt purpose | 1244999, 1253513.] 1301228.] 1148895.| 1012720.| 5961355,

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid io
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmentai unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 . 131856915.[31931098.[37843065.35140751.[35711965.[172483794
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons 0.

b Amounts included on fines 2 and 3 rocoived
from ather than disqualifiad persons that
excead tho greater of $5,000 or 196 of the

amounton line 13 for theyear D v
cAddlines7aand7b ... 0.
8 Public support. [Sustract lns 7 from line 62 172483794
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) - {a} 2014 {b} 2015 {c} 2016 {d) 2017 {e} 2018 {f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6 31856915,[31531098.37843065.135140751.|35711965.[172483794

$0a Gross income from interest,
dividends, paymenis received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,

and income from similar sources 1,908. 1,203, 883. 1,536. 1,727, 7,257,
b Unrelated business faxable incoms

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses

acquired after June 30, 1976
¢ Add lines 10z and 10b 1,908. 1.,203. 883. 1,536. 1,727. 7,257,

11 Netincome from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon

12 Otherincome. Bo not include gain

loss from the sale of capital
assots (Explain It PAtVL) e 2,133, 6,128, 3,939, 4,186.| 16,386,

13 Total suppart. (Add linas 9, 106, 11,and 12y 3 LB60856.{31932301.37850076.35146226.35717878.[172507437

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stOp REre . ... e iieimeisiiieiiieiiiiisiriisiiiisiiisiiiiiisiisiisiiiiiiiii: P l:}
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2018 (iine 8, column (f), divided by fine 13, column @ . 15 98.89 u
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A Partlll, fine 15 ... 16 99,98 s
Section D, Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2018 {line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (i} 17 .00 Y%
18 Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part L, ine 17 18 .01 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2018, If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . -3
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2017, [f the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . P m
20 Private foundation, If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... » [:j
532023 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
16

16461108 752665 0149.00 2018.05000 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK 0149.001



Schedule A (Form 990 or 950-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 Page 4
[Part V] Supporting Organizations

{Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A

and B, If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No
1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's govemning L.
documents? f “No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1
2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(@)(1) or (2)? if "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509{2)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), {5}, or (B)? Jf "Yes," answear
(b} and (c} below. 3a
b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501{(c){4), (5), or {6} and :
satisfied the public suppaort tests under section 509{a)2)7 (f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the arganization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? jf "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3¢
4a Was any supporied organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization™? jf
“Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part i, answer (b) and {c) below. 4a
b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes, " describe in Part V| how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supetvised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b
¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 507(¢)(3) and 509(@)(1) or {2)7 If “Yes," explain in Part Vl what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support 1o the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2XE)
PUIpOsSes. 4c
Sa Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? Jf "Yes,"
answer (b} and (c) below (if applicabie). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including () the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substifuted, or removed; (i} the reasons for each such action;
(i) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). Sa
b Type | or Type H only, Was any added or substituted supperted organization part of a class already '
designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c
6 Did the organization provide support {whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to '
anyone other than (i} its supported organizations, (i} individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by ane or more of its supported organizations, or (il other supporting organizations that also
support or bensefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes, " provide detail in
Part VI. 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(cH3)(C})}, a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributer? jf “ves," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ2), 7
8 Did the organization make a [oan o a disqualified person {as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77
If "Yes," complete Part | of Scheduie L. (Form 990 ar 990-EZ), 8
9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectiy at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4246 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509{){1) or (2)? I "Yes, " pravide detail in Part VI. Sa
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controfling interest in any entity in which :
the supporting organization had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI, 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person {as defined in line 9a} have an ownership interast in, or derive any perscnal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? jf "yes, * provide detail in Part V1. 9¢
10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting crganizations, and all Type HI non-functienally integrated
supporting organizations)? f "Yes," answer 70b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
—.. Jetermine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b
832024 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 930 or 980-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63~-0931846 pPages
[ Part IV Supporting Organizations ontinued!

Yes [ No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b} and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b Afamily member of a person described in {a) above? 11b
¢ _A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or {b) above? jf “Yes® 1 a,_b, or ¢_nravide detail in Part VI 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax yeai? If "No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were aflocated among the supported

organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? f "Yes, " explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization{s) that operated,
ol i ization 2

——..supervised. or controlled the supporting organizat
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization{s)? If "No," describe in Part VI fow control
or manggement of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlied or managed

the supported organization(s) 1
Section D. All Type lil Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previcusly provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i} appointed or elected by the supported
organization{s) or {ii} serving on the governing body of a supported organization? Jf “ng,” explain in Part Vi how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in {2}, did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant veice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes, " describe in Part Vi the role the organization's

- {in thi -
Section E. Type Il Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions),
a m The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b m The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Compiete line 3 below.
¢ [ The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI fow you supported a government entity (see instructions)
2  Activities Test. Answer (a) and {b) below. Yes [ No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? Jf “Yes,* then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the arganization’s involvement, one or more

of the organization's supported organization{s) would have teen engaged in? Jf “Yes," explain in Part VI the

reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer {a) and {b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part V1. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? Jf *Yes " describe in Part VI the rofe plaved by the organization in this regard 3b
832026 10.11.18 Schedule A (Form 980 or 980-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pages
PartV | Type [l Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a}{3) Supporting Organizations
1 B Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part Vi) See instructions. All
other Type [l non-functionaily integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E,

B
Section A - Adjusted Net [ncome {A) Prior Year © EL:)rtriir:a:)fear

1 Net shortterm capital gain

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 Other gross income {see instructions)

4  Addlines 1 through 3

5 Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross incorne or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income {see instructions)

7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adijusted Net income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

o | |w |-

a

-

B} C t Y
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ® (olgtrigiai) =

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-ugse assets {see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a_ Average monthly value of securities 1a
b _Average monthly cash balances 1ih
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d_Total {(add lines 1a, 1b, and ig) 1d
e Discount claimed for bicckage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part V1)
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Sublract line 2 from line 1d
4  Cash deemed held for exempt use, Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions)
Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3}
Multiply line 5 by .035
Recoveries of prior-year distributions
Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line &)

L[]

W |~ {;m |
W~ (O

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior vear {from Section A, line 8, Column A)
Enter 85% of line 1

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A}
Enter greater of line 2 orline 3

[+ 00 R [ | O P

Income tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction {see instructions) 3]
7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type lll supporting organization (see
instructions).

L2 13, 0 R [JL 0 U0 Y

Schedule A (Form 950 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pagev
{Part V | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations /ontinued)
Section D - Distributions Current Year
1___Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity
Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets
Qualified set-aside amounts (prior iIRS approval required)
Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.
Total annhual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
{provide details in Part V). See instructions.
9 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section G, line 6
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

00 4~ {0 {h | o

ti) (i) (ifi}
Section £ - Distribution Allocations (ses instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

1 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, ine 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018 {reason-

able cause required- explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013

From 2014

from 2015

From 2016

From 2017

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

i__Carryover from 2013 not applied {see instructions}
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3§,

4 Distributions for 2018 from Section D,

ling 7: 8
a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2018 distributable amount
¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5§ Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zerg, explain in Part V. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2019, Add lines 3j
and 4e.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014

Excess from 2015

Excess from 2016

Excess irom 2017

Excess from 2018

18]

TK|™e a0 (o

{3 e T {0 1 o 1]

Schedule A {(Form 990 or 980-E2} 2018
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Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FCOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pages

| Part VI | Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part I, line 10; Part IL, line 172 or 17b; Part Ill, ine 12:
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 93, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section G,
line T; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, fines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

832028 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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. . OMB Na. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements 2. 124200
{Form 990) B~ Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 20 1 8

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 8, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12h. "
Department of the Treasury B~ Attach to Form 990. Open to, Public
Internal Rovanus Service BGo to www.irs.qov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

|Part] | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the
organization answared "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6,

{a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total numberatendofyear . ...
Aggregate value of contributions to (during year}
Aggregate value of grants from (during vear)
Aggregate value atend of year ..
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal conteol?
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? . i e rera (] Yes [ Ino
[Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered *Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, fine 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
|:| Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education} D Preservation of a historically important land area
|:] Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure
[:’ Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d i the organization held a qualified conservation cantribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

[S B N N P

D Yes [:} No

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin @ . ... ... 2¢
d Number of conservation easements included in {c} acquired after 7/25/08, and not on a historic structure
listed in the National RegiSter | | . oo ee e eeeseres ———— 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p-
4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periadic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? .. D Yes D No
8 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of viclations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
P
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
]

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170{h)(4}B){)
and section 170MANBIIDT | et e e [Cves [Ine
9 In Part Xlil, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for

conservation easements,
| Part I | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 8.
1a [f the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XH,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 {ASC 958), to report in #ts revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

{i} Revenue included on Form 980, Part Viil, line 1 P 3

{ii} Assetsincluded in Form 880, Part X e |

2  Ifthe organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 {ASC 858) relating to these ftems:

a Revenue included on Form 880, Part VIl ne b B
b Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X o o s 2
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Schedule D (Form 890) 2018

832051 10-26-18
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Schedule D {Form 980} 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0031846 page2
[Partili | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets oninued)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items
{check all that apply):
a [__] Public exhibition
b E] Scholarly research
c D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and exptain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIl.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
10 be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ... [ JYes
I Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, ine 21.

d D Loan or exchange programs

e D Cther

[:‘No

1a |s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
an Form 990, PAXT e e ettt b e e en e
b 1 "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table;

|:!No

Distributions during the year

Ending DAlANCE || | | ...t e bbbttt eee e 1t

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?

b _If "Yes " explain the arrangement in Patt XlII. Check here if the explanation has been providedon Part XII o D
{PartV | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

{b) Prior year {c) Two vears back | (d) Three years back | {e) Four vears back

- % oo
hd
&
=Y
=
o
a
m
o
=
=,
5
@
-
o
1]
-
@
m
=

{a} Current year

1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions |,
Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
Grants or schalarships
Other expenditures for facilities
and programs
Administrative expenses

g Endofyearbalance .
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance {ine 1g, column (a)) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment B %

b Permanent endowment B %

¢ Tempotarily restricted endowment P %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equafl 100%.

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization

o o 0 o

—h

by: Yes | No
(i) unrelated OrganiZations ||| ... et ettt e, 3afi}
(i) related OFGANIZANONS || .. .. . oot et ee et r e enon  3alii)

b If "Yes" on line 3afii}, are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3h

4 Describe in Part Xill the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Part V1 ] Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 890, Part X, line 10Q.

Description of property {a) Cost or other {b} Cost or other {c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis {other) depreciation
1a land | 354,735, . 354,735,
b Buildings ... 4,530,736, 2,886,050.] 1,644,686,
¢ Leasehold improvements 5,825, 5,825,
d EQUipment 1,901,255, 1,901,255,
@ OWer ... 21,872, 21,872,
Total, Add Eines 1a through e, (Column () must equal Form 999, Part X, colump (8L line 106 oo | 3,928,473,

Schedule D (Form 980) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63~0931846 page3
| Part Vil| Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 283, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
{a) Description of security or category (inciuding name of sacurity) {b) Book value {c} Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

{1) Financial derivatives
{2) Closely-held equity interests
{3} Cther

(A}

{B)

{C}

)

(=)

{F}

(@)

{H)
Total. (Col. (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) b~
] Part VIll| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 894, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Bescription of investment {b) Bock value {c) Method of valuation; Cost or end-of-year market value

(1
{2)
{3}
(4
(5]
{6}
{7)
{8}
{9}
Total. {Col. {b} must equal Form 980, Part X, col. {B) line 13.) >
| Part X | Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 8984, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 980, Part X, iine 15.
{a} Description (b) Book value

EATaRIeIRLE 'lqtl.l
Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 880, Part IV, tine 11e or 111, See Form 990, Part X, line 25,

1, {a} Description of liahility {b} Book value
{1} Federal income taxes
( PAYROLL TAXES AND WITHHQOLDINGS 5,610.
3 CAPITAL, LEASE PAYABLE 38,706,
@)
{5)
6)
4]
(8
)]
Total. (Colump (b} must equal Form 990, Part X. col, (BIine 253 e B 44,316.

2, Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xill, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 {ASC 740%. Check here if the text of the foolnote has been provided in Part Xl D
Schedule D {Form 990) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc.

63-0931846 Page4

Part Xl | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Compilete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 880, Part VI, line 12:

1 | 35,700,435,

a Netunrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of faciliies 2b
c Recoveries of prioryear grants e, 2¢
d Other (Describe in Part XL e 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1
4 Amocunts included on Form 920, Part Vlli, tine 12, but not on line 1:

Ze 7,296,

3| 35,693,139,

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XHL) | .. 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. This must i line 12.}

dg 0.

5 | 35,693,139,

equal Form 99, Pg
| Part X1l | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return,

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a,

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line T but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25;

1|1 35,857,612,

a Donated services and use of facilities . 2a 7,296,
b Prioryearadjustments | |, 2b

C OhBrIOSSES | . . ... e enseen 2c

d Other(Describe in Part XIL} et e 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses net included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b da

2¢ 7,296,

3 | 35,950,316,

B Other {Describe in Part Xill.)

¢ Addlinesdaanddb | ...,
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and dc. (This must equal Form 990, Part | _fine 18)

4c 0.

5 | 35,950,316,

| Part Xill] Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part ll, lines 3, 5, and 8; Part [il, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part X},

lines 2d and 4b,; and Panrt X1, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

832054 10-29-18
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OME No. 1545-0047

{Form 930 or 880-EZ)| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990 or Form 890-EZ. Opeh te Public

Inteenal Revenus Sarvice B _Go to www.irs,gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information, Inspection

MName of the organization Employer identification number

MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not
required to complete this part,

IEartll

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check alf that apply.

a Mait solicitations e Solicitation of non-govermment grants
b [__] Intemet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants
c D Phone solicitations g E Special fundraising events

d In-person solicitations
2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual {ncluding officers, directors, trustees, or

key employees listed in Form 990, Part Vli) or entity in connection with prefessional fundraising services? Yes D No

b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities {fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

iii} Did v} Amount paid . .
{i) Name and address of individual i p e f£n haiser (iv} Gross receipts tg %or retaineﬁ by} {vi) Amount paid
or entity (fundraiser) (if) Activity hava ct{;st?d!y from activity fundraiser to (or retained by)
contribulions? listed in cal. (i) organization
RKD Alpha Dog Co, Inc - 800 8 Yes | No
13th St, Lincoln, NE 68512 Professional Fundraiser X 544,209, 135,387, 408,812,
TOMAl i e | 544,209, 135,337, 408 812,
3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration
or licensing.
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ. Schedule G (Form 890 or 990-EZ} 2018
832081 10-03-18
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK,

Inc.

63-0931846 page2

Part Il | Fundraising Events. Gomplete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000
of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and Bb. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

Revenue
-

{a) Event #1

{b) Event #2

Ot t
(e) Other events {d} Total events

Mail ings None (add col. {a) thraugh
(event type) {event type) {total number) col. {e))

544,209, 544,209.

544,208. 544,209.

Direct Expenses

8 Entertainment

10

Other direct expenses
Birect expense summary. Add lines 4 through @ in column {d)
Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column {d)

Part 1] | Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6Ba.

. {b) Pull abs/instant - (d) Total gaming {add

§ {a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo {e) Other gaming col. {a) through col, (c})
g
5

1 Grossrevenue .............ooceeceeieieeen..
»| 2 Cash prizes
&
o
38| 3 Moncash PHZes
it
8| 4 Rentffaciitycosts
E

5 Otherdirectexpenses ...

[ Yes % | Yes % | Yes %

6 Volunteerlabor . .. L No [ INo [_INo

7 Direct expense summary. Add fines 2 through Sincolumn () >

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, ColuMN (@) ..ot ieeesresensrsrsnsnsssenes P
9 Enter the state(s) in which the crganization conducts gaming activities:

a Is the organization ficensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?
b If "No," explain:

10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?
b If “Yes," explain:

B32082 10-03-18 Scehedule G (Form 930 or 890-EZ) 2018
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGCOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pages

11 Poes the organization conduct gaming activities wWith nonmembers? L___| Yes |:| No
12 s the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed
t0 administer ChArtable GAMING? ... .. oo oeeoeeeoee oo s e eeeeeee e oo eeeree oo ressesrses e s L Jves [INo
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a Theorganization's facility ... . e e 13a %
b Anoutside TaGIIILY | .. et e e s 13b %
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and records:
Name P
Address P
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? . . [ Yes '____] No
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization b $ and the amount

of gaming revenue retained by the third party B $
¢ If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

Name P

Address P

16 Gaming manager information:

Name P

Gaming manager compensation B $

Description of services provided B

[:f Director/officer m Employee E::] Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:
a Is the erganization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the State Gaming Hoense? e eeeee oo Lves [Ino
b Enter the armount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the
organization's own exempt activities during the tax year b~ §
Part IV| Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b, columns {if) and {v); and Part I}, lines 8, b, 10b,

15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Alse provide any additional information. See instructions.

Schedule G, Part T, Line 2b, List of Ten Highest Paid Fundraisers:

(i) Name of Fundraiser: RKD Alpha Dog Co, Inc

{i) Address of Fundraiser: 800 8 13th St, Lincoln, NE 68512

Part I, Line 2b, Column (wv):

Profegssional Fundraigser is used to handle mailings and solicitations of

potential and past donors.

§32083 18.03-18 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E7) MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 pagea
[Part IV | Supplemental Information (continued)

Scheadule G {Form 890 or 990-EZ)
832084 04-01-18
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Schedule | (Form 990} MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 PpPage2
IPart IV ] Supplemental Information

the USDA grant are checked.

Schedule 1 {Form 990)
8322481
04-01-18
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23, :

Depariment of the Treasury B Attach to Ferm 990. Ope-n-to P.Ub"c
Internal Revenue Servica B~ Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846
{Part | | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box({es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VI, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lii to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[ Firstclass or charter travel ] Housing allowance or residence for personal use
I:l Trave! for companions ':I Payments for business use of personal residence
[:] Tax indemnification and gross-up payments E:] Health or social club dues or initiation fees
I:] Discretionary spending account m Personal services (such as iaid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Partllltoexplain . . ib
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the GEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? . ... ... 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's
CEQ/Executive Director, Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization te
establish compensation of the CEQ/Executive Director, but explain in Part lll.
Compensation committee D Written employment contract
D Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the beard or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of Control payment 4a X
b Participate in, or receive payment {rom, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? . 4b X
¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c X
If “Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part ili.
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c){4), and 501{c}{29) crganizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 890, Part Vi, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
@ THE OIGANIZAMONT oo oot e e e et e e e Sa p:4
b Any related organization? 5b X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part [ll.
6 For persons listed on Form $90, Part VlI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
8 The OIGANIZAIONT | . oottt e et e oo e oo 6a X
b Any related OXganiZatioN? et et eee et r e e eer e 6b X
If “Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part lif,
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part Vil, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines & and 82 1§ “Yes, " desCribe 0 Part I 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VH, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Partil ... 8 X
9 If"Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 83 4988-6{C)7 ... g
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 380. Schedule J (Form 990) 2018

832111 10-26-18
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SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons OMB No. 1545-0047

{Form S50 or 990-EZ) | p» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 20 1 8
28b, or 28c, or Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40h.
Department of the Tronsury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-E2, Open To Public
internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form980 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

Part | | Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501 (c)(@}, and 50%(c)(29} organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 25a or 25b, or Form $90-EZ, Part V, line 40b.

1 b} Relationship bet disqualified d} Corrected?
{a} Name of disqualified person (b) :elrson gdeo‘rng;:i?zatign {c) Descripticn of transaction (\”es No

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
section 4958 |

[ Partll | Leoans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-E2Z, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the organization
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 8, or 22.

{a) Name of {b) Relationship | (¢} Purpose (dlf'-mhfw {e} Original {f) Balance due (g} In {ngg{g\ﬁd {i} Writen
interested person with organization of loan mg;‘:i';;ﬁ:n? principal amount default? | immittee? | 20reement?
To {From Yes| No |Yes| No | Yes | No

O Al e e A B 3

[ PartlIl] “Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 27.

{a} Name of interested persen {b) Relationship between {e) Amount of {d) Type of {e) Purpose of
interested person and assistance assistance assistance
the organization

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ, Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ} 2018

832131 10-25-18
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Schedule L {Form 890 or 990-E7) 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0531846 page2
Part IV | Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28¢.

{a) Name of interested person {b) Relationship between interested {c) Amount of {d) Description of é?éasr?iggﬂgn?é

person and the organization transaction transaction revenues?

Yes No
Thompson Ingurance owner of company is 59,698.Liability i X
US Ameribank/Vallevy Nation pboard member is ban 255,809.Food bank h X
WSFA News company which 27,500, Purchased A X

] Part V | Supplemental Information.

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

Sch L, Part IV, Business Trangactions Involving Interested Persons:

{(a) Name of Person: Thompson Insurance

{b) Relationship Between Interested Person and Qrganization:

owner of company is board member

(d) Description of Trangaction: Liability insurance was purchased

through hig company.

{a) Name of Persgon: US Ameribank/valley National

{(b) Relationship Between Interested Persgson and Organization:

board member is banker

(d) Description of Transaction: Food bank has their cash deposits with

this bank

{(a)} Name of Person: WSFA

(b) Relationship Between Interested Pergon and Organization:

News company which advertising is purchachased is operated by board memeber

(d) Degcription of Transaction: Purchased Advertising

Schedule L {Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2018
832132 10-25-18

37
16461108 752665 0145.00 2018.05000 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK 0149.001



16461108 752665 0149.00

SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions
{Form 980}

B~ Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, lines 29 or 30.

OMB Ne. 1545-0047

2018

Dapartmaent of the Tref:sury > Attach to Form 990, OPEH to Public

Internal Ravenua Servica P Go te www.irs.gov/Formg90 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

|Part] | Types of Property

iterns contributed| Form 990, Part VI, line 1g

{a} {b) fey {d}
Check if Nl{mbgr of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable | contributions or [ amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts

Art - Works of art

Books and publications

Clothing and household goods

Cars and other vehicles

Boatsand planes ...

intellectual property ...

Securities - Publicly traded |

Securities - Closely held stock

-l
w OO0 NG R W -

Securities - Parinership, LLC, or
trust interests

12 Securities - Miscellaneous

13 Qualified conservation contribution -
Historc structures

14 Qualified conservation contribution - Other

15 Real estate - Residential

16 Real estate - Commercial

17  Real estate - Other

18 Gollectibles

19 Food inventory X 99,999 32,186,815, FMV and weighted ave

20 Drugs and medical supplies

21 Taxidermy

22  Historical artifacts

23 Scientific specimens

24  Archeological artifacts

25 Other P { )
26 Other B | )
27 Other P { )
28 Other P | )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the arganization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement 29
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used for
exernpt purposes for the entire holding PEIIDAT | | ... e e et e reee e eerne 30a X
b If “Yes," describe the arrangement in Part |1,
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? 31 | X
32a Dees the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
COMIMDULIONS? it s ettt e e e e e eee st ee s eeee s s st sr s sre oo 32a| X
b If "Yes," describe in Part (I
33  If the organization didn’t report an amount in column (¢} for a type of property far which column (g} is checked,
describe in Part |l

LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Ferm $90.

832141 10-18-18

38
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Schedule M (Form 990 2018 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846 Page 2

Partll | Supplemental Information. provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization
is reporting in Part |, column (b}, the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete
this part for any additional information,

Schedule M, Line 32b:

Various community organizations hold food drives. Agencies and PDOsg

are used to pass food along to Alabama's "food insecure" citizens.

832142 10-18-18 Schedule M {Farm 990} 2018
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5 OME No.
SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ g
{Form 890 or 990-E2) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 8

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information,
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open tO_ Public
Internal Revenus Servica B Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY AREA FQOD BANK, Inc. 63-0931846

Form 990, Part T, Line 1, Description of Organization Mission:

OF EDIBLE FOOD TO QUALIFIED AGENCIES.

Form 990, Part III, Line 4c, Program Service Accomplishments:

weekly distributions to 368 food-insecure children and thelir families.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 2:

There are geveral of the board members that have had business transactions

with the Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc. during the year ended June 30,

2017. HNone of the board members are related to each other.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, line 1l1b:

The management of MAFB were given a draft copy of the 990 for their review.

Time was allowed for them to review and ask questions as well as notice

given to them to contact the preparer of the return no later than September

30, 2017 with any further questions or corrections.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 12c:

At board meetings, the board is reminded of policies regarding conflicts of

interest. Staff are also reminded at staff meetings of the conflict of

interest policy.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15:

The board approves the executive directors compensation as well as all key

employvees salaries. This information of comparable salaries is on most

websites for other like organizations and Feeding America provides access
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O {(Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2018)

832211 10-10-18
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E7) (2018) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

MONTGOMERY AREA FOCD BANK, Inc. 63-0531846

to this information so that the board has comparable data to use in

determining compensation.

Form 990, Part VI, Section C, Line 19:

The financial statements, governing documents, and conflicts of interest

policy are available upon request.

Part XII Line 2c¢

The board of directors and top management review the audit and accept

respongibility over the audited financial statements. This same group

algso gelects the independent auditors to conduct the audit. This has

been the policy for prior vears.

832212 10-10-18 Schedule O {Form 990 or 880-EZ) (2018}
41
16461108 752665 0149.00 2018.05000 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK 0149.001



v

auozZ O ‘uelonpa uogezienasy |elosawwon 'snuog ‘abeseg ‘01, pasodsip j8s8y - ()

aL-LO-v0 LLIgZE

345 ‘0 34 "5Z6 "526 9t 060°§ 18 [gT/2t/50 (eaze Buryowsg) BuTumy| Gog
*9zT'1 0 M-TARE 9711 ‘9z’ 971 005 s B1/T1/50 (1TTe) s=aq #oN| 562
*62T' ¢ 0 "6TT'T 62T’ T AN 9T 00°s 15 [TT/TT/50 {TI3Y4s) »seq meN] 762
“g6€ ‘0 "S6E 113 'G6€ 97 00°g 8 [TT/50/60 Tojexsbiziey Rowig] T6Z
R 0 T95L "9sL "95L 9T 00°g 8 [0T/s0/80 ToaoedwoD IO0F ITH 3DBIUCD| 08T
059 T 0 "p59'1T "059°1 0591 LTRE | 00" 2 15 l60/0€/%T asutgeDd BUTTTd °xT3| §9Z
66T 0 *66T T66T ‘66T LTEH | 00"t 18 [60/ST/0T weyo3ais| taz
- UdIny /& ¥ead zajndmop
TREL 0 “gEL T0EL T0EL 91, 00°§ 15 [so/12/0T ysaa| 1ve
‘9% 0 T59% ‘597 TG59% a7 00°§ 18 [80/90/€0 sa0338| €12
To0T¥ 0 0T "0t ka7 91 0074 15 [£0/90/60 Jouqed aTTd 2IesITI| 507
‘082 o ‘08e 1082 ‘ozt T00% LTRH | 00" 4 15 [E0/60/T0 sseq aajnduod| yZT
“099'1 ‘e "089°T 99571 “ZTL ‘zLe'e LTRE { 00°5 15 [g0/62/€0 aTwos wWioyleid 2FuoxlosTd| OTT
"E8E ‘0 "E£8¢ “£8f teag LIRH | 00°L %5 {00/21/90 TIIVE TONIWIINOD QNNOH] 65
Toge ‘0 ‘00¢€ "0QE "00¢g LIRH | 00°¢ 18 J00/8T/50 FOI4J0 §, IMYY4-USHT LONTFYM| 85
“ZEVL "0 TZER T zgv T ‘zev'T L1psE | 00°L s [00/¥T/70 SEOTAIO NI IHA¥VYD MAN| 5§
)2 i )27 1147 TOPY LTRH | 00°L 18 186/8T/21 NOIS HZNOWd ISYD| 6%
..mﬁ... ‘0 14 141 14 LTRH | 00°L 18 166/2T/ V0 (2} SI¥YD TEELS SSATNIVLIS| T
SINYXTS I SINITUINT
uojelaudag asuadxy uopeaaadag {ox3 A
pergnuwinasy | uansnpag 6/1 985 | pajemwnaoy | uonenaidag siseg a5u80x3 % | SISBgIN1S0D {oy| 9 | g7 fpoyay | PRANDOY uondussaq -an
Buipuy 1ea § uanng Weans buisuiBag 104 siseq uf wojanpay | g2 uondag | sng peisnipeun) jeun| 3 aeq ; yossy
066 0T abed ggg WwIoJg

JHOdSH NOLLVZILHOWY ANV NOLLYIOIdddd 8102




£V

auoz oD ‘UoHONPe(] UoNEZIEIARY [BloMBWWICS ‘'snuog ‘abeaes 'l . pasodsip 18ssy - ()

8L-10-+0 LLL8eR

“£69 ‘PST T§Es “0LL TOLL LTIRH | 00°g 15 [ST/6T/90 JBUTRD SITJ oIes Aijussi g
6618 "zEs'T “LLE's “ESL72T "£5L7ET LTREH | 00°L 18 [ST/ST/%0 sutbum MeN| Lig
‘Z06'T B34 "Ls2'T ‘gre’e ‘§2T’¢ LTRH | 00°s s [sT/8T/€0 170D Butsuepued| fLE
TgEE “zZ§ TT8% ‘g9g ‘g9¢ *9zZL LTfH | 00°L 15 [pT/0E/2Y T9POR TRUTPI®D S0T| E£LE
‘909’2 “6LY "LTo'z “568°¢ *568°T "06L°S LTRH | 00°S 15 [FT/50/TT s3iun abexols g| zLe
31 4 TLTE ‘gLE "SLE 0SS LTRH | 00°5 Hapoz [F1/ST/01T souetes| Tie
"8LT 0% "8ET ‘LT "86T "S6E LIRE | 00'§ 15 F1/80/60 ggaadxg axodzty oT1ddy] Lot
"geg "981 *zg9 “IE8 A3 "£98'7 LIRH | ¢0°g 15 [r1/62/80 23eb33 T xredsu] 59¢
243 ZL *ZSe T8g “T9¢ ‘zEL LTEH | 00°S T8 |pr/82/80 Jsutqep xejndwed wnjd zf y9t
"gzT’T ‘05T ‘SLE 05z’ T "05z'T ‘005’2 ttgu | oo°s 15 [pE/7E/80 ¥ - sorqelL yTom| e8¢
‘s¥z 1 161 ‘£LT TTLe *5¥5 LYEH | 007§ 15 |vT/¥T/80 zolexsbiaysu| zog
*5T0' T ‘922 "68L "6LS'T "08s'T ‘6ST'€ LTRH [ 004 T8 [PT/£2/L0 | USUDITY IoF USAC UOTIDaAUOD| BGE
‘g8s 1T ‘LSY "£59 *g59 ‘50£'T LTRH | 00°S 8 for/ST/LO gsuoygd ssaTprod 7| LGE
"esv’T "9¥%T "0Ig' T "65% T ‘6571 "0E6 ' 2 LTRE | 00°S 18 [£1/92/8¢0 pxeoq| geg
HQRUQOU pU® sSaurely N.H._”Z.
"88g "6€ TEYE g1 T§8e “LLL LI | 00°S 15 [§T/TE/LO §¢ 3TuUn - ToURd HIg #oN{ $tg
886 ‘08T “go08 “L5T’ T A ‘518’2 LTRH | 007 L T5 [eT/TE/L0 saysutqe) Aeydsia 6 seg
*19¢ “9g 343 “T9€ "09¢g YTl LTRH | 00°§ 18 [¢1/9T/L0 I9tqes| pee
g9 g¢ 1 pum zo3oafoxd T
AN "gST ‘g9e’T "LIS' T "815°1 ‘s5g0'¢ LTRH | 00" % 1S [ET/80/L0 Axoiaeg meN| £E€
uoiessdag asuadx3y uenepaidag 19%3 A
pagImunasy | uojonpag 621 298 paje|nungoy § uopenaidag siseg asuadxy % | S1Segi03s0D oy ¥ | gy |powsyy| Pennboy vondizasag "o
Baripug Ieaj Juaing u81Ng fuiuubag 104 siseg ujuondnpay | 67 uonasg | sn paisnipeun ey 3 : aeq o lossy
066 0T @Bed (g5 WwIog

1HOd3Y NOILVZILHOWY ANV NOILYIO3HdIA 8102




¥y

AU07Z (OO ‘UOCONPB UOREZIBHASY |BIOISLIIOY 'SNUcE ‘abeaes ‘D] « pasodsip j19ssy - ()

Sh-L0-¥0 tli8ge

"150°T 0 "150°1 TS0 T *T50°% LIPW 00 ' 0T s |Le/ET/20 sHIdRNG Houa| ¢
*06% ‘0 065 065 365 LIRE | 00°§ 15 [gs/18/€0 INEHAIN0F] 9
SNOHGRTAL UVLS O¥d 1,4adv
TOLT o iTAS *OLT "0LT LTIRH | 00"t I8 [S6/50/90 MSEA ¥HELO4WoD| §
“6eT'T 0 ‘62T T “gzt’y "6ZTT LTfH | 007§ 15 |56/LT/€0 dn Ids MNIS aNodEs| v
TY8T . 0 ‘yel “peT ‘¥8T LTRH | 00°¢ s [s6/1E/€0 LENIEYD HIIM LHYD HDIJI0| €
‘558 i) "g58 ‘558 "558 LTEH | 0075 18 [s6/L0/€0 (NZHOIIN) 4n I3s ¥NIS| 2
‘g9T ‘o *891 *R9T '89t LTRH | 00°6 15 [s6/6T/0T TEANTIVD ZL X 9¢| T
12720
ST A o ‘05e’T ‘eELvsE “sELysE pu=l te3os 0T 2504 066
o ‘005792 ‘008 9% 000" T |BT/0£/90 sseqoIng| ggv
A3JUI) IPRIL TS - pue]
"0 €567 662 "£56°68T 600" T {ET/TE/S0 |(Tooad axen 1o7) uoTtutwog pro| 96%
"0 001’8 ‘001’8 000" T [20/€0/L0 (saxo® §T") pueTf zHI
LT AN 0 ‘052°T LT "05¢' T LTRH 00°ST 15 |oo/¢z/20 101| L8
ButyIed rog Tsawab paysnid
‘0 786 9L ‘ZE6 8L xH | 000" oM |T6/%0/0T {s8a0BL0"T) aN¥T| g€
@ﬁﬂﬂ
‘eg1'8E ["6vE’S ‘vre’2E | TLLy'sy "958'9% "gEe’To 53ININTL I IANITUANG
te30L 0T 2623 066 «
“SIT tgy 69 Ttse “TEe ‘zZ9y LIRH | 00°¢ 18 {LT/eT/70 ajooxg] gz¥
I03 Mgap padeys-q uojqnsg
B ZA A" Lov TLTO'T ‘ye0'e "ve0'z "850° v LIRH | 00°% 18 [91/1£/50 sutbuz MeN] ZT¥
uoneaidag asuadx3 uonieaidag [ax3 A
pajenwnaay | uonanpaq 611 988 paleinwnaay | woneisaidag Siseg asuadx % | SISegI0IS0D fon| Y | apy |poypewyl Paanboy uondusseq ‘on
fiupu3 JBaA uaLng wanng Buituibag 104 siseg u| uononpay | 671 wonosg | sng paisa(peuny {ouny m : aeqg o 1oy
066 0T ®bea 0gs5 wrod

1HOdIY NOLLYZILHOWY ONV NOLLVYIOAHdEd 8102




Sy

8U0Z O 'UORONPa(] UONBZILIASH [BIDIBUILLICS ‘snuog “eBenjeg ‘0L » pesodsip jassy - {(])

BL+10-F0 LLLBER

“66Z ‘0 ‘66¢ ‘66T "662 LIPH | 0072 15 [86/91/90 (NOT) ¥$Ed TATIODIXE] 9z
‘gLe’TE 0 ‘gLe' 1T “gLe’ Iz ‘gLE' TR LTOK 0°0T 15 |86/52/90 NOISNYaxz| sz
HSNOHAYYM ¥OJd WHEILSXS SRIMOVH
‘yoE’E i) ‘pog'e “poc’E "yoE's LIPH | 00" L TS [B6/62/%0 NOTSNY4XE| %2
(ESNOHAYYM dO0d HOXTANCD TIHE
‘sLy’e i} MTA A4 R-TA A -TA M LIPH | 00°S 15 |86/91/50 | NOTXYTITYASNI GNY SENOHAZTEL| £Z
000°T - {0 ‘000t ‘9001 0001 LIPR {00°s | 15 Jue/TE/TT od VIGEHIITIOW| 2
"g8g’T ‘0 ‘£ge’1 X TR “e8e T Lipu | eo°s 15 {L6/2I/TT SEITTOC WeodIvid (9}] 12
‘L2 0. "GL6°T "GLE'2 ‘6L6’z Lips | o005 15 |ee/see/0T DLT-58-8T AWHALIVE ano| 02
‘Lzg 0 ‘LTS xs: Lz LIPH | 00" & 15 |L6/TE/LD sTuvo| 61
HOIXASIVNESIA JIEHS-OME {Z)
"Z6T'T "0 ‘ZeT'E ‘z6T'e ‘Tel'e LTPH | 00°S 18 |L6/TE/LO S0LOON TIVOS WNOILYId| 8%
*095 0 *pos 095 ‘pos LTPH | 06°S s L6/0E/90 @Ivod ¥50G ROTY| LT
*580°€ ‘0 "580'¢ "580°¢€ "580'¢€ LIRH | 00°S 15 [96/02/80 SUHATIATT ¥o0d {g)] oT
114 "0 "gge 14 4 LTRH | 00°S 15 [96/02/80 IANTEYD @ITal §T
609 0 909 ‘009 ‘009 Lt | 0075 18 |96/1€/L0 avEHwINg WAZIIEE| ¥1
"gLe’ T 0 "8LE'T ‘BLE’T 'gLe’T LTRE | 0075 T8 [s6/L0/80 $MOVY IITIVd do¥d ¥vas| €1
"656°T o} "656°T ‘6S6°T "656°T LIRH | 00°¢ 1S [96/ET/90 ATY0S ¥OOTE EPIPFGHI| 2T
‘9¢g ‘0 ‘9gR ‘9¢8 "9g£g LTIRH | 00°g 15 [26/T0/%0 SHSTOANI 0T
. DSIR-DNINOVYE IITIVE T, IaAY¥
VLO'T "z§ "zzo'T ‘000’z ‘000’z LIPBL 00" 6E TS5 {86/TI/S0 HOISNYAXH| 6
: ALITIOVS ¥OJd SEDTANIS NOISHA
“gog 0 "€0E TE08 "E0E LIRH | 00" 5 TS [26/0€/€0 | ATVDS “IWNIAUYI-NOTEINTTYLSNI| 8
dIYI28 ¥OoOoTd
uoljedadeq asladxg uoljeoaIdeg 19%3 A
paje|neunzay | uelonpaq 6/L 938 | panwnsoy | uogemaldag siseg asuedxy % | s15e8J03800 |anf ¥ | gy |powewy| Pennbay uondiasag ‘o
puipug 1B8A U327} sy fuiuurfieg Jofsiseg | ujuononpey | 61 uogaes | sag | pasnipeun [=un] 5 ; feg o Jessy
¥*
066 01 26m=4 0§56 wIOd

1HOd34 NOILVZILHOWY NV NOILYIDAaHJ3a 8L0g




9y

3U07 O ‘UONDNDA(] UDHBZIIEYASY [BEDIBWWOY ‘snudg ‘ebeaeg ‘0L . pasodsip 1essy - ()
8i-10F0 L1LEZH
h4:2 B 42 "T81 "Z8T LIPH | 0078 18 [96/0T/07% LUAYD ATITILO AVHD| 9%
‘z9z €T “§¥E TZeY A LIPE 00°6E 8 |86/ TE/L0 INEd 90d| B
Sddd LNOH 40 ALID 3 ELVHOUd
"8E6 L *Z6E 995 L "SET'ST TGET ST LB [00°6€ 1s |es/8E/TT 107 ONINUYd| £7
‘FE9 "0 ‘peo "pE9 TpE9 Lt | oo 18 |86/52/60 | MOSSEYIWOS MIV dNNOYY IoNZI| T
*zzZ9'9 “TTE “ITE9 ‘000" 2T *000°2T LTPH 00" 6¢ 15 |[t6/T0/0T (aar¥nod) | tr
¥o0d DNIAYOT ¥od WYY NMOU
2191 "0 “ZI9°T ‘zi9't *Z19°1 LIDH (007 0T 18 |L6/ST/LO HIZERYI | 0F
HOE SEEOLXIS SNITHOIT
*s91’15z |"oT1t’eT "s60"6€2 | "9E9 LYY “ge9 L9y | LT JoosE 15 |86/1T/50 |ALTTIIOVS NOISNVAXE ISNOHTNVM| 6%
BTV Y B 1ix4 yTTV ‘688 L "588°L LTHR 00°8¢ 15 |L6/0e/90 a1d oL TANYd NIVA/IDIANES| gt
HSVHAE /AWY 00TT MEN
‘ge9 0T |0 "B69 0T | 869 0T "869°0T LIp| j00°ST 18 |Le/vT/vo STIJONYD Wooad (Z2)]| Lg
"eZ8’ T 0 "gz8’1 ‘geg’T ‘geg’ LTEH p0°0T 18 [s6/82/2T HNIATIHS X0g MIZATLL| 5¢
TOTL ‘0 TOTL "0TL 01 LIRH po°0T T8 |66/ T2/ET EoNEZ MNIT NIVHD| s¢
*6E0T99  |'ssE’E "pr9'ze | "090'¢s *090 €6 LIRE s 1e 18 fe6/ez/LT X0H WAZIFHL NI ATYM| ve
“GOLELE |TLEL'LY *g96°55¢ | “gze 69T *gz8 ' 6%7 | LIRE j0s 16 15 [g6/0€/70 onraiingl ce
"IEY ‘0 “TIEV el “TEY LTRH | 0075 18 [66/92/%0 MOOUE TA1TVd RRXLZY TE
“TP9S "0 "TF9’S “T¥9’g ‘TIPS LIEH | 00°§ 18 [86/2T/1T HOOMT YOd HI¥D FAIT| 0F
959 ‘0 059 *0§9 ‘089 LTRH | 00" s 18 [86/52/60 garyal 6z
AYDILd0 YHYRYXL/AQHYD ISos
0TE’T ) "0T6°T *0T6' T "0TE' T LTow | 0oL 15 [86/90/50 NOISNV3XH ¥0d 21d| §2
'SIANIAVDS SATAVI ' SUIVHD
"OLT K "0LE “oLe “0LE LIPH | 007 £ 118 [86/0£/90 WHIOCD MAN WO IAINTId AWVM| LT
uonelaasdacy asuadxg uenelazidag [3%3 R
pajR(NWNIAY | UoRINDa() TAREES DAZIRWNIDY | uogedaidag siseg asuadxy % 1 SIsegInised [end U | gy |pomew| Pennboy vonduasag “oN
fulpu3 B9 1UaLINY waung Suiuubiag 104 SISEg Uj UOIONPaY | 621 UONDAS | sng pasnipeun eun 2 ; ey o ie55Y
066 01 sbed g5 wxod

1HOd3Y NOILVZILHOWY NV NOILYID3445a 8102




Ly

auoz (OO ‘uononpa( UONRZI[RUASY [BIaISWIWOD ‘snuoyg ‘alfealeg ‘0Ll . pesodsip 1958y - ()

aL-LO-b0 L1LRER

“F60'LT | TLSE: “LETTOT  [‘zeo'ig 290 LE LIHH [00°6¢ 18 [to/TE/S0 431oede) Iezesid puedxg| L9
"66E 0 *66¢ "66¢ ‘66¢ Lipu | 0oL 15 [T0/L0/50 | BP-LZ T®POK IND Yoer 19ITR4{ 89
"STL ‘0 *STL *§1L "STL LIPpH | 00°L 15 [t6/91/50 sTe3xod gsesm 242 (g)] 59
1 "0 §F2 “6%T 67T Lipw | 0o°s s |Te/0T/y0 oA/al aH-z| %o
s o “ZEV ‘TER ‘zed LTiH | 00°S s |oa/s0/50 YEINIYd IAr¥Esvl an| go
‘qog 0 ‘598 1T "g98 LTEH | 0075 15 |oo/0£/90 NYSSIN-¥OTOM| o
dHNd diH LIINgTY
"8E0’ T 0 "gE0’T “0£0’ % *0£0°T LTRY | 00°s 15 [oo/82/30 WESUYHD Audrive enNo| 1o
‘LoL "o TLOL “LOL “LoL LTRH | 00" s 1s lpo/8z/90 | MHANITAD Hoiovdwod &1Ingau| og
"806°se 170 "806°s2  §7806°52 ‘806’52 LTRH | 00°S 15 [00/80/50 ST-TTHS 7IGOK IaTTH€os(a)| 45
"6VE i} 313 EVE “6VE LIRH | 00°s 1s |00/ ve/v0 saove| 9g
LETIEE DIHLOETE .Hmmﬂ HALSYED
"9L8’s ‘0 "918’s "8.8"g "9L8’s LIEH { 00" 5 T8 {00/2T/%0 ¥AZIAYI JZLHAD| F&
*85L ‘0 "89¢ 17 "§9¢L LTRH | 00°S 15 joo/g0/Zo ¥ovr EEITYd| €5
0021 "0 002’1 00T *00z'T LI | 0o's 15 {00/TE/TO HOZIMS] 2§
: H000 % a¥4AIN ALTNAOAS
A1 0 TL95 *L9g *L9S Lipu | 60°s TS [66/9T/2T KAFLINE | 16
*578°T "0 "sTR'E '528°2 "5z8'¢ LTEH | 00°L 18 |66/50/1T ONIQIS gEovis=¥| og
TE1v'e "0 eTYE TETV T €TV e LTREH | 00°S 18 |s6/82/0T 67T ANMI-SOIVHESIHITYE| 67
"g€06°€ 0 ‘£08'¢ "E06°€ TE06 '€ LTEH | 00°S 18 |s6/52/0T : MONYL| 8v
T,LNT-NCISSIHSHVEL &'1INEdH
61T "0 ‘612 334 “61Z LTRH | 0076 1S |s6/50/80 Nvd 1guuvd 96| L
voneardag ssuadxy | woneoasdag 19%3 N
paleINunydY | ucnonpag B/1 988 palenwnzoy | uonemaideq siseg asuadxy % |s1588401800 |on| ¥ | sy |poyjapy| paunbay ucttdLosag “op
m:_ucm JBgA Juakng us.ung mcw:c_mmm 10 SIseq ujuonanpay { 641 UOHIAG sng umwwz‘__um:: aup) m : aeq - 1855y
064 pI @Bed 066 wICg

LHOdZ3Y NOLLYZILHOWY ANV NOILYIDAHJIa 810T




87

QUOZ OO ‘UONONPa(] UOREZI[ERASH (BI0ISWILLIO: ‘snuog ‘aBeaeg ‘0l . pasodsip jessy - ()

81-10-bC LLLEZE

‘091 0 "09T 09T T09 LTPR 00°sT s [10/5T/20 ssopuis ssero| gg
"09T ‘0 ‘09T 091 "09t LIPH [00°6T 18 [16/51/20 FHOPUTM SSOIR] §g
09T 0 *g9T T08T ‘09t LIPH po°sT | . s |ta/sT/20 smopuTs sseIn| ¢g
TLEL'T 0 TLEL'T TLEL'T TLEL'T LTPH po°sT 18 [10/5T/20 JTET =2atM| zZ§
pagIeq/s souay YUTT UTEUD
L0V 0 L0V “LOF ‘LOF LTPH | ao°g 15 loo/€T/0T us| 1g
. Z .8¥X,PZ 1xedD STIqOR oomep
*06L 0 “06L *06L "06L Ltpw | 0o°s 18 [po/ct/oT ET-58~9 ATeaaeg soIn| gg
"§6E "0 "§6E “66E "66€ LTPm | go°L 1S |oo/0Z/60 youp jeTTed| 64
‘LBL 0 ‘LPL “LyL AT Ltpm | 0o0°L 18 |00/tt/60 sueg| gt
uT 9§ ISHOTE SUNTOA TH {Z)
"OLT o 0Ll *0LT "0LT LTOR | 00°5 18 [00/51/60 ouoyd §5ZOI-XA-NHA| LL
"£06 o} "£06 “E06 €06 LIPR | 00°% 1S |00/ TT/60 a3ep wrozletd| 9L
*65% o} "6SF 65¥ *65¥ LTPH | 00°L 15 {00/EE/B0 yoep ¢ IOW aueTo onid| §i
"pIT 0 PIT ‘vig ‘yIT LIDW | g0L 15 {00/80/80 ued} yL
"LET' g ‘0 TLETE TLET'E "LET'E LIPH | 0075 TS |00/60/80 | PHELXRE YonuIa ro °3eb IITT| €L
9ty 0 "9y ‘9EF 134 LIips | 00°§ 15 |to/Lz/90 iieg a0z I@°UM Ieasep| gi
"§SE 0 11 *55¢ -1 LTPH | 0078 15 |to/L2/90 ¥onay asu IcJ soboq| Ti
“0z2 0T 0 “ozz'oT | to0zz o1 LA LIPH | 00" L TS [T0/L0/90 aszasxy x07 Guryoew| gL
“IEL 0 TTEL "IEL ‘TEL LTPR | 00°¢ s [10/L0/90 xIeg 103 Io30K| 69
"z09'ss |0 “z09'ss | °zog’ss *z09 58 LTPH | 007§ s [T0/22/50 23TUA 08 "I TepoK| 88
yonil reurTIYubTead Tooz{q)
uoneIadag asuadxy toyeIaaldag 19%3 A
POIBINWRIDY | uoNonpa() 8/1 988 pajginwaaoy | uonevatdeq s|seg asuadxy % | S1Se9301800 fon| 9 F gy fpoyay| Pasnboy uondsaq ‘0N
Buipu] IBaj Juarny 31N} fuiuubag 104 sIseq ug soionpay | g4t vondag | sn paisripeun feur1| 3 : aleq o Jassy
066 0T =bed 066 WIod

1HOd3H NOILLYZILHOWY ANV NOILVIOaHdad 8102




67

UO7 0D 'UClIONPaQ UOREZIEIASY |BIDISWLLDA 'snuoy ‘sBenes ‘011 . pasodsip jassy - ()

8L-L0-v0 LL182]

*g8€ ‘0 "§8¢ "Gg8€ "59% T LT84 | 00°s 1s [zo/82/20 ¥onay 3eTTRd| FOT
*g1s "0 "STS 1§ 144 *9EL, LIRHE | 007§ T8 [20/TT/20 a030H aH ¥/f uyod| £0T
“LOE. 0 TLOE *LOE “ZET "6EY LIRH | 00°¢ 18 J20/6T/T0 3FTIYIOL T0F I2Iyowd| Z0T
T08% 0 08T 14 it A ooy LIRE | 00°5 I8 JIo/21/2t doep jeited| 10T
444 0 444 "zTeT ‘6E LTS LIRE | 00°s 18 16/61/1T Tossexdwod| §01
1Ty woTieD )T 4H 9
i 14> ‘0 14> 1ze g1 ‘65F LIfH | 00°s 18 [to/zz/0T XezT3TuURS YUIS OTA30573| 66
‘€69 ‘0 €69 *E69 WA TA "066 LTEH | 00°5 18 [to/1T/01 TBIING IooTd 0Z1S @S| 86
"S60°'T 0 "S60°F "G60°F "eSLT 088§ L1EH | 00°s 18 [to/60/01 donaL I0F ITUN Aszewad| (g
‘525 ‘0 14 525 ‘522 "0SL LTEH | 0072 18 [T0/82/60 futousd| 9g
09T ) ‘091 T09T "69 62T LTRH | 00°S 15 [10/21/60 umuoea ST vIITH weess| se
"6t ) "6E1 “BET 0% ‘66T LIRE | 00°s 1s [10/21/60 oquop ¥WoA/AL| ¥
TELY i} TELY ‘ELY ‘ELY LTfH | 00°S 1S [t0/60/80 ¥onajpueH suTTbeH| £6
TTTY i} ‘TTH TV “ITE LIRE | 00'S s {E0/0E/LD JYoer 3stted Iv0| 26
‘108’2 0 108’2 1082 ‘t0g 'z LIRE | 60°% s iT0/91/L0 zazsaIg To3 Tolauc) Ioxel| 1¢
*LEG "0 "LES A TLEG LIEH | a0°s 18 |t0/8t/L0 aezenadf 06
) I0F MURL IBATI09Y T 0
AT 0 AT WAL AT LTPH [00°ST 5 [t0/90/90 |T8z9s1y oy duex-dn s3szducd| gg
*6LY 0 T6L9 “6L9 T6L9 LIPH | 00°S TS |T0/22/E0 [god Topow SSTN IoF syIoy ,zv| g8
T09t 0 “09T 091 D9t LIPH [00°ST 5 [T0/5T/20 sMopuiM ssein| 93
uonRaldag asuadx3 uoyelaaidag 19%3 A
palenwnday | uonanpsg 811 098 palejnwnady | uonemardaq s|seg asuadxy % | SR 01S00 |on| ¢ b ey [poyew ) PAINDOY uogdaseq -oN
fuipu] Ieg & uanng juaung i biag 104 siseq upeononpay | 6/t 10Ndag | sn paisnipeuny feur1| 3 ' ae( o 1985y
D65 01 obed (g wrog

1HOd=H NOLLVZILHOWY ANV NOILYIOIdHdad 8102




0G

3l07 OB ‘UONINDRAa(] LolBZyENASY |BIodswwWwon ‘snuag ‘ebealRg ‘DI . pasodsip 1888y - ()

8L-L0-k0 tlLGER

¥l ‘0 ‘vRL ‘¥8L T9fE 0zT'T LTRH | 00°¢ s [z0/eT/T1 arerasyel wacker| £zt
“gzg "0 “£zE =4 ‘6T Z9y LIRH | 00°S 15 [zo/68/0T T9pon| 2TT
2addoy SY{IoM WOIT RINCGY
‘Tr9 0 ‘TFY AT "SLT AT LTEH | 00”5 s [co/6e/01 JuewdInba SUTTPURH Te3I0L| IZT
“efL's "0 AT “EEL'E ‘008t “gee’sg LTRH | 00°¢ 18 |co/sg/0T putyowy 3FTI-euid| gzT
“y8L "0 ‘78L “pEL ‘9gg "0gT Y Lt | so°L 15 |z0/01/50 ueg| 611
JUNOR TIEM PUR URd [RIsepad
*ggg 0 ‘53¢ 11 59T *05s LTEH | 60°S 15 |zo/Lz/80 syonxy jeTTed| 81t
“ILE'T ‘0 TTLE'Y "TLE' ¥ ‘eL8’T “FPE 9 LTEH | 00°L 15 |z0/80/80 Butioed IFTI-ewAg| LIT
“IEY 0 1Y “IEV "68T *9719 LTEH | 00" s 15 |zo/s2/90 I9z99I I0F SITUR FToUS| 911
"66£"8 ‘0 "66£°8 6658 *009'E ‘666 1T LIRH | 00°€ 15 lz0/52/90 §TDEE TOPOH aerTrdragen| g7t
‘65t T 0 *65€°T ‘g5¢’ T “£85 AT LTRE | 00°S 15 [20/01/90 ApzTTOEND ] FIT
uRSSTN ~I0JOH I993S PTIThQey
1 ‘0 ‘e8e 08z it A g0y LIRH | 007§ I8 [Z0/0E/%0 zeddoH 0Lz-dt] £TT
-1 o 113 tovg ‘6¥1 TGET LTRH | 00°s 15 |z0/0£/%0 yoep| z11
391Ted 2TI309Td IoF abnebHrupn
"6¥6 'S o ‘6¥6’s “6¥6°S ‘086°2 "667°3 LTEH | 00°S 18 [20/60/%0 3oep 3eTTed oTxavstd| 111
‘€87 ) 1 “E8F A4 069 LIRH | 007 s [z0/62/€0 IsZR8I] X0 X010H 4H ¥/t| 60T
-1 o} ‘gse *BST "0TT *89¢ LTRH | 00°% 1S [zZ0/62/E0 o¥| aset
mOﬂMMOIHOn«OS uesq A3 EBUIPUOD
‘8gt 0 *8fT "geT 65 “L6T LIRH | 00°S 15 [20/6T/E0 ummorp I93STUURD T§OT| LOT
‘€16 ¢ "ET6 ‘£T6 ‘16¢ ‘voE'T Lije | 00°s 15 {20/80/E0 zaTo0D I03eM| 90T
"SEE 0 "SEE "GEf YT “6LY LTRH | 00°S 5 {20/80/£0 yoep 39[TRd UMGED| SOT
uoneisaldag asuedx3 uoljeaazdag X3 N
pagnenoay | uopanpag 6213935 | pajginwnaay | wongiosdaq siseq asuadx3 % |S15e9401800 fon| Y1 a7 [pourep] PRANBOY uopdisag -aN
fuzpu3 leaj uaung a1y Bujuuibag logsiseg 1 ujuananpay | a4 vopvas | sng | paenipeun feus| 5 ' aleq o 1S5y
066 0T @bed (g6 WIod

140434 NOILVZILHOWY OGNV NOLLVIO3HdAd 8102




TS

auoz QD 'UOIIONPS UolRZIRIIASY [BloiaunL0) ‘'shuog 'afienes ‘0l . pasodsip 1958y - (Q)

gL-L0-+) LLLege

*600'T [0 600" 60071 600’1 A LTPM | 00°S [ 8 [£0/TT/60 | Teandwed ISQ SNIL WNUTIRTE| £F1

‘6TR'E TgEe "T85'¢ 252’6 At LTHH 00°6€ I8 [£0/52/%0 Butaiasy butpring FofeR| To#T

SLES ‘0v ‘L6G AL A2 LM 1007 6E 15 [£0/SE/V0 BUTITM Wooxdijed ssN| ovT

L€ 0¥ L1685 "Zrs' 1 A2 LT foosE TS [e0/6T/90 [ButiTy IesuUepUo) 3 wood [oodf 6T

tevs'e |0 evee ‘ev8’e RAEM 189 'L LTRH | 00" 18 [€0/0E/30 yoep IOpTM PRYE| BET

R an Ak 0 'pTZ T ‘viz'e ‘g1z'e “GEY 'Y L1BH | 0075 1s [£0/60/90 Tsuteaued| LET
1I0dsuRI] PAIRVENSUT

€92 "0 "£9T ‘g9z ‘g9z *9zs LTEH | 00°¢ 1s [c0/60/90 efeos ur TT80| 9ET
weadg peoeTded STEDS ISUINY

"TEE 0 "TEE zEe “EEE 599 LTRH | 00°§ s £0/60/90 030K deay Buryoop syospagm| SeT

‘08 0 AT "Log ‘808 ST’ LIRE | 00°¢ 18 [£0/60/90 |AZ23328 Moy sTerIejeR esekoz| pet

“TLT ‘0 “TLE "1LT "ILE ZFS LTRE | 00°S 15 [£0/60/90 rozoeiucy dumd| geT
paovTdsy STeTIRIBH vloio]

‘605 0 606 g% 3% ‘LZL LIRH | 0079 s [ee/0E/70 Azagzegi zet
S Butipued sTeTiIsaeH uwilola]

‘gL’z ["ges't *e1e'TZ | "FeL 9% "POL 3T LTEH PS°1g 15 |£0/52/%0 juswdtnbd| Ty
U0T1eIabTIIY pPUR ID[COD MIN

Jzrsfoz . |0 *zrg'or 1'zie’oz ‘0g6'8 ‘zeL'se TZERH | 00*g 18 [£0/LT/E0 IITIY=CE| OET
OTI3DaTa STRIISjel elolol

"GEE ‘o "GEg ‘gee TEVT 8Ly LIRH | 00" L 15 [E0/FPT/E0 wesg| 67T
BurTpuel Axsjjeg 33TI-°UAQ

"ELE'T ‘0 L6 T TELETT “9¥g ‘6T8’e LIEH | go°s 15 {£0/90/%0 £xo33eg ®oInog xamed| 8zt

‘9Ly 0 ‘9Ly T9LY "poz ‘089 LTRE | 00" s 18 |ca/ga/¢0 Yoep Tenuey 3yri-euial Lzl

teeg’st |0 "tes’sT  fUrss’sT | teees “ssz’zz | LTRE | 00°L [ 15 [e0/82/%0 | eHeaoas sarsIFe o3 Burowy| 97T

T9LE "0 "9LE "9LE ‘19T ‘Les LTRH | 0D°S 1s |eo/6z/T0 I0JOH| SET
Tojexodeag HUTIow) STospad

uoiedadag asuadxy uoneoaldag 19%3 A
palenwnaoy | uenonpag 61998 | parenwinooy | uoneasdeq siseg asuadxy % 18188401500 [on] U | a7 |poweyy| Peanboy uondiosag o
Btnpus 1egA Juaing uaimng fusunifiag 1o siseg ujuonanpsy § B/ UORASS | sng paisnipeuny [eun m ’ e o 1es6y
066 01 oBed g6 wacg

1HOd3H NOILVZILHOWY ANV NOILYIOAYGEd 8L0T




Z8

aU07 0D ‘UDNONRS( UCKEZIBYIASY [BlotawWWos) ‘snuog ‘abeajes ‘0] . pasodsip jassy - {Q)

BL-10-p0 LELBEE

9T |0 ‘$59°TT | '®se’TT "559° 11 "60E'£T LIRH | 00's 15 [po/8z/ot 3FTTATeI elokor] 19T
69T 0 69T ‘69T 691 "BEg LK | 00°S 15 |v0/62/60 waysAs BurzeseM Axsized| gor
“0EL’T 0 “0ELT TOEL'T “TEL'T “T9T ‘e LTIRH | 60”8 ¢ |r0/80/50 sieueg TTeM| 641
ZL6 0 ‘TLE ‘TLE tLg “5P6 T LIEH | 60°S 15 |r0/L2/L0 0872 uc Assy Butadg| ggy
*Z6L’S “T6E *107°S ‘06T 4T "08T ST LT 00 6E 15 |[r0/02/L0 [Toscw sTagpsTs ‘Icop xezeRadf LT
‘6TL 0 67L 62L ‘ogL "G50 T LIPW | 60°s 15 |[F0/9E/30 | sX2a00 321TRd pasernsul (9)| 95t
*LYS i LS "LYS TLYS “E60 T LIPpw | 00”5 1s |ro/9z/50 223371d8| 551
Tesod /OTPRY % [TeMsITd
“o8sg "0 "08% 085S "T85 "9t T LIPW | 007§ 1s |p0/8T/S0 S3FTIAIOL| ST
Io3 swaysAs Butisjed {f)
“I8L "0, 7 ‘T8L ‘08L *195°7 LIPR | 00°8 1s |p0/8T/50 ¥onIy LT I0F wroyieTd| £t
TL9E ‘0 L9g L9E *99¢ TEEL LIPH | 00" S S [p0/80/%0 08Td uo Sutads xeqgnu| zgT
“sz6't |'o "626°T "5T6'T 526’ T “psg'e LIPH | 00°5 s [0/80/70 oL 39TTed| IST
01T 0 *0IT *0T1 TRTT 144 LIPR | 06°§ s lpo/eT/E ged posa| 05T
TSEV'E ‘0 *GETT 'eey’ T TR ‘oLe’z tipu | 00's 1S [#0/v0/20 sITejsumeq I03 soueInd] ST
‘68 ‘0 68 68 ‘68 i VA LIPH | 00°S 18 [pe/0z/ 10 I23UTI Q0FT-TH] §¥1
“TFE'T ‘0 “Tpe’T “tFe'T ‘oFe’T "189'¢ LIPH | 00°¢ as |ra/0z/10 Agsy poy poowideuy| LPT
“ELg 0 TELE “ELE “vLE “LFL tipw | 0o°s s |va/0Z/10 saaeg retdep peouideu| 971
185 "0 185 "T85 4 "9t T LIPW | 00°§ 15 [Po/e1/ 10 030 Xasuspuod WAY F/e] SpT
AA "0 ‘TR TTVE “ERT "GBT LIPH | 00°L s leasiosot Jyoer I9TTRE TODURH| §HT
uoyeiaaldag asuadxg ugnegaldag 19x3 A
PRIBINWAIZY |  UOHOAPS(] 621 985 | patenwingoy | worelaaidag siseq asuadxz % | S1e8 01500 don| ¥ | eyt {powew| Peanbay uandussag on
fiurpug Ieaj 1usLINg ang fuiwuibeg 104 51529 g uoganpay | 621 wonoas | sng pelsnlpeuny {ea) 3 ’ 21RQ o Jessy
066 0t ®beg pg6§ wIOI

1HOd3d NOLLVZILHOWY NV NOILVIDTIHd3a 8102




€8

BUCZ OY ‘UOHINPAC] UCHEZIEIASY [BIDIWWOY ‘SNuog _mmm.:umw O . pasodsip jassy - {q)

BL-10-#0 LLLBZS

00T’ g ‘0 00T € "Q0T' € "001’€ 9T 60°S a5 jeo/g0/c0 wansiAg| 64T
vIDWED BUTISTXH 03 ppw
"5’ "0 A *5L5°6 "5L5°6 a1 007 s 1s |s0/L0/20 {3Tun Tozeoxy) xosssxdwod| gLt
TGLE ‘0 ‘ELE TELE “6LE 97, 00°s T8 90/ TESTO xshxa| LiT
TLES "0 *L6S ‘LS " LES 97, 00°s 15 po/Te/TO sutyoeR Surysem| LT
LI’ L "0 “L10°¢ LT L "LTO'L 91 00°¢g 18 K0/92/21 2329 3ITT| SLT
gvL'IT |0 *gyL’TT | t8FLIIT "gpL 1T 9T 00°S 18 [50/%1/21 zoszeadwop woL ST {T)] FLT
"609°5 ‘0 *609°s ‘609°5 609’5 9T 00°5 8 l56/50/21 sbuey| LT
"LZE 0 TLEG LT6 L6 97 00°s a5 50/20/11 sonxg 39TRE {Z)| 2LT
‘059’z 0 *pss’e "0s9°¢ ‘059’z LTRE | 007 ¢ 18 [66/02/90 | aTun BuTsuspuep wor § wesyu| TLT
A 14 ‘0 ‘Lez ‘Lge ‘LBZ LIEH | 0079 15 |S0/62/90 youl aatred] OLT
“gy1T'C T0ST ‘866 T "g28’s T4 LIpH 1007 6€ 15 |56/L0/710 |uoTamaedes Tyesmfid ¥ ButiTen] 691
113 0 ‘gpe TRY¥E “8¥e LTH | 00°S 15 |s0/L1/90 sued UI0f (Z)] 891
‘z5g’e "o "zg8'z *zse’e *z58'z LTRH | 00°§ I8 |50/£0/90 | APnam QLI4 ToF wav 3ITT moN| Lot
"008'€ ) '009°€ LM "009'¢ LTRH | 0075 TS |50/TT/50 eIawey A3zances| gt
‘¢1z’e 1o "ETZ'E ‘£rT'E ‘grT'e LTRH | 00°S 1S [50/E2/20 Azozzeg umozn| gat
‘08¢ ‘0 ‘08¢ "8f 08¢ LIRH | 00°§ 135 [50/51/20 yPep 39TTed TenUeH] F9T
"SL0°T "0 *SL0°T A "SI0 T "05t'%e LI | g0°s 35 [po/80/2% zebaeyn users| €91
“gLE ‘0 "gLE ‘8Le ‘gLt 95 LIRH | 00°g 5 [F0/60/TT 2938 ATTTUd TE2D-8T] 29T
‘wansAs ButrejepM KIsnaeg
uonealdag asuadxg uonerardag x3 a
pajginwnozy | uononpag 641998 | pajenuwnody | uopeoaidag 1589 asuadx3 % | SIse8101500 Fon| ¥ 1 ay {poya] PRANBIY uonduosag -an
fiugpuy IRa ) WaAIRY RS E ) Buisuibag 104 s1589 ujucnanpay | g/ uoldag | sng paisnipeun ieun m : aleq) T rasays
066 0T =Bed (66 IO

1HOdEH NOILVZILEOWY QNV NOLLYIO3HdAd 8102




7S

BUOZ O ‘'LUORONPa(] UCLRZIIBHASY felarawwos ‘snuog ‘abeaes ‘0] . pasodsip 188y - {Q)

BL-LO-bD L1828

LHOd3YH NOILVZILHOWY ONV NCILYIOTHdIa 8L0T

"BLE i ‘gLE ‘gL "3LE 9T 00's 18 90/6T/21 goutqen Iagndwop| LT
6895 ‘0 "659°S "669°% "659°S 5% a0°s 15 |30/0€/1T I2ZVBXI| 96T
Xe1dsTg I03 Iovd SYRED
“zot'z 0 AR *zotT'e “zot’z 9t 00°§ 18 |s0/vE/TT zobIeus Azoayed| gET
31 "0 "g9¥ g314 TE9v 8T 00°§ 1S |30/%0/0T 31X BurIisjem| peT
TETIL ‘0 TETL 68T T ‘68T’ a1 00§ 15 [o0/T0/0T sx030H wed {g)| €61
L0’z 0 AL “L60'z ‘60T 9t 06°s s 50/ T0/0T zeppeays Isded| g6T
“679 o ‘679 ‘69 ‘699 91 00°s TS 130/L0/60 ejofol Xoy rojoR dumd| T6T
“T06 ‘0 *106 “i06 ‘106 9T 00's s {90/62/80 | To1oW uwa xoawxodead 4H (Z)] 06T
R4 "0 62T T ‘62T’ 1 “6TTY 97 00°S 18 {96/71/80 aTqel wes3s] 587
‘g’z |0 “geg’or | togz’ee 2 AR-T4 9T 00°s 18 [90/80/80 37717 dI0d| 84t
‘zze'e XY *zzT'e ‘zzT’e *zzT’s 91 00°s as [s0/80/80 uwp uo siosssadwon| L8t
"6ET 00T |0 "6ET 00T | E65 E0T “zes’'cot |9t 00°S 18 |20/92/70 ¥ONIL Iajey TIUI LooT| 98T
AR TEEL T6EL'® *000°TT "000°TT st jo°sT s |30/T0/80 g39UTqeDd usyS3N|| 54T
"96€ ) 113 "96¢€ *96¢€ 971 00°S 18 |90/€0/50 pooy sbuey| pgy
‘6T9’L M *5g9L "s29'L "5g9 L 97 00§ 1% lso/ve/v0 weyshs suwoqd| €81
06T ‘0 06T ‘06z 06% 97 60°'s 45 po/01/70 zolozfoad} ggT
"s10'e 0 "§T0'2 ‘610’z "§T0°% 9% 00°s IS [90/80/€0 | 3ITTMIO] Uo pooeidex ayeid] 13T
‘1g8 "0 ‘16 TTES TTES 3 40°g 1s |90/80/50 (faxep) saejndwod [T=d T} 08T
uonedazdaq asuadxy volenaldag Jox3 A
peigInwnzoy | uononpag 6/E D88 palenwniaoy | uogemaidsg siseg asuedxy % | sisegi0isod eyt ¥ | oy |poyepy| pounboy uenduasag ‘op
Buipug Ieg A Uaing JUETNE ) fuuuebag 104 sISBG ujuononpay | 641 Uodaes | sng pasnipedn  [eun m a8 o Jos8Yy
066 01 »6=d 0§6 wIod




SG

SUCY OO "UOHONIPA( UOHEBZIBYASY [BIDIILIOY ‘snuog ‘aBenes ‘Ol « pasodsip 1assy - {Q) L1000 LLLaze
"TLE. 0 *1LB “1L8 ‘1L8 91 00°¢ 5 80/F1/50 wuyor} 412
- . - x9jndwo> xatdiado [T8g
"LOG 0 “LO§ L0 *LO6 7] 00" 5 1s [30/90/50 IFTTHIOL I0F Azeiied| 917
"99g "0 995 ‘995 995 91 00°S 75 [g0/F0/%0 zepuiTio BurayvI| §1T
Tty 9 0 A “0Tv 9 T01R 9 aT 00°¢ 15 [po/tTE/E0 zatdon| piz
“PLL 0 "VLL “YLL TPLL 91 00°¢ 1S |80/62/20 sssuxey wae Toxjuod| Ziz
"LTIL® ‘0 A TS “LTL'9 TLIL'9 aT 00°% 5 [80/90/20 08T4 suthbud zoy saxed meN| TIZ
“p08’s ‘0 ‘o08’s "008°S ‘pog’s 9T 00's 18 JLO/L0/ZT | T9Z901d Toy Xossaadwod #sN| 0Tz
"LLL'9FT [TevE’ET “PEP EET | "26E’0ZS ZT6L0ZS | 9THM [00°6E TS |B0/0E/90 UOTITPPR ssnoysTeym meN| 607
"509'z 144 *zee’e ‘pse’s “ese’g 91| 0°sT 18 JLO/LT/0T maszeaxy| goz

g8azdwod .m..n..ﬁ.uu..ﬂ NUQWH MaN

‘6L 0 62TL *6TL “6ZL 9T Do°s 18 JLo/0T/0T Aysey-Tejutag wIasofy| Loz
‘126 0 *126 "1T6 *1z6 97 00°s 15 {L0/90/60 TPRUM T3NSR0 IvsI maN| 902
"ozL'e 0 “ozL'T *0zL'e ‘ozl'z 97| 00°§ 18 |ro/s0/80 e3ofog uo duw peoeidsu| poz
..mthm. o "6¥9'T “6¥9’2 2 91 00°s 15 [L0/60/50 sufyoeR =oI aTAls oqnd| oz
"g6£'T ‘o "86E°T 86T ‘g6£'2 91 00°5 15 |0/22/e0 {{59L-9eMIp2ZYD TapoM) xebreun| zoz
"162 o 152 *152 182 971 00°S 15 JL0/ST/€0 vIsumy TeITHId| TOZ
"695°¢ 80z “reg’z TA - TA R 1] jorst 35 {L0/TT/E0 959T3J0 IUGXI UT TTeM| 00T
317 0 31 €97 ‘£9v 9% 007 ¢ 15 {L0/L0/20 soep 3°ted| 661
LTI 0 RELM "098'T 098’1 91 00" 5 JLO/EZ/TO Kzs33eg umoId| 86T
uonezadag asuadx3 uoneyaadag %3 A
PAIRINWNAZY | uopanpeqg B2l 398 panwnady | uoneiosidag 5158§ asuadx3 % | sisegip1s0a fen| 91 ey |pousen pasnboy uopduasag -an

Buipug Ie3 A Wainn wang Buiuuifag 104 siseq ujuonenpay | 641 uonass | sng paisnipeun  jeur| 3 aleQ 1055y

066 0T 26ed (66 WIOg

1H0d3H NOILYZILHOWY GNV NOLLYIO3dd3d §loz




9§

8UOZ QD 'UOII2NPA() UCHEZI[RNASY [BIDJaURLI0D ‘shuog ‘afeajes 'Dl) . pasodsip 1888y - (3} Bh-L0-b0 11628
‘Zrs “ |*os ‘ZTEV ‘08671 ‘086°T 9THH [00°6€ 18 [se/21/60 20T330 uT TTes Man| sg2
‘£PE “ze "1TT “GLB ‘L8 9THH 100°6E 1S [B0/S0/60 Butplyng uy ubTS| PET
"se8’TT . |"e60’T "EEL’OT  {'69%’EY "69s’zy | o1pm o6t I8 {80/60/60 UOTITPPR IsnoyexeM| ££Z
“z2g ) 44 44 4] 971 00°§ 15 |80/T0/60 weysis Antanoeg| zge
‘gvs’y  |tLry "TEL'Y "9sz ot "p§g 9T 9THH J00°6¢ 15 {80/FT/80 ECNCURYECECTE Y] IS S
*009°T "0 ‘o009’ T 308°T 0051 91 p0°g 1S {80/9Z/80 XojwasbTIIau] 0ET
L) 2 R 097 ¢ ‘097" ¢ ‘09% ¢ 21| |oo°s | s lsossizen wo3uks BUOUd} 6TT
‘005 "0 “00s 009 T00% 9% 00°S 5 {80/51/80 Isyutral gzz
"6TIF’9 "0 6T 9 ‘5iv' g “gTE 9 9t 00°S 15 |80/2T/80 Ieza9xi| [TT
'TosypuRyasy Iocd SSELD
AN ZLB *zse's "vz0 vE “%20 ¥E STHH |00 6¢€ 1s [so/s0/80 UCTITPPY Psnoysten MeN| 97F
‘oo’z |'var A 0LT L “0LT L STHR [00°6¢€ s [80/50/80 sdraags| szz
) IDTO0D pue wjoTgne Xardanod
66L 0 "66L 661 “66L a1 0076 s [go/50/80 I8quUTId ®Brav0dy| §IT
061’7 "18¢ ‘608°¢ “ETL’s ‘EiL's gt fo°sT 1s |s0/L0/ L0 JUTT uTeHo @sousg| £7F
"60s'Ev  {"SS6°E *06s°6¢ Tevz PST "EFZT PST | 9THK [00°6E TS BO/E0/LD uoIITPpe meu BUTPTTN| ZZE
‘1ez’y . ["sse “9y8’¢ | "000'sT "600'ST | 9TPM 0°6E | IS [80/L0/L0 suog 3Iojuwop xezeei| Tzz
*5Lg 0 ‘qLg 5.8 "GLE 91| po-or 15 [80/E0/L0 anbeld jerzowsH SsoIyos| 0Tz
595’ 0 ‘95’ *595'¢ ‘§95°¢ 91| footet | = lgescesio sousal g1z
508 0 00§ ‘o0s T00S 9T 00°s 15 [sa/01/90 NASTOZd dH Iojutid| g1z
uoneasdag ssuadx3 | uoreoeidag (g N
pagInMuUNI0Y | uolonpag B4L 088 | paremunooy | uopeiasidag siseg asuadx % | SISegI003 [on] U | oy |pomay| Pennboy uonduasag ‘oN
feapuyg FERA JUaIINg waung Guuwmbag 104 siseg ujuononpay | g7 uooag | osn pasnipeug |eun m ’ aeq o \es8Y
066 0T sbed 065 wrod

LH0d3aY NOLLYZILHOWY ANY NOLLVIDIHISA 8102



LS

aU0Z O ‘UeNONPa(] UONBZIIBIASY [BIMAWWO, ‘snuoyg *abBeajeg ‘]t . pesodsip 1988y - ()

81-L0-b0 L1LEEE

“evz'v. 7o ‘evz’y gve’y TERET 91 00°L 18 [50/%0/90 wa3sdy Burrsjem| 5z
T . pue Axeiied ISTTHIOI
g9t L ‘0 "£9T'L "EST L €9t L 97 00" L I8 [60/70/90 3TUN D/Y¥ £52
"g6L "0 “86L “86L "§6L 97 00°§ 15 |60/62/50 7 $YoRp YONIL 39TTRI| ZS2Z
"e8g’T 0 "58¢°T *GRETT "gRE’T 9T 00°g 1s |60/%1/%0 Kasazeq| 17
TGYT 1%t “IET *g5S €55 9TFGL 00" 6E 15 |60/L1/€0 w1y abeaeTes| 062
L0V ‘6€ *g9g 6857 T "6ESTT TP |00 6¢ I8 [60/1T/¢€0 waIy abeAamTRS! §FZ
*ZFe’T *EST g8V’ "86T°9 "36T 9 9THH |00 °6E s |50/50/€0 I00( SOTAIDE UATM TTeM #oN| 87z
144 A4 Loz 598 *G98 9ThM [00°6¢ 18 |60/L0/€0 BUTPTING I03 Tooq sbeaes| (pg
*z89 0. "z8g “zgy “z89 9T eo*s | 15 [s0/92/20 118 Io&sauan| g9pg
it o ‘00z ‘0oz 00T 97T 0075 s [50/92/20 sep sateatuws| gpz
TLET Tl "§T% ‘58% *98¥ 9TRH [00°6¢ s |50/90/70 zoog pue sMopuiM| ¥y
“T¥a 0 “TY9 ‘178 19 91 00" 1S 180/TE/TT deaddn we3siy TeoTINOSTE| £vE
1055 0 085 *955 *0ss 91 00°S 75 [go/TE/01 saoqdepy/ung 1ojem| zpe
"669 "0 669 ‘669 *669 91 60°g IS {80/T0/0T oTqe3qIoM PUEIS| 07T
666 0 666 666 “666 34 407s 5 [80/91/50 Iamold ‘ISYSeM SINSsLIJ| 6E2
"L85°9 "0 185’9 *18579 "Lgs’9 ST a0°s 18 [g0/6T/60 we3sAs exswed| gez
“igg o€ {1 "E9T'T "g9T’ Y ST 00" 6¢ 15 [B0/6T/60 s9o1330} LET

. MADU UT SISTIANO BIRD OM3
*g5g 74 i {3 *9z6 ‘9zg ST |00 6€ 1s |go/sz/60 senbera TrTeM} 9¢7
uogeraaidag asuatha uonerasIdag 19x3 N
palenwinaay | uenianpaq 6.t 988 pae|nwnoay | uenesaidag siseg asuadxy % | 81580101500 |-ont ¥ | gy |poyew] Poanboy uonduasaq ‘N
fiupug 188 JUBLY WalRY fuiuuibsg 104 siskg uyvonanpay | g1 uonseg | sng pagnipeun (s} 2 i aleq o 1888y
066 0T abed (g6 WroJg

1H0d3d NOILVZILHOWY ANV NOLLYIOZHdEd 8102




8%

BUOZ Y 'UONONPAQ UoREZI[BIASY [Bl0JaLLo) 'snuog ‘ebeafes ‘D1 . pasodsip 18ssY - ()

8L-LO-¥0 LLLBZE

1HOd3H NOILVZIL HOWY ANV NOILYIOSHdAA 8102

‘yIS "0 “PIS "PIS ‘BIS “gzo'y LIRH | 00°S 15 |0E/TE/ED (=, fyaea) | £uT
I3Tdon Iof pirOg Xed

"gse’ T "9%T "60T°'T "689°§ "589°s LTHH [00°6E 18 OT/SE/e0 jusueseydsx JooI| ZLZ
B ISTO0D GUEME JO TRACWSY

AR 0 "so7'T "G0Y° T “s0%'T 11 A LTRE | 00°S 15 [0T/ST/€0 | 3313 28938 3 ATquesse sy=ag| 1Lz
“g¥F S8~ |°0 AT T UOTSNTOXT £827

*poo’se [t *p00’ 58 “0007 58 "000°s8 TZRH | 0075 [BA00Z [60/82/0T (uoT3eucy pudi 0LT
) : ATerTeM) onI] paieasbTIzsy

“Lys'e ‘0 “L¥6'e AT ‘8v6'2 *g68°5 LIRH | 00°g 18 0T/20/¢€0 |o=noysrem I0I Ioqqnios I00Td| §9%

‘18 °6. TZL "GEE "SEE LTHH 00°6€ a8 [0T/£0/20 sxteasdn| gsz
9271310 MU I0J STRTIIFEH

Te0g’e 0 *pog’z TooE’e “00g’z 009’y LTRH | 007§ 18 [0T/2T/20 €T-GZT~8T OH| L92Z
walgls burasiem yzis Azexjeg

‘£ET "5¢ *g0¢g “096 ‘096 LTFM 00°6¢€ I8 [0T/%T/T0 satelsdn 82TITo MaN| 392

‘z69'se ‘0 *z69°5¢ *z69° 52 ‘269°5% LTEH | 0076 15 |6O/ET/TT IFTINIOL oTek| $9¢

seg't |t “Gee’T "SL8'E "gLe’T LTEH | 00°% 15 |60/€T/1T | usysasin ¥ @xxed suoijeasya| gz
H®a7drado saeindwod T1ad 7

"502°T “gZT ‘e80T "gge’y 1 LT 00°6€E 18 [60/50/TT {{2Z¢) IodZasid 103 sIooQ oowsy| ZgE

"t66'€ T4 "TL5'E “T0z'¥ YA LIEH 00°0T 18 [60/0E760 sIsToAa8T] Yood Z| 092

“9ZL 0 ‘8ZL ‘gzl "BZL LIRH | 0078 TS5 [50/LT/80 suoyd pue| g5¢
pIe) uoTieys [E3ITRTAE 9T DEN

‘08¢ ‘0 “09¢E T09¢€ ‘09¢ LIKH | 007§ 5 §60/50/80 ater - weisks zsjem| ssz

TN 0 "GLe'T ‘GL9°T "Lyt LIRH | 6075 15 60/91/L0 xo308loxd]} L5g
Te3arbta ¥ gof doadew Treqg

‘6666 0 "S66°6 ‘G666 *666°6 91 00" L 15 l60/531/50 wa)sAS }OBY UT SATIA| 95T

"906 "0 "806 "906 ‘908 o3 60§ T8 60/51/80 ISINAWOD| 52

uogeraidag 2509t uonziassdaq [9x3 A
pajeninady | uonoanpag 621985 | pasenwnoay | uoneisaidag siseg asuadxy % | SISEg103S00 |on| “ | gy |pouew] Pesnbay uopduasag -on
fiuepu3 1B Waimg JUALRY fuluwmbag 104 siseq ul voganpay | /] uonaeg | sng pajsnipesn (eun m : aleq o 1853y
066 0T ®bead (66 WIOT




6S

BUOY (D) 'UORONPAQ UONEZIBASY |BIOISWILIOS ‘snuog ‘abeaes ‘Ol . pasodsip 1888y - ()

BL-LO-PG L1LGER

"098’e 0 "098’9 098”9 “g98’9 9T 00°g 15 |TT/50/50 {aTwep ‘susior| €67
‘pravg ‘Ayzex) sasandwop (§)
"96L ‘0 “96L “96L "96L 9T 00°5 18 |t1/62/%0 ssuoyd ssN £f 162
14} 0 628 "6T8 ‘528 9T 00°g I8 [TT/L0/%0 TIxeys oy ILIUTAI| 06Z
“eyT'T “BET TL00'T "gsT’® Tgot’y 9T, P0°0¢ 15 |TT/¥0/%0 [wooIpIeog pio U s30TiIo men| sz
*958"T" ‘0 "958°T MCET To58’ T 9T 00°s s |TT/L0/T0 seTi933ed M3N ¥| 88%
*£Z9 ‘EL ‘055 T00T'T ‘00T’ 1 9tf [00°ST 15 |ot/0z/eT usysyTH x0y sasutqen| rgz
os¥T o “0sy’T *0SF°T ‘0s¥’T 97 00°s 18 ot/eT/TT anTd gav [1o%| 982
065 i) 065 ‘066 ‘0586 91 00° L 1S [0T/8T/01 soumrjuy juori Ioj Butumy| 58z
‘848’1 i} "848’ ‘gLg’T "8L8’T 91 00°s TS [pT/8T/0T 1TTd/wmog To3y sxejndwod (Z)| vaz
‘690’ ¥ "0 "650°F 650 F 6507 9T 00°¢ 1s |ot/BT/0T zo1dop dxwys| £ag
"ose’v ) 058’y ‘05z’ ‘o5z’ 93 00§ 18 {07/90/0€ Kxoyqed| 7gg
‘ezT’T "0 TeTTT "E€TT'T XA Tovz'z LIRH | 00°§ T8 |0t/80/50 Iossaxduan| 18¢
‘$Ly "0 A VLY ‘PLY *BV6 LTEH | 007 ¢ 18 [0T/TE/80 9DTATSS XIWOISOD UT butumv| 6.7
1] "0 ‘Te9 "Tg9 4] ‘g9z’ T LTERH | 00°L 8 |pT/st/90 a1zzou  ¢I jeoney Surxiw| gLz
YITM HUTS AWOUOSD gny g

‘pzg "0 24 14 14 “679°T LTRH | 00" € 18 for/sT/90 ued g pejeisbraged| LLT
"69€ 0 “69g ‘69¢ "§9E ‘gEL LIRH | 00° € T8 T/ F0/90 ISpUITAo *31SER| 942
SLE ‘0 "GLE ‘SLE “sLE T LTRH | 00°S TS 0T/ L0/S0 syonxy jafed g| 5Lg
YA "0 0oz ‘007 *e0T 11} LTHE | 08°§ S WT/ST/V0 eIaWR) Y2poy| FLZ
toneasldag asuadx3 uonegasdag 1o%3 A
palgjnwnasy | uonanpaq AR LS paleinwingdy | uoneoaidag siseg asuadxg % | SIS 01500 on| Ut gy |poyjew| PANDOY uonduasag ‘0N

fupul Jea ) ualng uauNg Buisuifisg 104 s158 ujuononpay | 671 wondag | sng palsnipeun  {eun m ’ ajeg o jeS5Y

.
068 0T =bed 066 Wiog

1HOd3H NOILLYZILHOWY ONV NOILYIO3Hd3d 8102




09

Loy (D) ‘UONSNPAT UOIBZIBUASY [BIISWLION ‘SNUOg ‘abealeg ‘DI « pasodsip 1888y - ()

81-10-70 111628

“9gy ] ‘9P ‘8% 13 “TL6 LifE | 00°s 18 [21/L2/80 §)onIL 38Ted Z| STE
"9L0°§ "T8L 11487 "99% ' ‘997 g 286 0T LIRH | 602 s [ei/ee/s0 IBTTRII| PTE
aneutwel Y3Ts deIs SToTU=A
09T, "0 09T ‘g9t 65T "6TE LIRH | @0°s IS {£I/01/80 doy satejsdn zo3y zejndwod| £T¢
1T "0 "iTe “TI19 *T19 AL AR LTEH | 00°g TS [21/90/80 pol uoystd psoeidaal Zit
‘6EL 0 "6EL TGEL TGEL TR LTRH | g0°g 1S [ei/c0/L0 Atquasse syelq #aN| ITE
TSTET 0 "STP'T "SIPUT 91y’ 1 “teg e LTRH | 00°S 1s [et/€T/L0 oqang| 0T1¢
*050°T "0 0501 '050°T ‘050"t 31 00°s 15 [eT/v0/50 vegarag-Iajnduwan| gog
E¥6 ‘0 4 13 £V “Evs 91 00°s 1s [e1/92/%0 29T7ITI09¥| gog
"1ZE9 "0 "TZE’9 ‘T2e’Y *TzE'9 91 00" 18 [gT/90/70 sITejsusop 3adren| Log
*szr'se |0 T4 AT I 14 2 T T4 R 9T 007§ 1s [eT/T0/%0 90T-ZH T9PoW - TLJd| 90€
Tig2'6 "0 "1£2’6 RTAA *1£Z'6 91 0078 1s [zT/90/€0 Iojo Butrseas| pog
*e50"0T |0 "960 0T | 960701 960 01 9T 06°S T8 [TT/%1/01 (234} AoniL| gog
‘£69 0 “£69 ‘£69 ‘£69 9T 08§ 5 T/80/01 T03BASTR0OY MON| ZOE
14 0 “§25 625 85 9T 00°§ 15 |TT/5T/60 sewoyd| TOg
*teyo’ss [0 “gpo’es | "ev9’ss "EV9 88 9T 00°g 18 {TT/18/80 (ZTTZH [9DOW) ZO3IDRIL] H0%
"€60°T o “$60°T TES0TT "€50°T 9T 00°g as [tT/sz/80 0LTd X037 rosswrduod ma| g6z
*069'TL |0 ‘g69'TL  ]t069 1L "069° 1L 9T 00°g 18 |tT/91/80 zaTeI], Iojaexr| g6z
"SLE K ‘GLe "SLE "SLE 9T 00°s 18 [1T/5T/L0 yoep 39ttTeRal L6z
uopeaidag gsuadx3 uonensidag 19x3 A
PRIBIRWNIYY | UORINBRY G} 005 | paImUNDYY | uonepaidag siseg asuadxy % | SIRGINSOY [ani U | oy |poutap| Pennboy u011duasaq "oN
fiupu3 JBOA U810 WaLRg fuluwfiag 104 siseg uj uononpay | 621 uonoag | sng pasnlpeupy Jewnf arQg 1e58Y
066 0T #bed Qgg§ wIOJd

1HOdIY NOILLVZILHOWY GNV NOILYID3Hd3qa 810e




TS

f ki ! : . asodsip 1essy -
BUOZ O ‘UCHINPA(] UCKEZIRIASY [BIDIBWIWOY) ‘snuog ‘sheses ‘0| p 1P 1285y - {() L1001 1520
‘$50°2 - |"s0T “6vE’T "¥60°2 "650'2 "60T ¥ LIpH | 00°¢ 15 [£1/92/80 | AonaL uT TooTd qng peseldey]| rig
"00L'T *0LT "pES T 004 T "00L"T ML) LTKH | 60”5 TS [£T/80/L0 T4 00 UC YOINTD MONM| TEE
‘poe’osz |'66L°€S "507°92z | 91”860 °¢2 "G9T'B60 ¢ LTH 00°6€ 15 |pE/0e/%0 UGTATPPY I9T00D-IezsRxi| Teg
"0 "009°¢ "009 ¢ kH | aog” N [eT/2T/30 (suayod) Iuwexb woxr| ggg
saTousbe 01 USATH sIazZaoxl
"STE "0 Tete *§Ig "51¢ Tps9 LTRE | 005 15 [£1/60/90 000f 3xcD8d Keawed| 6ze
“LB8 "gET ‘peg "00Z's “p02's LT [00°6E 15 [et/ve/vo Ttes 233xouod| gze
‘09t‘z  |"eae AT *1vs‘e "Tvs’e “£80°S LTRH | 087 L 8 €T/ST/%0 . zo3osfuTr Tony| L2t
"66% 0 ‘662 66T 11 ‘g6s LT[RE | 00°§ 18 [€T/50/70 roz99aZ Id DD §°0%| 92¢
“gee’y 052 *SLE'T "0SL'T TesL'T "605°E LTRE | 00°L 15 ET/L0/50 pesn| sz¢
IDITRI], T2Id0d USRRM 8661
-t 44 ‘0 T5zT 44 14 05y LTIRH | 00" 15 [£T/5T/20 |pTea x9azes g9 gL pue welsAs| pge
A3TIN08e8 I0J JOojTUOW ADT ,TE
9TRH | 000~
"¥z9’e “FOP “eze’R *528°¢ ‘szg’e *059°¢ LTRH | 00"t 1s [€T/ST/20 xossaadwen| zzg
‘svs'y "569 ‘osg’g %507 42 "vs0°'Le | LTHME BB0"BE 18 [2r/L0/zT butpTs @oetdex| Tze
“zog’e o ‘zog’z “zZog’e ‘zog’e ‘709’s LTEH | 00° 18 [zr/eTiTT Arsyteq periisnpul| oze
*80L g "80L "80L "60L LIvT LTRH | 00°S 18 |2T/LT/0T Aetrep - zsjndwod| 61g
"80L ¢ *80L g “60L AL LTRH | 00°9 18 [21/LT/07 uueapr - z@jndwod| gyE
‘1622 "0 1622 1622 o5z’ “185'v LTIRH | 007§ 15 {£T/90/20 dumd 33TT| LTE
T00T 0 *00¢ 002 ‘o0z *00% LTIRH | 00" G 15 {g1/L2/60 yonxy xoy Ioop 3IFet| 9TE
uogeaidag asusdxg uaneardag %3 A
paleineenady | uowanpag 61 985 pajenenoay | uonemaidag st589 asuadx3 % | SISeGI01S00 Fon| ¥ | gy {poye] Paanbay uondinseq “oN
Guepu3 Jea) Wainn anng Buuuibag 104 1589 uj uonanpay | g/ uopdag | serg paisnipeun jeu m i aleq o 1885y
066 0T @Bed pge wrog

1HO0dAd NOILYZILHOWY ANV NOLLYIO3dd3a 8Log



£9

auoz OO ‘ucionpaq uogezieasy [elosawuon ‘snuog ‘ebeaes ‘017 ., poasodsip 1988y - {()

SL-10-k0 LLLBZS

‘1Z0°¢ STTR LTr 'z "TE0 '€ "TZo'E RATE tigu | o0°g T8 [PE/92/90 GZ-68D8T - Afel3ed] 9ot
"sgT LE ‘g1 6B T58T TDLE LIRH | 00°S s [p1/62/50 Azsaaeg| g6¢
‘gzl la T8g 142 “LEL *65% T LTRH | 007S S |PT/ST/S0 ajooig -| pSE
zza3ndwed gTOL *X0TATIA0 1124
‘0S¢ ‘0L ‘0ge *0SE *psE QoL LIRE | 00°S 18 WI/ST/50 sexswe) I0T0d Z| £4E
968 "968 08y ¥ T 095’ LIRH [00°0T 18 BI/06/70 1979934 X037 SPITS Iood| TSE
T6TV ‘98 313 147 “gey 858 LIRE | 00°§ 15 FT/IE/E0 Tossaxdwon| T5¢
‘os¥ 06 “pos oSy 1 ‘006 LTIRE | 00°§ s WT/Lz/Ee sauoyd z| oge
"g69 "0FT *gss L69 “869 "s6E' T LIRE | 00°§ T8 FL/L0/T0 a3ooig ~| GFE
zejndwcd 0ToL Xe1drado 1120
‘6L v 67T ‘61 ORI *§LZ LIRE | 00°S a8 KY/LT/2T IsuuURDS JuUSUNDOQ| FRE
‘068 ‘68 *108 068 168 TR LTRH | 00°s 15 [£1/50/21 S}onIL 33TTRd 8| LFE
"61z'€ 585 ‘ye9’e “geo’y 260" v ‘96T’ g LIKH | 00" L s [£1/56/2T zosgaadwod| gpg
TLbL -7 *ZLY AT Tg¥L "GE7 T LTRH | 00°§ 18 [€T/LZ/1T ¥ - zeandwed ITed| spe
"918°T “OEE. “9gy’ T “zIE’E ‘T1e’E "gze'y LTRH | 00"t 18 [£T/90/TT Yo3INTo pue [ooUMATI MoN| phe
"ZelT 14 ‘801 "B9T 89T “LEE LtikH | 00"t 18 [eT/90/TT eaxe| £pe
abeATRS JURL I2IEMIOH MSN
"T18' % “£6T ‘81’ T P50 e *150°¢ "oty LTRH | 00"t 15 [ET/52/01 23eBazTT 1| Z%E
*L89’€ AT “000'€ ‘998 ¥ "599°y “TEE’ 6 LTRH | 00" L s [€1/F2/01 STT0D Iojexodeay seN| Tye
*000°T ‘003 006 *000°T "000°T ‘000’2 LTRH | 00°§ 15 [ET/ET/60 Jseysdifs TInd ysnd| ope
‘166 ‘66 "z68 ‘Z6§ 166 ‘€961 LTfH | 00°¢ s [ET/9T/80 prrog o3bo7 peocerdsy| gee
uoneizaldag astiadxy uonezaidag 1343 o
polenwnosy | uonanpag BZL 938 | palelawnody | uonedadag siseg asuaix] % |SE9101800 [on| U | o |pompapy| Pesnbov wopdiasaq “oN
Buipuz 1284 Juenng Waung fiteuenGag 104 siseq upuelanpay | 571 U0Noas | sng paisnipeun feun] 3 ’ st o 1ossy
066 0T =5ed p66 WIod

1HOJdTIH NOILVZILHOWY ONY NOILYIDIY43a 8103




€9

auoZ OH ‘uoionpa uogezieUASY [BlosawI0) ‘snuog 'afieaes ‘0] . pasodsip 18388y - {())

BL-0-F0 LLLBZE

*1zZ§. 67T "ZLE “pYL GPL “687 1 LTRH | 6o°g 18 |st/80/60 yoanio |- Lgg
uey ¥ 'zossexdwes ‘iojerpey
"L6E VIT 314 TL9% "89S *SET'T LTRRH | 007§ TS IST/TT/80 00EZL TTeMOTUOS Q| 98¢
‘19g “€0T "BSE 1L 14 TTET T LTRH | 00°L T8 5T/ T2/80 B 087Td| G8E
TPUTIIYBTRIL MOM IojeIpey
*PET i1 96 161 ‘06T I8¢ LIRE | 00°5 I8 [ST/L0/80 AITUTIDY "HSSY 05 xeoy| bgs
588 ‘€52 "ZEY "yoz’T RZIAR" ‘gzs’e LIfRH | 00°S 18 [ST/50/80 IRFFTTAUY PUR I030H URI{ £8E
‘p0s’¥ "000°1 "g05 '€ *000°S "a00°’s Tgo0 0T LTRH | 005 15 |PT/8Z/L0 [®U> Aze3jeq suo pue 3FTTHIOA| Z8€
SZOHDHA! T9POW ®il0oicl gooe
YET'T “6ET ‘566 MCIAR “g02'T LTEH | 00°5 |EapoZ |sT/80/90 sng Ioy 33y zosseaducd meN| 08¢
€20 ¥ *¥E68 N4 “0LF 0LF'Y LTEH | 0075 15 |ST/$T/50 aatap| 6LE
puey 41 I pue xajndwod #4aN §
tgeE T, o |tsEw TE0S'T LvT'e LYT'E LTRH | 00§ 15 [ST/62/%0 IZTTOTIUSS 20ITUCH #aN| GLE
EAA ‘ZLE 00E°T GTLE "GTL'E LIRH j00°0T s [6T/02/E0 ypog 203 BurTIRM| 94f
"€65°§ A A *05E’ Y VA "00L's LIRH | 00" ¢ 35 {ST1/BI/E0 asazag #sN| gie
"L9L'ET  |"650°¢ "goL 0T | teir’ie 9Ty 12 "geg’ey | LTRH | 0074 IS F1/531/0T 3ITuUn BUTsusSpuUSD| OLE
‘o9v'z WAL ‘ET6'T A "g9v’s "sg6°0T | LTRM fpotor TS5 [FE/62/60 saeTeAsT Jood g%9 (g)] 69¢
TLSL *89T "685 ‘168 4 "£89°T LTRH | 00°S s [pr/62/60 ¥9-g yanTd - Bury owraus| gog
"g9z’9 "962'1 AT/ ‘ELB7 8¢ “EL88E 91 fo-og s [vT/ST/60 ¥ooQ butayensy pusixm| 99f
*9yg’T *66Z Ly’ T G671 G671 066 LIRE | 00°% 18 [FI/TE/LE To3eTped| T9¢
*g£g8’s1 ._ [-oes”e X-TA 4 B AT RFA “gv9 LT ‘662 5¢ LIRH | 00°5 18 [BT/62/L0 | LDoZ - Iozoexl surpiybrexal psc
“TLS'E “TLS 400’z “oe0’y ‘000°% ‘000’8 LIRH | 007 L 15 p1/82/L0 3371 a0SsT28] 66E
uoiedaidag asuadxy uenelzidag 19%3 A
PEIBIRWNITY |  UQIINREY 641 935 | palelnwnody | uonensideg siseg asuadxy % [S15egu01sed |onf Y |y |poyen| Pesnboy vopdiasag o
fiv)pug Iea ) Jusing uaLng fujuuifiag o4 siseg ujuononpay | 57| uonoag | sng pasnlpeun e 3 ; aeg o ies5Y
066 0T =2BBd 06§ WIo

1H0d3Y NOLLYZILHOWY UNV NOILYIOEH43A 8L0T




79

auoZ7 OO 'UolIONPa(] UCNEZIBIIAGY [BI2JAWILLOS ‘snucg 'abeales 'l « pasodsip 1885y - (Q) Ch-L0-b0 bh1aZ8
*zeL'e.  [*T80T ‘T0L’2 “gob’g "£07’s "908 8T LTEH | 00°6 I8 |9t/80/20 Iafood 19%IeH - Xogsaxdwod| 0¥
LG6 *58% "ZTL PERT PTFT ‘8%8°Z LT[RH | 0076 15 |9T/BE/TO TeTIUaIaIITd Te2d| ¥O¥
1 S T “t6 “L8T "88T "SLE cifE | oos | 15 pT/vT/TO eATIQ YSTQ PIeH| £ov
Tget SE 88 “SLT "SLT ‘0s5¢€ LT[KH | 00" % 18 |9t/¥1/10 exswey A3tansssg| zow
*9pT 4 vOT TROE ‘01T “6TF LTRH | 00°§ 15 [sT/ST/2T yuts dow| Tow
"0TE “69 ‘0s1 Tpoo *089 00271 LT[EH [30°0T 15 [sT/sT/21 zajuso| gov
BOTAISS T9IUNToA — HUTUMY
‘562 “¥8 “TTE 447 gy "pYE LTEH | 00°s 18 [8T/ST/2T wa1e| g6¢
Hﬂumk.mﬁ ~ Z0JC0H Urg ISSUapUC)
-TA TLET ‘Zhe L "¥89 "gec't LIEH | 00°5 18 [st/gt/ET xojerpey| gse
‘162's  |zEs’t “GLL'E "sL9°zT "519°zT ‘08’ 6F LTRH [00°ST s [5T/62/0T esnoyexen| LG
J10 UOT308F PIO - STTEM TRISN
"SER T6ET *96§ “EsT’T R ‘9gc’z LTEH | 00°§ 18 [sT/22/0T xezes1I| 94¢
mau ut uﬂ@EMUMHQUH AXL
-5 22NN A T A YA TEPE ‘8¥e L6 LTRH | 00°§ 15 [ST/ST/0T pIeog foazuod| se¢
"F09°T *gS¥y "9FT’T *602'¢€ "g0g’e LIF9 LTRH | 00" L 15 [ST/90/01T zosseaduod | p6¢
T A T ‘0ve “o8y 1 "19¢ LIRH | 00°§ HS {S1/90/01 wen - zojenialTy| ¢Ee
"6€6 *89¢ “ILY TTFECT oPE’T “ige’e LIfRH { 00°S 35 {6T/62/60 I97T0I3UCD| 26€
"ggz. . o f'se “oLT "ovE "6EE “6L9 LI | 00°s | 75 |s1/22/60 33TIATOL - useq sen| Tet
"99¢ ‘60T "19% 'ZTS "£Tg "sP0°T LIpH | oo°s 8 I55/51/50 NUTE qnL Z} 06€
A4 A “6LS "8¥ET “e50’y AT "G0T'8 LIRH | ¢07L s I5T/51/60 suthum MeN} 63€
656 ‘PLE '589 “TLE'T "TLe'T “TwL'e LIEH | 60°g 15 ST/¥1/60 uep sHpog - woTasTwsuexry| gge
ueneizaldaq asuadxy uoneisardag X3 A
palgnwndzy | uonanpag AR pajenwenaay | uongnaidsg siseg asuadxy % | SISEGIRIS0] fon| Y | wy {poyap| ReANhoy uongioseq oN
fiugpuy JBAA WBLIRY waeng Buiuuifag 104 s1se9 ujuenanpay | 621 uonoes | sng pajsnipeun  geun m ' ale( o 1essy
086 0T @bed 0gp wioX

1HOd34 NOILVZILHOWY NV NOILYIDO3Hdad 810z



59

auoz D) ‘UORONPE(] UONEZIENASY [eloawlos ‘snuog ‘abenes ‘Ol « pasodsip jassy - ()

Bi-LO"¥C L1LBEE

*g66°5%  ["66€’0T “665°ST | '¥6L'ZL “¥6L'ZL "885 SPT | LTRE | 00°L a8 LT/LE/To yonaz| £zy
: ¥X9 ¥€S 00%¥ T,3UI LTOT
1291 *8%9 "ELE HAZAE “eve'e LTEH | 00°S IS |LT/6T/T0 "pAH Tenuey e2uo3zTi| zZy
TZLL’T “60L "£90°1 *Z96'Y "Z96'¥ LTRH | 00" L T§ [9T/L0/0T | (wexzboxd yoouss) ssbpTad | -TL¥
LY 692 TE0¥ “zge’T g8’ LTEH | 0072 15 |9T/L0/0T (wexboxd| gzy

jooqos) sIsZelad “I'D €
T6TL - 88T 1€ A2 ‘gEy’T "5.8°2 LTEH | 007§ 15 9T/ST/60 YeTYE. - 0y04 *xoTdrado TTaU| 6T
€509 “1ev'e "zE9e 056971 "0S6°9T | LTRH | 00°L 5 |9T/90/80 AITTHI04 - INXOPL Zo3skH| 9Ty

“9zg'T- - |"L0s-. §T0°2z~ | *BED B- ‘8g0"¥- 50" g- uotsnyoXg 998
"SLE'T "958 A4 "psT'w ‘oSz’ 00567| 0058 L1ke | oo°s IS [ST/L0/0T TIBITRIY 20T X ,£5 weal| LIV

Axg oxeideind ysedqem (00T
*88e’ T *g9¢ '0%6 ‘TP T EATI ‘g9’ LTRH | 0075 15 |9T/62/90 IoputTin xasen| 91w
"T5¥ ZET “6ZE 858 *gs5¢ ‘91’1 LTRH | Do°S IS [9T/ST/90 qoInTd ¥o-¢| STF
152’'s - |teos’T "ssL’e 608 L 605 L "gTO’ST | LTRH | 00°s s [9T/80/90 Bupyowy Towevexd| yip
6EE L6 "Tve ‘¥8Y 8% 896 LTIRH | pe"s TS 9T/80/90 zeandwen xa1dtado TI1sal €T
‘ste’s L |Ttze't vss'v  |tesc’zr | tost'zT 00s’sz | eipH |oote | Is oiseiscoe uep Kaeud §T0z| TTF
128’2 €99 888’ T 179y TERe 'y "z8zT’6 LIRH | p0"2 5 9T/80/%0 woo¥ [0od UT Iojnredeaz| OTF
‘szz'e - |'vze "vot'e LT 05y’ 9 T006°2T | LTIRHM | 007L 6 19T/81/€0 3IITINTOA| 607
"0ET’S 997’ T "p93’g *09z’0T “192°0T ‘1esoz | LTfEH | 007L 18 [9E/9T/E0 Tojezodeam) govy
o6g’v . |Twse'T ‘9£T’e |tosL's “6LL'8 65s°LT | LtRH | 0otL | a8 [pr/eE/z0 a3ep 3371} L0V
“goL’T L8V 97T T ZEV'Z ‘EEFE ‘598'% LIRH | 00”5 15 |9T/80/20 ATsnyeg umoId| 9o¥

uonernatdeq) asuadxy uoljeaaidag [9x3 A
PaiE|nUNY ugranpeg B/L 298 pateneuncoy | uopeizaidag 51588 asuadx] % sisegd () 1807 | ranf Y a7 | pouls pannbay uondusag ‘oN
fuipuz legp uaung usung Buuufiag Jogsisey | upuononpay | 6| uonaeg | sng | pawsnipeun [surty ) e T tessy
066 01 2hrg Qg5 WrCT

1H0d3Y NOILYZILHOWY aNVY NOILLYI33Hd3a 8102




99

|UNZ O 'UonINPag UOREZIBIASY [BIDISUILIOD 'Shuog .mmm_;".mw el % pasodsip jassy - (a)}

SL-L0-v0 LLlg2R

LHOd3H NOILVZILHOWY ANY NOILVI234Hd3a 8102

"6€6 TE "BE6TE ‘6es'te - pstpW | oot | s [eT/sT/eT ueh yseqes §T0Z| £9¥
"0gg’ 9 “pgg 9 ‘oEs’9 HETPR | 007§ 15 [51/80/20 Azsyseqg wmoid| TE¥
*g5L°¢ A2 *ziz *008" LT 008 LT 9T 00°L 15 BT/¥1/90 Butryoey asnoysres| opy
“p6e’9 ‘FE1’9 ‘952 “¥1T76ET "¥IT 6EZ | LIPS 007 6E 15 [81/08/96 Iajuap @peIl 1vs| 6EV
“y9L'ge "€16°S “158°z¢ 4401 ‘gey6E 9T 007§ s [WI/T6/70 3ITTYI0d - SBUTTOIERD STRR| LEF
*gog ‘01E TgST "0S0°T ‘950 T 97T, 00°'S 18 WWI/ZT/0T gy | sev
¥ L7 syoer j@[Ted [enuey
‘€69 *96€ *L§Z 086 T 0861 9T 08¢ 18 JLT/20/01 zsgndwmop [-I T93UI| SEF
*F9S'T ‘gag TTIL "g9T’ Y ‘g9z’ v 97, 00°S IS LT/T0/60 | doep 38TTed o1I30eTm w3okos| pey
f0zT't  |TTTe "60% "950°¢ ‘gs0’c |1l foo's| s fL1/5T/60 sI03eTebTIZeN| £EV
Zoog aTHUTS LI N2 £2 (T)
766 “T¥S *TSP "goL'E A 971 0o°s s JLT/2T/80 sx9ze9xd i OD £°0T (%) | Zt¥
“LL “TE o 23 Tyt *gog LIRH | 00°¢ 18 [LY/LT/50 zojtuow AL{ IEF
345 “BLE ‘L9 "068°1 ‘068’ "0BL € TZRH | 00°S 18 |LT/LTI/S0 Azs3aed 33TIMI0I] 0£%
‘8£1 gg ‘£g "SLT ‘SLE 058 Lk | 00°s 18 |L1/60/50 MAQ eIswe)d &3tinosg| §T¥
FIST-  {'%09- "806- “gz0 E- "6Z0 €~ *950°9- uoTENTOXT 86T
"vEE'T “g€9 956 "L8T'g "881°¢ 00567 "S5LE9 LTREH | 00°S T8 [3T/08/60 a11 etonbsg e3okol zooz| Lzv
‘062 00T 05T ‘567 ‘005 666 LTRH | 00°¢ s [LT/0€/€0 TI8yn - xsandwon| 9zp
T il Tsv QST *0ST *00c LTRH | 00°S 18 |LT/90/€0 serswed A3Tinsss| gzp
€91 59 86 M-t *5z¢ 089 LTFEH | 00°5 18 [L1/¥1/20 Butzajye sonirn| vry
uoteoaidag asuadx3 | uenewaidag JoX3 A
pajgIMUNI0Y | uolonpag 621 938 | pajInWNggY § uonemeidag siseg asuadxg % | $1SgI0S00 [an] U [ g |poway| Peinboy vondizasag oM
Berpeg Tea A a1 welng fuuubag 104 siseg uj uanonpey | 671 Uonoag | osn pasnipeun  |eun m ; aleq o 1ossy
066 0T =bed Qg5 wxod




L9

au07Z QY ‘uoioNPag UoNeZIEIAGYH =]t di= N ITE [ofg W-15 1F [o]= .mm.m>_mw e TIIS ﬁmmOn_m_U 1888y - ADV

BL-10-¥0 LLLGER

756 LES T *o9gr ' 8PE I ROY 58T d 580 909 ‘687 T6L° soueTeq Burpum
‘gt TS TIT |T0ISTITT | "0 0TS TTT su0T3TS0ds Tq
) o ‘0 ‘LogTIR *L09 TTT suoTaTsTnboy
*z97 6791 *9%6 657 'L 516796279 T8LY ¥6E "Z68 169" spueleq Huruuibed
AJTATIOV IPSEL JUSIIAND
‘PL'65S 4 0TL 66E TTLSTLE'ETBFA 6829 T80 466G "898 888’ EECle
0T ®6Rd 066 T®3IOL pumRID ,
*19z'025°d 197 6L “Lov LEe ETog9 688 °d "z91 2es 008 1LY’ 19430 1230k 0T °56%d (66 «
"056°F 056" "056°% G TP® | 00°s 5 |6T/FT/T0 PLYLT - 3AFTTA=0L| ZSF
000’ ve *000° 7T 000’7z E6IPH | 00°s 5 |6T/FT/Z0 NETLY - 3FTTAx0d| T5%
*05670% 056707 *056'0T EETPH | 00"s s 5T/PT/TO HLERE - 3IFtiaxed| osp
213 B4 243 TP | 00°S 15 BT/TT/60 szaza9Id 13 T2 8T - Z| 6%
‘066 ‘066 "066 E6TPH | 60°5 15 18T/T1/60 sxezeeg 313 MO 2707 ~ T| 8FF
666 ‘666 ¢ "666°¢ HEIPH | 60°6 18 BI/ET/LO ¥aep 3eTed oTI3oetTH| L¥Y
‘osz’se 08782 “08z'8z  PeIPR | 0oL 18 §61/08/50 xs1tRId] 997
. ) - Wel8Ag IojwiabrIIey
oFrT 0¥y T L2720 HE TP | 00°% 1s |sT/TE/80 woofd V¥ - xe3ndwodi spy
05069 ‘05069 ‘050’69 petbw [ eote | s [6r/vi/s0 ISTERIL| 997
,ES yseqem 3UBTT OTIIV (Z0Z
‘g5z’ 92 “55z'82 *g52°gz  psIPW | 6oL 15 [st/8T/2T ISTTRIL} €V
93299 8% AITTTIA 0TOZ
uoieatdag gsuadxg uonkI981deg 19x3 »
peignuNgIY | uoloRpag B4t 098 patBInwuRnaY | uoneiaidag siseg asuadxy % | 1588401800 |anf U | epq |poyow| Peanboy uonduasag ‘on
Buipuz IBgA a1y JENT g} Buiuwbag 104 siseg ujuonanpay | g/ uoneas |osng paisnlpeuny [sun m ’ a1eq o 1855y
066 0T #bea (65 WIOT

1HOd3H NOLLVZILHOWY ANV NOILYIO3Hd3a 8102




2U0Z OB ‘UONIoNPa UCHEZHEHASY |BI2JAILCY 'Shucg .mmmﬁm@ ‘Ol .

85

pasods|p jessy - (g)

8L-L0-+0 LLlB28

*698 879 an{ea jooq BUTIpuz
14N A0 5 SUCTITS0dSTD
gga1 adep umoow bButpuzm
uong9aidag asuadxy topesaidag 19%3 A
palelnWnasy | uononpag 61935 | palgnwnaoy | uoneioardsg siseq asuadxy % | sisegn1son |on| ¥ 1 ap pasnbay -
fuipuz 1Ba K JUBKING WaINg BuruuBag 104 s15e4 Upsopanpay | g/t Uondag mmﬂ_m pajsnipeun o 3 L Leaitel aeq Uondiosag 055y
066

01 =Bed 056 wrod

1HOd3Y NOILVZILHOWY ANV NOILYIO3Hd43a 810



55 Depreciation and Amortization OMB No. 1545 0772
Form 4 2 {Including Information on Listed Property) 890 20 1 8
Dapartmaent of the Troasury > Attach to your tax return. Attachment
Internal Reverus Servica  (99) | P Go to www.irs.gov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information. Saquence No, 179
Name{s) shown onraturn Business or activity to which this {orm relates Identifying number
MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, Inc. Form 890 Page 10 63-0931846
l Part | | Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179 Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I,
1 Maximum amount (See INSTEUGHONS) || ...\ oeioisieeeeoe oo eeeeee oo eeeeee oo reeeeene 1 1,000,000.
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see INStrUCHONS) 2
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation 3 2,500,000,
4 Reduction in limitation, Subtract line 3 from line 2. [fzero or less, enter -0- 4
5 Doltar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zerc or fess, enter -0-. If marriad filing separately, see instructians ..., ... ... . 5
[ {a} Doscription of property (b} Gost {businoss use only) {c) Elected coat
7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 7
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines6and 7 8
9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of iNe 5 or e B 8
10 Carnryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2017 Form 4882 10
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income {not less than zerojorline5 .. ... 11
12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but don'tenter more thanline 11 . ... 12
13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019, Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 .. " 13 |
Note: Don't use Part Il or Part Il below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.
| Part ll | Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation {Don't include listed property.)
14 Special depreciation allowance for qualified property {other than listed property) placed in service during
BB EAXYBAE ... Loio o oovsoovoeseovssssess e ces oot eeeees eeeeeboee e eeeeee s e eeees s e ee oo eee oo 14 211,607,
15 Property subject to section 168(f(1) election e 15
16_Other depreciation (including ACRS} 16 34,740,
[ Part 11l I MACRS Depreciation {Don't include listed property. See instructions.)
Section A
17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2048 . 17 1 152,985,
18 If you are elacting to group any assots placed in servica during the tax yaar inte ona or more general asget accounts, check here > [:_:I
Section B - Assets Placed in Service During 2018 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
{b) Month and (o} Basis for depraciation
{n) Classification of property yoar placed (business/investment use (d) Recovery {6) Conventicn | () Mathod (g} Depreciation deduction
in servica only - sae instruations) period
19a 3-year property
b 5-year property
c 7-year property
d 10-year property
e 15-year property
f 20-year property
g 25-year property 25 yrs. S/L
h  Residential rental property . 215 yre: M =L
/ 27.5 yrs. MM S/l
. . . / 39 yrs, Mivt S/L
i Neonresidential real property / MM SIL
Section C - Assets Placed in Service During 2018 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a _ Class life SiL
b 1Z-year 12 yrs. S/iL
¢ 30-year / 30 yrs. MM S/L
d  40-year / 40 yrs, MM S/l
[Part IV] summary (See instructions.)
21 Listed property. Enter amount from i@ 28 ... 21 378,
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 through 17, lines 18 and 20 in column (g), and line 21.
Enter here and on the appropriate lines of your return. Partnerships and S corporations-seeinstr. ... 22 399,710,
23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the
portion of the basis attributable to section 263Acosts ..., 23
816251 12-26-18 L.HA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate@&ﬁ'uctions. Form 4562 (2018}

16461108 752665 0149.00 2018.05000 MOWNTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK 0149.001



Forim 4562 (2018}

MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK,

Inc.

63-09318B46 page 2

Part V ] Listed Property (Include automobiles, certain other vehicles, certain aircraft, and property used for
entertainment, recreation, or amusement.}
Note: For any vehicle for which you are using the standard mileage rate or deducting lease expense, complete only 24a,
24b, columns {a) through (c} of Section A, all of Section B, and Section C if applicable.

Section A - Depreciation and Other Information {Caution: See the instructions for limits for passenger automobiles.)

2da Do you have evidence to support the busiress/investment use claimed? [ X ) Yes [ | No | 24b If "Yes," is the evidence written? [X | Yes [ | No
(a) !()I;ie BUE;I?IBSS/ ‘d) Basis for r(ifgraciaticn @ @) (h) . EiBr(:lt)ed
MGG | el | masiman | S0 | | Py et | R | sasionro
25 Special depreciation allowance for qualified listed property placed in service during the tax year and
used more than 50% in a qualified DUSINBSS USB ..\ ittt esmnis i 25
26 Property used more than 50% in a qualified business use;
%
%
Statement 1 L % 378.
27 Property used 50% or less in a qualified business use:
%
%
I %%
28 Add amounts in celumn (h), lines 25 through 27, Enterhere andon line 21, page 1 . 28 378.
29 Add amounts in column (i3, line 28. Enter here and on line 7, page 1

Section B - Information on Use of Vehicles
Complete this section for vehicles used by a sole proprietor, partner, or other "more than 5% owner," or related person. If you provided vehicles
to your employees, first answer the questions in Section C to see if you meet an exception to completing this section {or those vehicles.

(a} (b} e} () {e} )
30 Total business/investment miles driven during the Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle
year {don't include commuting mites) .. ...
31 Total commuting miles driven during the year
32 Total other personal (noncommuting) miles
ANVBN s
33 Total miles driven during the year.
Add lines 30 through 32 .. .
34 Was the vehicle available for personaj use Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes Mo Yes No Yes No
during off-duty hours? .
35 Woas the vehicle used primarily by a rore
than 5% owner or related person? ...
36 s another vehicle available for personal
USET? e
Section C ~ Questions for Employers Who Provide Vehicles for Use by Their Employees
Answer these questions to determine if you meet an exception to completing Section B for vehicles used by employees who aren’t
more than 5% owners or refated persons.
37 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits all personal use of vehicles, including commuting, by your Yes | No
employees? | ... bbb Lo hbee e iebae e tb e d o b ee e et Ak r e £e b s et b e e o £R SR rro b £ 84 e ke A Lr e £ 1e e b e 4o e S aans e e T e f e et en s anennsmeeene et ese et ennsane e mne e einrenneas
38 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits personal use of vehicles, except commuting, by your
empioyees? See the instructions for vehicles used by corporate officers, directors, or i% ormore owners .
32 Do you treat all use of vehicles DY amployees 88 POTSON A LS8 T
40 Do you provide more than five vehicles to your employees, obtain information from your employees about
the use of the vehicles, and retain the information received?
41 Do you meet the requirements concerning gualified automobile demonstration use?
Note: If your answer to 37. 38 39 40 or41is "Yes ' don't complete Section B for the covered vehicles.
[ Part VI | Amortization
(a) {b) {c) {d) {e) if)
Description of ¢osts fate amorization Amortizable Cade Amortization Amortization
begins amount saction periad or percantage for this year

42 Amortization of costs that begins during your 2018 tax year:

43 Amortization of costs that began before your 2018 tax year
44 Total. Add amounts in column (f). See the instructions for where to report

816252 12-26-78

16461108 752665 0145.00
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MONTGOMERY AREA FQOOD BANK, Inc.

63-093184¢6

Form 4562, Part V

Listed Property Information-More Than 50%

Statement 1

(a) (b)
Degcription  Date

(d)
Cost

{e) (£) {g) (h) (i) 1798
Basgis Life Mth/Cv Deduction Elected

(3) (k) (1)
Business
Miles

Auto Total
No Miles

(m}
Commuting Pergonal Wag Veh. > 5% Another Veh.
Miles

(n) (o) (p) (q)

Avail.? Owner? Available?
Y N Y N Y N

Miles

Toyota 03/17/03
Materials
electric

Forklift

Refrigerate 10/28/09
truck

(Walmart

Fnd

donation)

Forklift
Battery

05/17/17

Total to Form 4562, Part V,

16461108 752665 0149.00

29,732.

85,000.

3,780,

Line 26

20,812, 5.00 SL ~-HY

85,000, 5.00 200DB-HY

1,890. 5.00 SL -HY 378.

378.

71 Statement(s) 1
2018.05000 MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK 0149.001
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with
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and
Other Required Reports
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Pa.rker, Giﬂ, Fisen

& Stevenson, PC.
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors” Report

MEMBER MEMBER
AMERICAN INSTITUTE ALABAMA SOCIETY
OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC QF CERTIMED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANTS ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statemenis of Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc., which
comprises the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsiliility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erToT,

Anditor’s Respousibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audils contained in Gevernment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the aunditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An andit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our gudit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinien, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial positions of Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc. as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Inforsnation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an oplnion on the financial statements as a whole,
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 ULS. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and s not a required part of the financial statements, Such
information is the responsibility of management and way derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statemnents. The Information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
addiional procedures, including comparing and reconeiling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial stafements
themselves, and other addiional pracedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Govermment Auditiug Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 19,
2019 on our consideration of Mantgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.’s infernal control over financial reporting
and on our tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matfers, The purpase of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that festing, and not to provide an
opinion on intérnal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Thut report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Andifing Siandards in considering Montgomery Area
Food Bank, Inc.s internal control over financlal reporting and compliance.

Montgomery, Alabama i Alpuansens, ARG,
September 19, 2019
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Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 1,083,312 955,620
Accounts receivable, nat 108,668 67,073
Food tnventory riet of reserve for unsalvageable food
of $109,107 and $192,691, respectively 1,777,890 2,691,022
Prepald expenses - 32,044
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,928,473 3,055,291
Total assets B 6,848,343 7,101,050
Liabilities arid Net Assets
Liabflities;
Accounts payahle 11,760 42,946
Payroll liabilities and withholdings 5,610 1,610
Capital lease payable - forklift 38,706 7,050
Total Liabilities 56,076 51,606
Net assets as restate:
Without donor restrictions 6,524,869 6,754,307
With donor resiriclions:
Senior Bupplement 42,741 46,070
Mobile Pantry 19,541 17,702
School Program 83,117 95,499
Disaster Relief 30,681 “
Road 88,223 39,834
Equipment fund 53,095 96,082
Total et assets as restated 6,792,267 7,049,444
Total liabilities and net assets 6,848,343 7,101,050

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnanciul statements,
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Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc

Statoments of Activities
June 30, 201% and 2018

Unresteleted Revenues, Gains and Other Support:
Faod contributions
Rejected food
Contributions and grants
Fundraising income
In-kind services contributions
Shared maintenange fees
Delivery fees
U.S, Department of Agriculture grant
US. Department of Agriculture handling fees
Itterest Income
United Way
CFC/SCC funds
Miscelianeous Income
Galn from disposltion of assels

Nat agsels released from restrictions

Total unrestricted revenues, yains and other support

xpenses:
Program Services
Management and general
Fund ratsing

Tolal expenses
Decrease in net assets without donor resiricifons

Changes in Net Asse(s with donor restrictlons:
Gavernment grants
Contribuiions
Net assets released From donor restrictions

Decrease in net assets with donor resirictions
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets without danor restrictions
Net Assets, Beginaing of Year a5 restated

Net Assets, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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2019 2018
25,611,646 28,445,540
1417 1,188
965,498 1,010,627
544,209 $62,943
10,206 13,750
1,007,280 781,894
5,440 4,730
5,575,169 3,244,755
560,912 444,849
1,727 1,536
35,057 5,365
9,673 51,606
4,186 3,939
434 14,461
35,272,944 34,587,185
455,230 572,791
35,728,174 35,159,976
35,373,812 34,925,675
210,022 226,018
373,778 298,221
35,957,612 35,446,914
(220,438) (286,938)
18,183 18,866
409,308 520,887
{455,230) (672,791)
(27,739) (33,038)
(257,177) (319,976)
7,049,444 7,369,420
6,792,267 7,040,444




MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK, INC.

Statements of Funclional Expenses

June 30, 2019
Program Services
Tublie Management Fand
Disteibution Education Total and Caneral Raising Tolal

Salarics §  9%BAA B 10,85 $ 1,057,278 s A7 5§ 17749 § 1,298047
Employae Tenclils 169,739 UM 193,923 11,641 32,556 238,120
Payroll taxes §9.631 369 20,000 178 15,009 103,157

Tutal salasies and related expenses 1,184,794 158407 1,341,201 73,292 225,061 1,641,554
Duifding melntenanca 32,525 1807 34332 1,807 35,139
Bad debt - - - - - .
Canference cosls 7,982 1,330 9,313 3,991 - 13304
Cuns and subscriplions 42,734 pf v 49,868 8052 13,320 71,240
Equipatent repalra and mointenance 100464 5581 106,046 5,561 - 111,627
Food donalion to agencics 249,547 - 32495947 - - 32459947
Tood purchases 174,115 - 171,115 - . 171,115
In-Mind expenses 5,837 730 6556 730 - 7,286
Insurarce 31798 3308 35,103 3308 - 38411
Interent exponse 7,023 - 7,020 - - 7020
Miscellaneous - - “ 7903 7,903
Fostage and shipplng 72,574 0,993 81,557 8993 . 90,560
Frinling 5105 16315 206420 5303 - 25,525
Professional fees 63,021 3,663 66,684 29306 135397 B3
Professional tralning - - - 4,280 . 4,280
Rent 1,000 - 1000 . - 1,000
Supplies 44,908 27323 47,23 5969 - 54,200
Toxgs and Uconses 9462 - 9462 . B 9462
Telephone 11,944 1,991 13,935 5,972 . 19,907
Travel 88,850 11,108 93,968 11,188 - 111,075
USDA handling fees to PDO's 410,570 - 410570 - - 410,570
Utilllies 140,099 778330 147,863 7.783 - 156,666

Talni expenses before deprecintion 34,931,768 207463 385,159,231 186,179 I8 35,719,188
Depreclation 190,739 2542 214,582 23,842 - 238,424

Totad expenges S 33,122,507 $ 351,305 5 35373812 s 0022 S A73778 3 35,957&

The ateompanying noles are anintogrob patt of the fnancial statements,
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MONTGOMERY AREA FOOD BANK,

Satements of Funetional Expenses
Tune 30, 2018

Salatles
Employee Benelits
Payrall taxes
Total ainrics and retated expanses

Buitding malntenance
Bad <debl
Condorence cosls
Dues and subscriptions
Hquipment repalss and matntenance
Food donatlen o agendles
Foad purshases
In-Kind expeses
Insurance
Tnterest GXpene
sdigeellaneous
Tostage and shipping
Prinding
Professional fees
Professiona) trainitig
Runt
Supplies
Telephane
Travel
USPA hendilng foes 1o POO'S
Utllikles

Total expensea before depredation
Dyeprecintion

Tolal mepensed

Program Serviges
Public

Diatibutlon

$ 912,655
179,578
B.534
1,174,767

28,282
324

6,535
w2
142439
32,081,846
234,698
11,000
28307
409

60,714
77203
47,551
12,000
#5742
10,436
84464
347316
128422
54,095,575
182428

§ 24078018

The accampanylig notes ase an inle,

Education Total
§ uame  § 1,031,685
23421 22,958
1,541 MATS
144,392 1319,158
1,571 20,853

- 324
1089 7,626
3,738 25,168
7924 150,564

. 32,051,846

. 34,698
1,375 12375
2042 42,248

. 407
10,121 70,035
21 61d 28,81%
A1 7928

- 12,608
5,222 70,954
1,608 12,642
10,558 95,022
- 347,326
7,135 135,556
224,858 34,720,433
22,805 205,242
s T 8 84,025,675

&

gl part of the flnarcial statewents.

Manngement Fund
and Genezal Ralsing
$ 68,257 § 182815
13,420 26133
113 13,025
82800 171,973
1571 -
3,268 -
1,366 %848
7524 -
1315 .
3942 -
107
10121 -
7,205 -
34966 113400
8,851 -
15,667 -
5418 -
10558 -
7,135 -
203,213 295,21
22808 -
5 726018 § 29522
M‘? mzﬂmm

Taial

§ 1,D0756
242,562
08,613

JR—C7 S
15739

3tz
324
10594
7379
158,448
42,061,846
34,693
13,750
46100
489
1,047
BOH56
35,024
120,283
8,851
12,000
86,631
16,060
105,360
MW7
142,661

e e L
35,218,367
228,47

§ 35440914




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Actlvitles:
Decrease i net nssets
Adjustmients o reconcile decrease {n net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities -
Depresiation
Gain on disposition of assets
Increase In accounts receivable
(Increasc) decrease in food inventory
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase In accounts payable
Incrense (decrease) in payroll taxes ond withbeldings
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activitiess
Increase in capltal lease payable
Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash used by Investing aotivities
Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Casti Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at peginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Interest paid

Income faxes paid

The accompanying notes are an integral patt o

7

. 209 2018
(257,177) (319,976)
238,424 228,047

(434) (14,461)
(41,595) (206)
313,134 361,551
32,044 (3,333)
(31,185) 17,123

4,000 (2,614)
257,210 266,131
31(65 6 A
(211,174) (289,510)
(179,518) (269,510)
77,692 (23,379)
955,620 978,999

1,033,312 955,620
$ 7,020 489

f the financial slatements.




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Notes to Finaneial Statements

1.

Otgardzation

Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc, is a nonprofit organization operating as 2 central clearinghouse for the
collectton, sorting, storing and distribution of edible food to qualified member agencies, Any charitable,
nonprofit organization within the assigned Feeding America service area may apply to become a member
of the Food Bank, As part of the application process, the donee organization must document its
exemption with the IRS under Section 501(c)(3), It must also certify that the food will go to only needy
individuals at no charge, that the food will be in clean, sanitary, and secure conditions, that the food will
ot be sold, bartered, swapped, or traded, and that it will maintain records of accountability. After
reviewing the application, the Food Bank staff visits the organization to review the program. The staff
prepares n report to the Board of Directors which by formal resolution either accepts or rejects the
application for membership based upon merit.

The Food Bank operates as a fully certlfied member of the Feeding America natlonal network of food
barks,

The Organization assesses its member agencies a handling fee on a per potnd of food issued basis, which
it anticipates will defray a substantial portion of the overall expense of operations. The balance of
support is expected to come from public contribution, USDA handling administrative income, and from
FEMA.

Significant Accounting Policies

Finaneial Statement Presentation

‘The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting and classifies its
financial statements based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, Accordingly, net
gssets in the financial statements are reported In three categories, as follows:

o Without donor restricions: Those net assets and activities which represents the portion of the
expendable funds available to support the operations. A portion of these net assefs may be
designated by the Board of Directors for specific purposes.

«  With donor restrictions; Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that expire when the
stipulate purposes for which the resonrce was restricted has been fulfilled or that are maintained
permanently

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and Habilities at the date of
the financial statements and the repotted amounts of revenues and expenses for the year then ended.
Actual resuits could differ from these estimates.




Montgomery Area Food Banlk, Inc,

Notes to Financial Statements

Cagh and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and short-term investments with original maturities of
three months or less, The Organization maintains portions of its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at
times, may exceed federally insured limits, The Organization has not experienced any losses in such
accounts, and management believes that the Organization is not exposed to any siguificant credit risk
refated to cash.

Ponated Food ,

Food contributions received by the Organization are capltalized as food inventory and recorded as
unrestricted revenue, Upon distribution, food inventory is recorded as a decrease in unrestricted net
assels and is charged to expense as food donations to agencies.

Contributed Merchandise and Other In-Kind Contributions

Contributed merchandise and other in-kind contrfbutions, including equipment, are reflected as
contributions a their estimated fair values when received or when an unconditional promise to give has
been received by the Organization,

Property and Equipment

Purchased properly and eguipment are recorded at cost. The Organization capitalizes property and
equipment purchased with government grants, where the property is legally owned by the granting
agency, if management considers it probable that the Organization will be permitted to keep the property
and equipment for the estimated useful lives of the assets,

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years
on the building and fmprovements, 5 years is used to compute depreciation on warehouse, automotive
and office equipment and 7 years is used to compute depreciation on office furniture.

The carrying values of long-lived assets are reviewed when events or changes in citcumstances indlcate
that the carrying amounts of assets may not be recaverable, 1f the undiscounted future cash flows
(without interest charges) are less than the carrying amount of an asset, an Impairment loss is recognized
to the extent the assel's carrying amount exceeds its fair value. No impairment loss was recognized in
2019 or 2018,

Grant Expenditures
Grant expenditures are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may consttute 2 linbility of the Organization, The amount, if any,
of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
Organization does not expect such amaunts, if any, o have a material effect on the Organization’s
financial statements.

Contributed Services

Unpaid volunteers assist in the warehousing, boxing, weighing and carrying of food for agencies. The
value of these contributed services Is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements, as the
services provided do not meet the criterla for recognition according to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Shared Maintenance Fees

The Organization distributes food to 288 agencies that are charged for products on a per pound basis, not
to exceed eighteen cents per pound. Also, subsidiary distribution organizatons are charged a handling
fee for products on a per pound basis, not to exceed eight cents per pound. These charges ure reflected as
shared maintenance fees in the accompanying financinl statements.

Tax Status :

The Organization is a nonprofit organization exempt from income tax under Section S01{c)(3} of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code. The Organization has been classifted as an organization that is not a private
foundation. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial
statements,

Accounts Recelvable

Accounts recelvables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and
an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its essessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are stll outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off through a charge to the valuation alfowance and a credit to accounts receivable, $5,709 and
5,000 has been accraed for allowanee for doubtful sccounts at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
Changes in the valuation allowance have tiot been material to the financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncement ‘

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entittes (Topic 958) ~ Presentation of
financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, The update addresses the complexity and
understandability of net asset classification, deficlencies in information about liquidity and availability of
resources, ang the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment
return, Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc, has adjusted the presentation of these statements accordingly.
The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.,

Liquidity and Availability of Resources
The Center has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,

liabilities, and other obligations come due, The financizl assets available within one year of the financial
position date for general expenditures are as follows:

201% 2018
Cash and cash equivalents : $  1,033312 % 955,620
Accounts Recelvable 104,543 62,240
% 1,137,885 $  1,017.860

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior financial statements in order for them to be in
conformity with the current year presentation,

10




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc,

Notes to Financial Statements

Functional Expenses

The cost of providing program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program services,.
management and general, and fund-raising expense classifications based on management’s estimates of

3

resources consumed by these functions.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expenses Method of Allogation
Salaries Time and effort
Employee Benefits Time and effort
Payroll taxes Time and effort
Building Maintenance Square footage
Conference cost Time and effort
Dues and subscriptions Time and effort
Equipment repairs and maintenance Square footage
In-Kind expenses Time and effort
Ingurance Square footage
Miscellangous Time and effort
Pastage and shipping Time and effort
Printing Time and effort
Professional fees Time and effort
Professional training Time and effort
Supplies Square foolage
Telephone Square footage
Travel Time and effort
Utilities Square footage

Food Inventory

The following summarizes food inventory transactions:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Pounds Value Pounds Value
Balance, beginning of year 1,501,128 52,283,713 1,680,262 $ 2,623,007
Food contributions
and purchages 25,191,645 32,357,930 21,772,529 31,915,705
Food distributions (25,550,741) (33,635,609) {%1,984,821) (32,519,112)
Valuation adjustments 328,195 B80,963 33,158 264,023
Balance, end of year 1,470,227 1,886,597 1,501,128 2,283,713
Allowance for
unsalvageable food (67,350) (109,107} {(114,697) {192,691)
Net food Ihventory 1,402,877 $ 1,777,890 1,386,431 $ 2,091,022

1




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Notes to Pinancial Statements

3

Food Inventory {continued)

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, food inventory was valued at $1.62 and $1.68 per pound, respectively, for all
food on hand from sources other than the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA}. This value
was based on the results of a product valuation survey provided by Feeding America. For food received
from the USDA, a weighted average per pound was used based on the USDA’s estimate of the average
whaolesale value per pound of food.

Property and Bquipinent

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

June 30, 2019 Juxe 30, 2018

Land $ 354,734 $ 384,754
Building 4,530,735 4,530,735
Hquipment and vehicles 1,901 256 1,801,158
Office furniture 21,972 21,972
Lensehold improvements 5825 5,825
6,814,522 6,714,424

Accumulated depreciation 2,886,049 2,739,133
$ 3,928,473 i 3,855,291

Retirement Plan

The Organization maintains a SEIMPLE employee pension plan to which the Organization contributes
monthly amounts based on the employees' current salaries. Bmployees that have reached twenty-one
years of age and completed six months of full-time employment are eligible to participate in the plan. For
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, five percent of all eligible employees’ salaries were contributed to
the plan, Employees do not have to contribute to the pension plan and employer contributions vest
immediately, The related pension expense was $62,686 and $53,754 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Leage Commitment

The Organization leases copiers and a postage meter resulting in $1,090 and $364 a month, respectively.
The Organization also leases forklifts for a total of $1,778 a month, Total lease expense for the years ended
Tune 30, 2019 and 2018 were $39,258 and $32,292, respectively, Future minimum lease payments are as
follows:

2020 b 38,056
2021 34,416
2022 34416
2023 39078
2024 0,450

3 61,410

12




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
7. Related Party

The Organization purchased insurance through a company owned by one of its board members during
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, which totaled $59,698 and $46,190, respectively.

The Organization had cash on deposit with a financial institution in which board members are
management during the years June 30, 2019 and 2018, which totaled $255,809 and $254,283, respectively.

The Organization purchased advertising through a company operated by one of its board members
during the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 which totaled $27,500 and $28,000, respectively,

B. Expense Measurenents

Program expenses, management and general and fundraising expenses make up the following
percentages of total expenses without and with inventory valuations as follows:

2019 2018
Program expenses without
inventory valuations $ 2,873,865 83% $ 2,873,829 B5%
Management and general 210,022 6% 226,018 7%
Pund raising 373,778 11% 295,221 B%
% 3,457,665 100% $ 3,395,068 100%
2019 218
Program expenses with
Inventory valuations $ 35373812 98% $ 34,925,675 98%
Management and general 210,022 1% 226,018 1%
Fund ralsing 378,728 1% 295,221 1%
$ 35,957,612 100% 5 385446,914 100%

9, Other Commitments

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had an unused line of credit with a financial institation in the amount
of $500,000. This letter of credit expires on July 28, 2020,

10. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are shown, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, from the following sources:

Pledges $ 9,833
Other 104,543
114,376

Less allowance for doubtful accounts {5,708

$ 108,668
13




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc,

Notes to Financial Statements

11.

12,

13.

During 2012, the Organization started a capital campaign drive and received pledges during the year
ended June 30, 2014 in the amount of $597,372, OF this amount, $0 wete collected during the years
ended June 30, 2019 and June 80, 2018, respectively. Pledges are to be collected over a one to five-year
time period. A discounted rate of 3.25% was used in computing the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, The amounis of the pledges are as follows:

Present
Actual Value
$ 10,600 3 9,833

Bubsequent Events

Management has considered subsequent events through September 19, 2019, the financial statement
reporting date.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had a fotal of $533,027 in excess of the insured Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) lmit on deposit with two institutioris.

Net Asset Restatement

Donor restricted net assels were reclassified from deferred ravenues te net assets with donor resiriction at
the beginning of 2018, This resulted in a $328,175 reclassification to net assets as they were released from
restricHons,

14
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Independent Auditors” Report
on Additional Information

To the Board of Directors of
Mentgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

We have andited the financia] stabements of the Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc, a5 of and for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018 and have issued our report thereon dated September 19, 2019, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as g whole, The statement of financial position and actlvities without
inventory valuations, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, schedule of findings and questioned cost, and
the summary of prior audit findings are presented for tha purposes of additional analysis and i5 not a requirad
part of the financial statements. Such information is the tesponsibility of management and was derived from and
refates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
inforntation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information divectly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or the financial statements themaselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally recepted in the United States of
America, In our opinion, the information is falrly stated in all matedal respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole,

Pontos, Yot Iatsons

&~ Alouamecns, ARG,
Montgomery, Alabama

; Beptember 19, 2019




Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position without Inventory
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Aksgets

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Accounts receivable, net

Prepald expenses

Property, plant and equipment, net

Total agsets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities and withholdings
Capital lease payable ~ forklift

Nel Assets as restated:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets as restated

Total Habilites and net agsels

See Independent Auditors' Report on Additional Information
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2019 2018
$ 1,033.312 $ 955,620
108,668 67,073
- 32,044
3,028,473 3,555,291
$ 5,070,453 $ 5,010,028
& 11,760 $ 42,946
5,610 1,610
38,706 7,050
56,076 51,606
4,746,979 4,663,285
267,398 295,137
5,014,377 4,958,422
$ 5,070,453 $ 5,010,028




Montgomery Area Food Banl, Inc.

Statements of Activities without Inventory Valuations

June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 2018
Revenues, Gains and Support; .
Conkributions and grants : $ 1,374,806 $ 1,531,514
Rejected food 1417 1,188
Spectal events-fundraising 544,209 562,943
Shared maintenance fees 1,007,280 1,144,165
U.S, Department of Agriculture
handling fee 500,812 444,849
FEMA grant 18,183 18,866
Delivery fees 5,440 4,730
Interest income 1,727 1,536
In-kind services contribution 10,296 13,750
CEC/S8CC funds 9,673 51,608
United Way 35,057 5,365
Miscellaneous income . 4,188 3,939
Gain from disposition of assets 434 14,461
Total vevenues, gains and other support 3,513,620 3,798,914
Expenges:
Program sarvices 2,873,865 2,873,829
Management and general 210,022 226,018
Fund raising 373,778 295,221
Total expenses 3,457,665 3,395,068
Iricrease in Net Assets ’ 55,955 403,846
Nat Assels, Beginning of Year - as restated 4,958,422 4,554,576
Net Assets, End of Year ' $ 5,014,377 $ 4,958,422

See Independent Auditors' Report on Additional Information
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Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc,

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2019
Program
Grantor/Pass Through Federal Award Federal Pass Through
Grantors Program Title CrDA # Ampunt Expenditures Grantor #
FEMA, Emergency Food & Shelter 97.024 $ 18,183 $ 18,183  Emergency Food
& Shelter Program
34-0138-00 606 E9
013800-006
Cluster - USDA Emergency Food Assistance Program
UsDA, FNS State Department
The Emergency Food Assistance of Bducation
Program Administrative Costs 10.568 500,912 500,912 12-3507-01-605
LSDA, FNG State Department
The Emergency Food Assistance of Education
Program - Food Commodities 10.569 6,575,169 6,362,148 12-3505-0-1-605
USDA, FNS State Department
The Commodity Supplemental of Education
Pood Program ~ Food Commodity 10.568 74,842 .
7,150,923 6,863,060
3 7,169,106 $ 6,881,243

Note: The accrual basis of accounting has been used to prepare this schedule.
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Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc,

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Junie 30, 2019

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness{es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness{es)?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards-
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identifled?

Significant deficiency(ias) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report Issued on compliance
of major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section
200.516(a)?

[dentification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)
10,569, 10.565 and 10.568

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs;

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

E:] Yes
(] Yes
[j:] Yes

(%] No
[X]No

(X ]No

[ Yes
I::] Yes

(X wo

(X No

Unmaodified

E:] Yes No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

USDA, FNS Emergency Food Assistance Program

§ 750,000

Yes [::] No
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Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Andit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Governsnent Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors of
Mentgomery Area Food Bank, Inc,
Montgomery, Alnbama

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Unlted States of America
and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards issved by the
Complroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc., which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, cash
flows, and funcbonal expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated September 19, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Montgomery Area Food Bank,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control, Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Montgomery Avea Food Bank, Inc's internal control.

A deficiency in infernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or .
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis, A mteriol weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficlencies, in infernal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a taterial misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identifled,

Compliance and Other Malters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we perforined tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opindon en compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards,




Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit petformed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance, Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.

Parten,, Yint,, Frawns
B~ A Louamacnis, PG .

Menigomery, Alabama
Seplember 19, 2019
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Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; and ACCOUNTANTS ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Board of Directors of
Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.
Montgomery, Alabamia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Complinnce Supplement that could have a direct material effect on each of Montgomery Area
Food Bank, Inc/s mafor federal programs for the year ended june 30, 2019, The Organization’s mejor federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's reslts section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questoned costs,

Managenient's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
faderal awards applicable to its federal programs, :

Anditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Monigomery Araa Food Bank, Inc¢.'s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Americs; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requitements of Title 2 LLS. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, amd Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), Those standards and Uniform Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurarice about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test
basls, evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinfon on compliance for each major federal
program, However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc.'s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Mafor Federal Program

In our opinion, Montgomery Area Food Bank, Inc, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referved to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2019,




Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Crganization Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above, In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the Organization’s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinfon on the effectiveness of Montgomery Area Food Bank,
Inc/’s internal control over compliance.

A deficientcy in internal coitrol over complimice exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis, A materinl weakness in internal control over complionce is a deficlency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibillty that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal coutrol over complinnce is a deficlency, or a combination of deficiencles, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requiretent of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the Hmited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was designed to identfy all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficlencies may exist that have not been identified We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal conbrol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guldance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitabie for any other purpose.

Montgomery, Alabama @&L?Qg;\,' Miee ,M
September 19, 2019
& dlesemaes, 86,




